
Town of Rothesay 
 

Land Acknowledgement 
 

We would like to respectfully acknowledge that our town of Rothesay exists on the 
traditional lands of the Wolastoqiyik / Maliseet and Mi’Kmaq whose ancestors, 
along with the Passamaquoddy / Peskotomuhkati Tribes / Nations signed Peace 
and friendship Treaties with the British Crown in the 1700s. 

We respectfully acknowledge that The United Nations Declaration of the Rights of 
Indigenous Peoples (UNDRIP) was adopted by the United Nations on September 13, 
2007 and enshrined in law in Canada by Parliament on June 21, 2021 as Bill C-15. 

We respectfully endorse the Calls to Action of the Truth and Reconciliation 
Commission of 2015 as it applies to our Municipal Government of the town of 
Rothesay.   

- presented by the Honourable Graydon Nicholas 
September 13th, 2021 

 
 
 
 



                           

PLEASE NOTE:  Electronic means of communication may be used during the meeting. 

Public access to the livestream will be available online: 

https://www.youtube.com/user/RothesayNB 

 

Rothesay Land Acknowledgement  Deputy Mayor Alexander 

 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  Regular Meeting  11 April 2023 

          

➢ Business Arising from Minutes  

  

3. OPENING REMARKS OF COUNCIL 

 

3.1  Declaration of Conflict of Interest 

 

4. DELEGATIONS 

4.1 Melanoma Skin Cancer Awareness Month  Kathleen Barnard (see item 9.1.1) 

4.2 New Brunswick International Student Program Wendy Brooks (see item 8.4) 

    

5. CORRESPONDENCE FOR ACTION 

5.1 10 April 2023    Email RE: Rothesay Train Station  

Refer to staff  

5.2 20 April 2023    Fundy Gymnastics non-profit rate request for the Bill McGuire Centre 

Refer to the Finance Committee 

5.3 3 May 2023    Port City Elite non-profit rate request for the Bill McGuire Centre 

Refer to the Finance Committee 

 

6. CORRESPONDENCE - FOR INFORMATION 

6.1 31 December 2022 Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. audited financial statements 

6.2 21 April 2023 Letter to Malabeam/Maliseet/Rothesay Park residents RE: Spring Freshet 

 

7. REPORTS 

7.0 May 2023  Report from Closed Session 

7.1  8 February 2023  Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. (KVFD) Board meeting minutes 

  31 December 2022 KVFD Statement of Expense  

  2022   KVFD Operating Budget  

  31 December 2022 KVFD Budget Variances 

  8 February 2023  Memorandum from Deputy Fire Chief RE: SCBA Capital Purchase 

  8 February 2023  KVFD Fire Chief’s Report 

  December 2022  KVFD Response Report  

7.2 15 February 2023 Kennebecasis Public Library (KPL) Board meeting minutes 

  14 March 2023  KPL Board meeting minutes 

 

ROTHESAY 
COUNCIL MEETING 

Town Hall Common Room 

Monday, May 8, 2023 
7:00 p.m. 
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https://www.youtube.com/user/RothesayNB


ROTHESAY 
Regular Council Meeting 

Agenda -2- 8 May 2023 

 

7.3 31 March 2023  Draft unaudited Rothesay General Fund Financial Statements 

  31 March 2023  Draft unaudited Rothesay Utility Fund Financial Statements 

  31 March 2023  Donation Summary  

  20 April 2023  Draft Finance Committee meeting minutes 

➢ Association Heritage New Brunswick 
➢ KV Girls Softball Association 

➢ Bradley Joudry (2023 Football Canada Cup) 
➢ World Performers (2023 Dance World Cup) 

7.4 18 April 2023  Draft Age Friendly Advisory Committee meeting minutes 

7.5 19 April 2023  Draft Works and Utilities Committee meeting minutes 

7.6 25 April 2023  Draft Climate Change Adaptation Committee meeting minutes 

➢ Draft By-law Respecting Flyer Distribution 

➢ Corporate Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Inventory and Action Plans 

7.7 1 May 2023  Draft Planning Advisory Committee meeting minutes 

➢ 38 Appleby Drive (PID 30194807) 

➢ Holland Drive (PID 00056598) – Public Hearing scheduled May 15 at 6:00 p.m. 
7.8 April 2023  Monthly Building Permit Report 

7.9 2 May 2023  Capital Projects Summary 

 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

               

TABLED ITEMS 
 

8.1 Strong Court Sidewalk – Anglophone South School District (Tabled April 2021) 

No action at this time 

 

8.2 Rothesay Arena Open House (Tabled September 2021) 

No action at this time 

 

8.3 Private Lanes Policy (Tabled July 2022)  

No action at this time 

               

  

8.4 NB International Student Program (signage) Remove from table  

Refer to the Works and Utilities Committee and promote on social media 

 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

9.1 BUSINESS ARISING FROM DELEGATIONS 

9.1.1 Melanoma Skin Cancer Awareness Month   

 10 February 2023 Proclamation request with attachments 

Refer to the Parks and Recreation Committee and promote on social media 

 

ADMINISTRATION 

9.2 Council appointments to Committees 

 25 April 2023  Memorandum from Mayor Grant 

For Information 
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ROTHESAY 
Regular Council Meeting 

Agenda -3- 8 May 2023 

 

9.3 Amendment to By-law 2-14 Schedule B – Standing Committees 

 26 April 2023  Memorandum from Town Clerk Banks  

 REVISED  Schedule B (By-law 2-14) – Standing Committees 

 

9.4 Kennebecasis Public Library Appointment 

 1 May 2023  Memorandum from Nominating Committee 

 

9.5 2022 Rothesay Annual Report 

 DRAFT   Rothesay Annual Report   

 

OPERATIONS 

9.6 Contract T-2023-001 Asphalt Resurfacing 

 1 May 2023  Report prepared by DO McLean 

 

RECREATION 

9.7 Rothesay Pickleball Courts Plexi Pave Surface 

 8 May 2023  Report prepared by DRP Jensen 

 

9.8 Recreation Master Plan 

 8 May 2023  Report prepared by DRP Jensen  

 

10.  NEXT MEETING 

  

 Public Hearing (Holland Drive) Monday, May 15, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 

 Regular meeting   Monday, June 12, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
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. . ~ 
save your skin ... . LAFoNOAnoN 

FOUNDAT I ON ' sauve ta peau 

SAVE YOUR SKIN FOUNDATION 

Skin Cancer Early 
Defee 1ion & Awareness 
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WHAT IS CANCER 

Occurs when cells in a body part begin to grow out of control 
and crowd out normal cells. 
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SKIN CANCER - FACTS & FIGURES 

Skin cancer is the most common of all cancers. 

1 in 6 Canadians born in the 1990s will get skin cancer in their lifetimes. 

There are more new cases of skin cancer each year than the number of 
breast, prostate, lung and colon cancers COMBINED. 

save your skin •••-•-+ , o .. •~•"o' ' sauve ta peau 
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SKIN CANCER - FACTS & FIGURES 

Most skin cancers are: 

• slow-growing 
• easy to recognize 
• relatively easy to treat when detected early 
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SKIN CANCER - FACTS & FIGURES 

It is estimated that in 2020: 

• Non-melanoma skin cancer is the most common form of skin 
cancer. 

• Among the non-melanoma forms, basal cell carcinoma (BCC) 
makes up 75% to 80% of cases, and squamous cell carcinoma 
(SCC), around 20%. 

• While melanoma is less common than other forms of skin cancer, 
it is very serious and a potentially deadly form. 

~ '. 
save your skin ~ . ..,,.,.,..,.. .... 

• ou~o1.••-?t"- ~ sauve ta peau 
~,t;· 
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MELANOMA IS THE DEADLIEST 
FORM OF SKIN CANCER. 

save your skin .... -❖, 
.- o...i -.uu,1·,a "' sauve ta peau 
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MELANOMA - FACTS & FIGURES 

• Melanoma is now the 7th most common cancer in Canada and 
the 4th most common among people ages 15 to 29. 

• It is one of the few cancers with incidence rates on the rise among 
Canadians. 

• In males, the incidence rate for melanoma has increased steadily 
by 2.2% per year since 1984. 

• It females, the incidence rate for melanoma has increased by 
2.0% per year since 1994. 

+ save your skin ~•-•o .. ,o ... ,,o.. sauve ta peau 
I 
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MELANOMA - FACTS & FIGURES 

Exposure to ultraviolet (UV) radiation through exposure to 
sunlight, tanning beds and sun lamps appears to be a major 
risk factor for melanoma. 

Other risk factors include number and type of moles, having 
a fair complexion, personal and family history of skin cancer, 
a weakened immune system and a history of severe 
blistering sunburn. 

Ir 

save your skin .,.,.........,. 
• o-r,,,•u.u .o ·,., sauve ta peau 

r 
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MELANOMA - FACTS & FIGURES 

It is estimated that in 2021: 

• 8,700 Canadians were diagnosed with melanoma. 
• 1,250 Canadians died from melanoma. 
• 4,700 men were diagnosed with melanoma and 790 died from it. 
• 4,000 women were diagnosed with melanoma and 450 died from it. 

.i , 
save your skin ~ .,.._...,.. 

•ou ~ o .. ,o . -- ~ sauve ta peau , . 
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SKIN CANCER EARLY DETECTION 
& PREVENTION 
Am I At Risk? Everyone's skin and eyes can be damaged by the sun 
and other UV rays. Although people with light skin are more likely to 
have sun damage, darker skinned people, including people of African 
descent, can also be affected. 

Those with lighter skin are more likely to burn. Sunburns are thought 
to increase your risk of skin cancer, especially melanoma. But UV 
exposure can raise skin cancer risk even without causing a sunburn. 

save your skin ... -+ rou .... a.-., 1a"' sauve ta peau 
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SKIN CANCER WHAT SHOULD I LOOK FOR? 

Basal cell cancers and squamous cell cancers are most often 
found in areas that get exposed to a lot of sun, such as the head, 
neck, and arms, but they can occur elsewhere. 

Look for new growths, spots, bumps, patches, or sores that don't 
heal after 2 to 3 months. 

save your sk,n .,.,.......,.,.. 
• Du'<D•no, Sauve to peaU 

0 
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SKIN CANCER WHAT SHOULD I LOOK FOR? 

Use the A, B, C, D, E rule to spot melanoma! 

A = Asymmetry 
B = Border 
C = Colour 
D = Diameter 
E = Evolving 

save your skin ~ .,..qo,,......._ 
O 0"~<>• I ,.,k ~ Sauve ta peau 

• 



2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_026

SIGNS AND SYMPTOMS OF SKIN CANCER 

Abnormal 
1. Asymmetry 
2. Uneven borders 
3. Color variation 
4. Diameter (greater than 6 mm) 
5. Evolving (change in size, shape 

and color) 

Normal mole 
1. Symmetry 
2. Even borders 
3. Color uniform 
4. Diameter (smaller 

than 10 mm) 
5. Normal mole 

save your sk,n .. ..,._,... +' , ~~ -u, ,o~ sauve ta peau 
r 
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ABCDEs of skin cancer 
> > > 

save your skin .... ~-•-=--
, .,.,.,o•""h sauve ta peau 

I 
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SKIN CANCER - SELF EXAM 

• Using a mirror in a well lit room, check the front of your body -face, neck, 

shoulders, arms, chest, abdomen, thighs and lower legs. 

• Turn sideways, raise your arms and look carefully at the right and left sides of 

your body, including the underarm area. 

• With a hand-held mirror, check your upper back, neck and scalp. Next, 

examine your lower back, buttocks, backs of thighs and calves. 

• Examine your forearms, palms, back of the hands, fingernails and in between 

each finger. 

• Finally, check your feet - the tops, soles, toenails, toes and spaces in between. 

~ -save your skin ~ .,._ ,,...,~b. ,,., . ~~ sauve ta peau 
•rl\ 
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SKIN CANCER - PROTECT YOURSELF! 

No cancer, including melanoma, can ever be prevented with 

100% certainty. The good news with melanoma is that the risk 

factors are well known, so steps can be taken to dramatically 

reduce your risk of developing this deadly disease. 

save your skin .... .,._ 
•ou , 041oO.. sauve ta peau 

• 
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SKIN CANCER - PROTECT YOU RS ELF! 

• Always have sunscreen with you so you can apply it whenever an 

unplanned outdoor activity arises 

• Use a sunscreen with an SPF of at least 30 whenever you are outdoors 

(even on grayer days) 

• Wear protective clothing with long sleeves, hats, and sunglasses 

• Check for changes in moles, new moles and see your doctor immediately 

if anything is suspicious 

• Limit sun exposure between 10 am and 4 pm 

• Do not use tanning beds 
.jt'_. 

save your skin ~ ..--
.,cu .. ... ,u., ,.a.. ~ ... sauve ta peau 

·m 
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SKIN CANCER - HOW OFTEN SHOULD 
I GET CHECKED? 

Get a cancer-related checkup by a doctor, including skin 
examination, every three years between ages 20 and 40 and 
annually for those 40 and older. 

See a doctor immediately if you notice any warning signs. It's 
important to check your own skin, preferably once per month. 

save your sk1r, ~•-❖ , Ou •,q ;, U tO t,,, Sauve ta peau 
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OCULAR MELANOMA - FACTS 

Ocular Melanoma (OM) is rare, but like other melanomas, it 
begins in melanocytes - the cells that produce the pigments 
melanin that colors the skin, hair, and eyes, as well as forms 
moles. Also referred to as uveal melanoma, ocular melanoma 
can be rapid and aggressive. 

save your skin .,._,_ ♦l 'o ... ~u.,,.. . sauve ta peau 
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WHAT IS THE 
SUNSCREEN 
DISPENSER INITIATIVE? 
Save Your Skin Foundation will work 
with partners to install sunscreen 
dispensers in several municipalities 
across Canada. 

These touch-free dispensers will 
provide free, SPF 30+ broad spectrum 
sunscreen. 
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GOAL 

• To launch a 2-year pilot to evaluate the value to communities 
of these dispensers 

• Du ring the pilot, to install 2-4 dispensers in each target 
province: Alberta, British Columbia, Manitoba, 
Saskatchewan, New Brunswick, Quebec & PEI. 

• If pilot is successful, to transition ownership of the project to 
participating municipalities to ensure its long-term 
sustainability 

❖ save your skin .,.,_ 
•o~ •~"' '"~ sauve ta peau 

' 
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SUNSCREEN DISPENSERS - EXAMPLES OF PROJECTS 
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SUN SHADE STRUCTURES TROUGH 
ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN 

save your skin <>'""°""" '"" ~~•• •o.. sauve ta peau ,, 
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Thank you! 
Save Your Skin Foundation was founded in 2006 by 
melanoma survivor Kathleen Barnard. We help those 
with melanoma find the latest treatments and provide 

support for those who need it. 

If you or someone you know has been touched by skin 
cancer and is in need of assistance, please reach out to 
us at 1-800-460-5832 or info@saveyourskin.ca or visit 

newlyd1agnosed.saveyoursk1n.ca 
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QUESTIONS? 

• 
save your skin • ,...,_,_ 

l"l'l-V "'l n ~TfOllt 9P Sauve ta peau 



2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_039

NBISPJJ 
New Brunswick International Student Program 
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Canada is one of the world's most 
popular study destinations: 224 

students enrolled in NBISP South 
2022-23 

Right now, we have students from 
22 countries enrolled, such as 

Turkey, Switzerland, Spain, 
Mexico, Japan, Thailand, Brazil, 

Bulgaria, Spain, Germany, Serbia, 
Columbia, France, Chile, China, 

Poland and more! 
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-

Contributes to our education system: Financially and culturally 
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Boosts our economy through 
spending on retail, dining 

and transportation bringing 
more money in & more jobs 
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• - - . -~ - - -------......__-=:::::-----,· --- - -
- a • • - • 

_________ . .., _ ,..._ ---
Many choose to go to College or University in New Brunswick 



2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_048

NBISP NEEDS 
YOUR HELP 

to find more host, so 
we can have more 
students come to 
New Brunswick, 

currently we have 
120 homes. 

NBIS 
New Brunswick International Student Program 
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By increasing Community 
Awareness 

I 
I 
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Have more people & 
businesses talking about 

NBISP 

Post welcome signs to 
students throughout the 

community 

Brochures displayed in 
public areas/information 

stands. 

HOST NEEDED! 
Every year, high school students from all over the world 
choose New Brunswick for a cultural and academic 
experience. Our school and homestay program are well 
recognized and respected in NB and abroad. 

JOIN OUR TEAM, BECOME A HOST 
• A lasting friendship that crosses oceans and years -

the instant expansion of your family! 
• New cross-cultural perspective and a globalized world 

view 
• A fresh and new perspective of your own country 

gained through the eyes of the international student 
• Rediscovering your local community 
• Lifelong memories and experiences, mutual learning 

Receive a bi­

weekly stipend 

& 
Access $Upport 

24{7 from AEI 

team 

and teaching APPLY TODAY! 
AEJ "..:= j For more information visit NBISP.CA 

- Contact wendy.brooks@gnb.ca NBISPJJ 
"'-9'.,....,o ".,...,..,.,_t1..,..-, flt(IVn 
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Graphics displayed 
on public social 

media 
accounts/websites. 

NBISPJJ AEI Atlantic 
Education 

International 
New Brunswick International Student Program Growing New Brunswick Leaming Partnershi()S WorldwidE 

~ ~ HOHE ~-pwoRLO 
HOST AN INTERNATIONAL STUDENT t,1150&-259-',828 
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NBISP 
representatives/students 
invited to public events 

DEBBIE THOMAS 
REGIONAL MANAGER 
ANGLOPHOtlE SCHOOL DISTRICT SOUTH 

• 565 Priest man Street, Suite 30 I 
Fredericton, New Brunswick, Canada E38 5X8 

-- -

cm (506) 643·0179 l'.-:l WWW.Af l·INC.CA 

NBOSP.. Bn,#swack 
--· --"•- C' .. "" ... 0 .. 

Are you interested in hosting an 
international student? 

CALL TODAY 

WENDY BROOKS 
HOMESTAY ADMINISTRATOR 

~~Olst"'t Sclllt!I 
-- ---- - - -- ---- -

1 CHL 1506) 259-4826 wendy brooks@gnb co W''ilW A[I-INC CA 
I 

-li­Brunsw1ck 
'I "' "' . ... 
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Liz Hazlett

From: Mary Jane Banks
Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 8:56 AM
To: Liz Hazlett
Subject: FW: Rothesay Train Station

 
 
From: Mary Jane Banks  
Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 8:56 AM 
To:   
Cc: Nancy Grant <NancyGrant@rothesay.ca> 
Subject: FW: Rothesay Train Station 
 
Good morning and thank you for your email. 
 
It will be provided to Council for its next meeting on Monday, May 8, 2023. 
 
Enjoy your day~ 
 
Mary Jane 
 
Mary Jane E. Banks, BComm, NACLAA II 
Town Clerk – Rothesay 
Head of the Public Body (RTIPPA) 
Director of Administrative Services 
70 Hampton Road 
Rothesay, NB E2E 5L5 
 
p (506)848-6664 
f (506)848-6677 
Before printing, please think about the environment. Respectez l’environnement, réfléchissez avant d’imprimer 
 

From:   
Sent: Monday, April 10, 2023 12:25:28 PM 
To: Nancy Grant <NancyGrant@rothesay.ca> 
Subject: Rothesay Train Station  
  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 
links, especially from unknown senders. 

Dear Mayor Grant; 

As you may have heard, the Rothesay Train Station is for sale. A group of residents have researched 
the other, much younger, surviving train Stations in the Maritimes and found that many have been 
acquired by their Municipality. They use them as museum space, visitors' centres, etc. One example 
is Sussex, which is not the original building but houses 2 museums as well as an ice cream parlour! 
Our Station is our community's original (1858) and in the original location Train Station as well as 
being the oldest in the Maritimes and one of the oldest in Canada. 
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It is unique. We hope that our Town Council will consider buying it for use as a Museum ( Rothesay 
Living Museum presently has no display space such as this), other groups can use the space for a 
variety of purposes, catered events, etc. If other communities can do it, why not us? As a non profit, 
the Town also qualifies for Federal and Provincial grants.  

This is an opportunity to make a lasting gift to our Community; a gift that represents our heritage 
since the Train Station was a key factor in our growth. It will be useful for the community as well as an 
attraction for visitors. 

Hopefully, you will take the first step and explore the possibilities of acquiring this Landmark. 

Yours, 
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NDY 

April 20, 2023 

Town of Rothesay 
70 Hampton Rd 
Rothesay, NB 
E2E 5Y2 

RECEIVED 

APR 2 1 2023 

Attention: Mayor Dr. Nancy Grant and the Town Council 

Your Worship, 

Fundy Gymnastics Club 
18 Enterprise Drive 

Quispamsls, NB, E2G OA4 
Tel: 506-847-4960 

Email: fundygymnastlcs@llve.ca 
Web: www.fundygymnastlcs.com 

I am writing on behalf of Fundy Gymnastics Club to ask if you would kindly consider 
charging a non-profit rate for the use of the Bill Maguire Centre. 

The club has booked the centre for its annual awards celebration for its athlete 
recognition banquet on Saturday, June 17th• We understand that the Council is no 
longer offering non-profit organizations a reduced rate, which we have benefited from in 
previous years. In the past, we have paid $125 for the whole day. It appears that the 
new published rate is $500 for 8 Hours (we would need at least 6/7 hours for the setup 
and the banquet, as we are supported only by the gymnasts' parents.) 

A little bit about Fundy Gymnastics Club: we are a globally recognized gymnastics club 
based in the Kennebecasis Valley. Our winning strategy is adhering to three 
characteristics that define us as gymnasts: hard work, dedication, and perseverance. By 
never wavering from these foundations, we've experienced an amazing amount of 
victories and successes. 

Our organization started from the ground up, more than thirty years ago. Much like the 
development of a gymnast through our growth cycle - recreational, development, 
competitive - we have overcome many hurdles to be recognized as a powerhouse 
club. We could not have accomplished this without the support of local area 
governments. We currently have over 150 Rothesay families enrolled in our spring 
programs. The $375 that we would save with a non-profit rate (or the grandfathering of 
our previous rate), in addition to donations from other local governments, goes a long 
way in keeping our program cost affordable to many local families. 

Thank you for considering our request. 

Sincerely, 

Nancy Blanton, Gym Manager 
and the Board of Fundy Gymnastics 
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Liz Hazlett

From: Liz Hazlett
Sent: Wednesday, May 3, 2023 1:55 PM
To: Liz Hazlett
Subject: FW: PCE Port City Elite not-for-profit rental of Bill McGuire Memorial Center

From: Jenn Arseneault <jenn@portcityelite.ca>  
Sent: Wednesday, May 3, 2023 11:06 AM 
To: Rothesay Info <rothesay@rothesay.ca> 
Subject: PCE Port City Elite not-for-profit rental of Bill McGuire Memorial Center 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 
links, especially from unknown senders. 

Good Morning, 

  

I am writing on behalf of PCE Port City Elite regarding a rental of the Bill McGuire Memorial Center. 

  

Port City Elite serves as a not-for-profit organization providing affordable access to All Star Cheerleading and tumbling in 

the heart of Saint John. Opened in December of 2021 by Program Director Allie Gorman, the gym has provided a place of 

learning and growth for more than 70 youth ages 2+ in Saint John and surrounding areas. 

As our season ends and we prepare for the new season to begin, we  take time each spring to reflect on 

accomplishments as a group and to recognize individuals for their triumphs and resilience both on and off the mat. We 

do this in the form of a year end banquet. This provides us, the Port City Elite staff, an opportunity to celebrate with 

everyone that makes the season so special – parents/guardians, coaches, athletes, and board members. 

  

Thank you for taking the time to review this letter in consideration of our eligibility for a not-for-profit rate. 

  

Warm Regards, 

Jenn Arseneault 

Port City Elite – Assistant Program Director 
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DRAFT 

KENNEBECASIS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT INC. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

8.1 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors ofKennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of the Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc., (the 
"Department") which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, and the 
statements of operations, changes in net debt and cash flows fur the year then ended and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fa irly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. as at December 3 1, 2022, and the results of its operations, 
changes in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Department in accordance with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have 
fttlfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accotdance with those requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statemenls 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing lhe financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Department's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Department or to cease 
operations, or has no recllistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Department1s financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

(continues) 

r, 
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Board of Directors ofKennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. 
(cont'd) 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 

of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Department's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Department's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Department to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS 

Saint John, New Brunswick 
April 12, 2023 

2. 
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KENNEBECASIS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT INC. 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT DECEMBER 3 t, 2022 

FINANCIAL ASSETS 
Cash (Note 4) s 
Accounts receivable 

General 
Due from member municipalities (Note 6) 
Federal Government and its agencies (Note 5) 

$ 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities s 
Accrued sick leave liability (Note 7) 
Accrued liability for retirement pay aUowance (Note 8) 
Post employment benefits payable (Note 9) 

NET DEBT 

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 
Tangible capital assets (Note 11) 

988,234 

675,057 
165,532 

1,828.823 

1,010,173 
330,921 
656,603 
178 200 

2,175 897 

(H2 074) 

9,265,750 
Accumulated amortization (Note 11) (3,954,572) 

5 311,178 

Prepaid expenses 16,750 

ACCUMlJLATED SURPLUS £ 4,980,854 

COMMITMENT (Note l 0) 

APPROVED BY: 

Chairperson 

Treasurer 

3. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

878,831 

199,097 
45,057 

l,122.985 

154,043 
489,638 
572,853 
159 800 

I .l:Z6 334 

(253 349) 

7,541,876 
(3,635,556) 

3,906 320 

31652197L 
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KENNEBECASIS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT JNC. 

ST A TEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

ml 2flll lOll 
Budget Actual Actual 

(Note l3) 

REVENUE (Note 6) 
Contributions by member municipalities - operating $ 5,636,874 $ 5,636,874 $ 5,419,084 
Contributions by member municipalities - capital 1,710,107 274,243 
Fee structure 276 
Interest 5,000 2 1,016 5,989 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 17,144 
Miscellaneous I ooo I 518 

5 642 874 7 369.515 5 716 736 

EXPENDITURE 
Administration 801,548 765,158 738,615 
Firefighting force 4,125,414 4,177,399 3,730,2 10 
Telecommunications 212,910 212,302 204,295 
Insurance 55,504 57,722 52,362 
Prevention and training 58,500 53,129 32,799 
Facilities (Note 6) 266,897 262,094 274,372 
Fleet 282,250 291 ,381 267,058 
Operations 128,552 133,568 120,150 
Water costs 33,452 33,453 32,482 
Retirement allowance 52,975 52,975 63,212 
Other 3,000 2 451 

6,021 002 6,041.632 5,515 555 

ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFIOT) 
FOR THE YEAR (Note 12) $ (378,J 28) 1,327,883 201,181 

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS-
BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,652,971 3 451 790 

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS-
END OF YEAR $ 4.980,854 $ 3.652,971 

Amortization included in the above expenditure $ 3 19,016 $ 345.898 

4. 
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K.ENNEBECASIS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT INC. 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022 

2.llll 

Annual surplus $ 1,327,883 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets {1,723,874) 
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 319,016 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 

Acquisition of prepaid assets (16,750) 

Decrease (increase) in net debt (93,725) 

Net debt - beginning of year (253,349) 

Net debt - end of year s .(3471074) 

s. 

$ 

$ 

2illl 

201,181 
(322,778) 

20,286 
345,898 
(17 144) 

227,443 

(480 792) 

(2531349) 
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KENNEBECASIS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT INC. 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

OPERA TING TRANSACTIONS 
Annual surplus $ 1,327,883 $ 20 I, 18 I 
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (17,144) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 319,016 345,898 
Accounts receivable - General 
Accounts receivable - Due from member municipalities (475,960) (135,763) 
Accounts receivable - Federal Government and its agencies (120,475) 87,621 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 856,130 (26,136) 
Accrued sick leave liability (158,717) (190,932) 
Accrued liability for retirement pay allowance 67,000 67,000 
Post employment benefits payable 18,400 14,200 
Prepaid expenses !6 750 

1,833,277 345,925 
CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,723,874) (322,778) 
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 20286 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 109,403 43,433 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 878 831 835 328 

CASH - END OF YEAR $ 988,234 $ 8781831 

REPRESENTED BY: 
Cash - operating $ 373,970 $ 343,748 
Cash - retirement allowance 614,264 535.083 

$ 9881234 $ 8781831 

6. 
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KENNEBECASIS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

t. PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION 

The Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. (the "Department") provides fire prevention, fire 
protection, fire-fighting, fire investigation services and medical first response to the Towns of 
Quispamsis, Rothesay and certain outlaying areas. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the Department are the representations of management prepared in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for local government, as 
recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the Chartered Professional 
Accountants of Canada. 

The focus of Public Sector Accounting Standards ("PSAS") financial statements is on the financial 
position of the Department and the changes thereto. The Statement of Financial Position includes all 
of the assets and liabilities of the Department. 

Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Department are as follows: 

Financial Instruments 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acqui:red or issued. In Sllbsequent periods, 
equity instruments with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with any unrealized gains 
and losses reported in annual surplus (deficit). All other financial instruments are reported at 
amortized cost, and tested for impairment at each reporting date. Transaction costs on the acquisition, 
sale, or issue of financial instruments are expensed when incurred. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances with financial institutions. 

Revenue Recognition 

The contributions from the member municipalities and the local service districts are recognized when 
the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Interest 
and other income are recorded on an accrual basis, when the amount to be received can be reasonably 
estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

Expenditure Recognition 

Expenditures are recorded on an accrual basis. 

1. 
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KENNEBECASIS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 

Measurement Uncertainty 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accountfag 
standards requires management to make estimates that affect the reported amount of assets and 
liabilities ahd disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amount of revenue and expenditure during the reporting period. These estimates are 
reviewed periodically, and as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in earnings in the 
period in which they become known. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Examples of significant estimates include: 
- providing for amortization of tangible capital assets; 
• the estimated useful lives of tangible capital assets; 
• the recoverability of tangible capital assets; 
· accrued sick leave liability; 
- accrued retirement pay allowance; and 
- accrued post employment benefits. 

Tangible Capital Assets 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost of the tangible capital 
assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

Asset Type 
Buildings 
Vehicles 
Equipment 

Estimated Useful Life 
20-40 years 
4-25 years 
4-20 years 

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use. 

The Department regularly reviews its capital assets to eliminate obsolete items. 

Post Employment Benefits 

The Department recognizes its obligations under post employment benefit plans and the related costs) 
net of plan assets. The Department has a retirement pay allowance as documented in Note 8 and u 
pension plan as documented in Note 9. 

Economic Dependence 

The Department receives funding from Quispamsis and Rothesay, which accounts for a significant 
portion of revenues. · 

8. 
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KENNEBECASIS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Department is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive 
risk management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks. The following analysis 
provides infonnation about the Department's risk exposure and concentration as of December 31 , 
2022: 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The 
Department is exposed !o er-edit risk from its accounts receivable. T~e Department's credit risk is 
mitigated by the fact that its accounts receivable consist primarily of funds due from the Federal 
Government and the contributing municipalities. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. The Department is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its receipt of funds 
from its accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and other obligations. 

Currency Risk 

Currency risk is the risk to the Department's earnings that arise from fluctuations of foreign exchange 
rates and the degree of volatility of these rates. The Department is not exposed to foreign currency 
risk as it does not hold foreign currencies. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a 
change in the interest rates. In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, the 
Department manages exposure through its normal operating activities. The Department is not exposed 
to significant interest rate risk as it does not have short term or long term debt. 

4. CASH 

2!lll 

Cash - operating S 373,970 
Restricted cash - retirement allowance (Note 8) 614 264 

$ 988.234 

5. DUE FROM FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AND ITS AGENCIES 

2Dll 

Canada Revenue Agency (HST refund) $ 1_65.532 

9. 

lJlll. 

$ 343,748 
535 083 

$ 878,831 

ml 

45057 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Department is related to Quispamsis and Rothesay, as the two Municipalities jointly control the 
Department. The Department received a property tax rebate m the amount of $56,322 (202 l -
$57,138) from Rothesay, which is netted against the property tax expenditure. The Department also 
entered a new dispatch agreement with the Municipalities during the year, the amount was $206,210 
(2021 - $200,371), During the year, the Department recognized the following contributions from the 
Municipalities as revenue: 

Quispamsis - Operating 
Rothesay - Operating 

Quispamsis - Capital 
Rothesay - Capital 

7. ACCRUED SICK LEA VE LIABILITY 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2illl 

3,329,567 
2,307 307 

5.636.874 

1,010,742 
699,365 

117101107 

lilll 

$ 3,209,625 
2 209,459 

$ 5.419.084 

$ 1(>3, 190 
111.053 

$ 274,243 

The Department provides every employee a sick leave entitlement that accumulates at a rate of 18 
hours per month while the employee's sick bank is below 1,000 hours, and 13.5 hours per month while 
the sick bank is above 1,000 hours. All employees can accumulate to a maximum of2,184 hours and 
can take a leave with pay by virtue of be.ing sick or disabled, quarantined by a physician or Health 
Authority, or because of an accident or disease for which compensation is not payable under the 
Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation Commission Act or a long tenn disability plan. An 
employee is no longer entitled to accumulate sick leave if the employee has been off active duty, for 
any reason, for 120 consecutive calendar days or longer. AU employees have 12 hours per year taken 
from their accumulated sick days and moved to a group sick bank until contributions collectively 
result in an accumulation of 3,000 working hours. For the purpose of the actuarial valuation 
described below, the group sick bank has been ignored since its use has been minimal in the past and 
its impact on the actuarial liability and normal cost is expected to be negligible. 

An actuarial valuation was performed by Morneau Shepell as at December 31, 2020 on the 37 
employee plan in accordance with PSA 3255. The actuarial method used was the projected unit credit 
pro-rated on service to expected usage. The valuation was based on a number of assumptions about 
future events, such as interest rates, wage and saJary increases imd employee turnover and retirement. 
The assumptions used reflect the Department's best estimates. The following summarizes the major 
assumptions in the valuation: 

- annual salary increase is 2.25%; 
- the discount rate used to determine the accl"\led benefit obligation is 1. 99% (2018 - 3 .07%); 
- retirement age is 60; and 
- estimated net excess utilization of rate of sick leave is independent of age. 

The sick leave is an unfunded benefit and as such, there are no applicable assets. Benefits are 
paid out of revenue as they come due. The calculated unfunded liability as at December 31 , 2022 
is $330,921 (2021 - $489,638). 

IO. 
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KENNEBECASIS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

8. ACCRUED LIABILITY FOR RETIREMENT PAY ALLOWANCE 

Retiring employees are entitled to four weeks' regular salary for every five years of employment to a 
maximum of24 weeks salary based on a minimum of ten years service. This benefit only applies to 
emp]oyees who have reached the age of 55 years. Upon the death of a full-time employee prior to 
retirement, a prorated benefit equal to four weeks' regular salary for every five years of employment 
shall be paid to the employee's named beneficiary or estate. 

An actuarial valuation was prepared by Morneau Shepell as at December 31, 2020 for the 
Department's 43 members in accordance with PSA 3250 & 3255. The actuarial method used was the 
projected unit credit method. The present value of the accrued liability as at December 31 , 2022 is 
estimated to be $656,603 (2021 - $572,853). 

The following summarizes the major assumptions in the valuation: 

- Discount rate used was 5.70%; 
- Salary increases 2.10% per annum; and 
- retirement age of 60 years old. 

The activity for the year is as follows: 
2.Qll 2fil1 

Balance at beginning of year $ 572,853 $ 505,853 
Add: Benefit expense 67,000 67,000 

Prepaid benefit 16,750 
Interest earned 14025 3,188 

670,628 576,641 
Less: Retirement benefits paid 

670,628 576,641 
Change in liability based on PSAS requirements Wl 025) (3,188) 

Accrued liability for retirement pay allowance at end of year $ 656,603 $ 572,853 

The Department has restricted $614,264 (2021 - $535,083) in cash towards the funding of this 
liability (Note 4). 

9. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAY ABLE 

The Department and its employees participate in the New Brunswick Municipal Employees Pensiort 
Pll~o ("NBMEPP"). The NBMEPP is a multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered 
by a board elected by the members under the provisions of the Municipalities Act of New Brunswick. 
The NBMEPP provides pensions based on length of service and best average earnings. 

Actuarial valuations fot funding purposes are performed either annually or triennially depending on 
the financial position of the NBMEPP (currently annually). In turn, the actuarial valuations for 
accounting purposes are based on these figures (with adjustments). The most recent actuarial 
valuation was prepared as at December 31, 2020 and resulted in an overall NBMEPP accrued benefit 
obligation of $135, 126, I 00 based on the accounting basis. 

The actuarial valuation for accounting purposes was based on a number of assumptions about future 
events, such as inOation rates, interest rates, wage and saJary increases and employee turnover and 
mortality. The assumptions used reflect management's best estimates. 

ll. 
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KENNEBECASIS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

9. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE (cont'd) 

The following summarizes the major assumptions in the valuation as at December 31 , 2021: 

- the expected inflation rate is 2. 10% (prior 2. 10%); 
- the discount rate used to determine the accrued benefit obligation is 5.70% (prior 5.55%); 
- the expected rate of return on assets is 5.70% (prior 5.55%); 
- retirement age varies by age and employment category; and 
- estimated average remaining service life (EARSL) is 14 .0 years (prior l 3.0 years). 

The actuarial valuation prepared as at December 31, 2020 indicated that the market value of the net 
assets available for the accumulated plan benefits were less than the present value of these benefit s, 
The pension plan has been granted a solvency deficiency exemption by the Province of New 
Brunswick. 

On a going concern valuation basis, the actuarial valuation indicated a plan deficit of $833,500, a 
change of $191,700 from the December 3 I , 2019 deficit of $641,800. Based on the assumptions as at 
December 31, 2020, the actuary expected the level of employer and employee contributions to be 
sufficient to fund the current service cost and going concern special payments, as required by the 
Pensions Benefits Act. 

As at December 3 I, 2020, the NBMEPP provides benefits for 294 retirees. Total benefit payments to 
retirees and tenninating employees during 2022 are estimated to be approximately $4,957,200 (actual 
2021 - $6,360,300) in totality for the NBMEPP. 

Employees make contributions using rates that vary by earnings level and employment category, with 
an overall average contribution rate of approximately 8.00%. Each participating body contributes an 
amount that equa.ls their employees' contribution amounts. Pension Fund Assets are invested in Short 
Term Securities, Bonds, Canadian Equities and Foreign Equities. Combined employees and 
municipalities contributions for 2022 are estimated to be approximately S7,421 ,400 (actual 202,J -
$7,235,200) in totality for the NBMEPP. 

The following summarizes the NBMEPP data as it relates to the Department: 

• The average age of the 43 active employees covered by the NBMEPP is 43.3 (202 1 - 42.7); 
- Benefit payments were $527,600 in 2021 and were estimated to be $527,600 in 2022; and 
- Combined contributions were S569,400 in 2021 and were estimated to be $575,600 in 2022. 

In addition to determining the position of the NBMEPP as it relates to the Department as at December 
31 , 2020 and December 31, 2021, NBMEPP's actuary performed an extrapolation of the December 
3 1, 2021 accounting valuation to determine the estimated position as at December 31, 2022. The 
extrapolation assumes assumptions used as at December 31, 2022 remain unchanged from December 
31, 2021. The extrapolation also assumes assets return of 5.70%, net of all fees and expenses. If 
experience is different than assumed, amounts will be adjusted to reflect actual experience. 

12. 
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KENNEBECASJS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT INC. 

NOTES TO FINANClAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

9. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PA\' ABLE (cont'd) 

Results of the extrapolation are as follows: 

Accrued Benefit Liability 
Accrued benefit liability at beginning of period 
Adjustment to actual 
Pension expense for the year 
Employer contributions 

Accrued benefit liability at end of period 

Estimated 
Jan I ; 2022 lo 
Dec 31, 2022 

$ 159,800 
48,000 

258,200 
{287,800) 

s 178,200 

Jan I, 2021 to 
Dec 31, 2021 

S 145,600 
127,000 
189,800 

(302 600) 

$ 159,800 

In summary, the accrued benefit liability as it related lo the Department is estimated lo be $178,200 as 
at December 31, 2022. This compares to $145,600 as at January I, 2021 and $159,800 as at 

December 31, 2021. The December 31, 2021 liability was estimated in the prior year. The actual 
liability was calculated to be $207,800. The difference of $48,000 has been recorded in the current 
year. 

The financial position as it relates to the accrued benefit liability is shown as follows and illustrates 
the unamortized amounts being recognized in pension expense over time: 

Reconciliation of Funded Status at End of Period 
Accrued benefit obligation 
Plan assets 

Plan deficit 
Adjustment to 2021 actual 
Unamortized experience losses 

Accrued benefit liability at end of period 

Estimated 
Jan 1, 2021 to 
Dec 31. 2022 

$ 14,877,400 
1~601.600 

275,800 

(97,600) 

$ 178,200 

Jan I, 2021 to 
Dec 31. 2021 

$14,080,400 
13 767,500 

312,900 
(48,000) 

(105,100) 

s 159.800 

The following illustrates the reconciliation of accrued benefit obligation from the beginning of period 
to the end of period: 

Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation 
Accrued benefit obligation at beginning of period 
Current service cost 
Benefit payments 
Interest for period 
Experience gain during period 

Accrued benefit obligation at end of period 

13. 

Estimated 
Jan I , 2022 to 
Dec 31, 2022 

$ 14,080,400 
522,200 

(527,600) 
802,400 

$ 14.877.400 

Jan 1, 2021 to 
Dec 31, 2021 

$13,534,800 
498,900 

(527,600) 
750,400 

(176,100) 

$ 14.080.400 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3 l, 2022 

9. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE (cont'd) 

The following illustrates the reconciliation of plan assets .from the beginning of period to the end of 
period: 

Reconciliation of Plan Assets 
Plan assets at beginning of period 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 
Benefit payments 
Return on plan assets during period 

Plan assets at end of period 

Estimated 
Jan 1, 2022 to 
Dec 31. 2022 

$ 13,767,500 
287,800 
287,800 

(527,600) 
786 100 

$ 14,601,600 

Total expense related to pensions include the following components: 

Pension Expense 
Employer current service cost 
Interest on accrued benefit obligation 
Expected return on assets 
Experience loss (gain) 

Pension expense 

Estimated 
Jan 1, 2022 to 
De.c 3 l. 2022 

$ 234,400 
802,400 

(786,100) 
7 500 

$ 258200 

Jan l , 2021 to 
Dec 31. 2021. 

$ 13,320,900 
279,400 
290,000 

(527,600) 
404 800 

$ 13.767,500 

Jan 1, 2021 to 
Dec 31, 2021 

$ 208,900 
750,400 

(740,500) 
(4 200) 

$ 2 14.600 

The pension expense is included in the Statement of Operations. The 2021 pension expense was 
estimated to be $189,800. The difference between the 2021 estimated and actual expense has been 
recorded as an expense of the current period. 

IO. COMMITMENT 

Office Equipment Lease 

The Department has entered into a lease agreement with Xerox Canada Ltd. to provide use of a 
photocopier. In 2018, the Department committed to $478 per quarter payable over 60 months 
commencing on January 16, 2019. The future minimum annual payment over the next year is $1,912. 

14. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

11. SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 

2022 2021 
Land Buildings Vehicles Egulement Total TotJtl 

COST 

Balance - beginning of year $ 100.049 $3,182,436 $3,517,689 $ 741 ,702 $7,541,876 $7,269,357 

Add: Net additions during the year 1,710,107 13,767 1,723,874 322,778 

Less: Disposals during the year ,so 259) 

Balance • end of year lQQ,049 ~ 822 543 3 i.1U56 741 7Q2 2 265,750 1,HI 876 

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION 

Balance• beginning of year 1,573,303 1,673,738 388,51 S 3,635,556 3,336,775 

Add: Amortization during the year 78,264 179,200 61,552 319,016 345,898 

Less: Accumulated amorlization on disposals (47 117) 

Balance• end of year I 651 567 1,852 938 45Q)Q67 3 954 572 3 635 'i56 

NET BOOK VALUE OF TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS $ 1001049 $3,2401976 $ 1,678,S 18 $ 291,635 $51311,178 $3,906,320 

) 5. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

t2. RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

Operating Capital 
Fund Fund 

2022 annual surplus (deficit) - PSAS $ (63 209) $ J .391.092 

Adjustments to annual surplus for funding requirements 
Second previous year's surplus 2 13,454 
Amortizat ion expense 319,0 16 
Provision for vested retirement benefits~ pension 18,400 
Change in amount recorded imder PSAS sick leave accrual ( 158,717) 
Change in retirement allowance liability < 14_025) 

Total adjustments to 2022 annual surplus (deficit) 59 112 319 0!6 

2022 annual surplus {deficjt) for funding requirements $ 141097) $ 117101108 

16. 

Total 

$ 1 327 883 

2 13,454 
319,016 

18,400 
(158,717) 

(14,025) 

378 128 

$1 1706101 l 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

l3. OPERATING BUDGET TO PSAS BUDGET 

Operating Amortization 
Budget and Long Term 
General Accruals Transfers Total 

REVENUE 
Contributions by member municipalities - operating $ 5,636,874 $ $ $ 5,636,874 
Local service districts 
Miscellaneous 1,000 1,000 
Interest 5,000 5,000 
Surplus of second previous year 2)3 454 (213 454) 

5,856,328 (213 454) 5,642 874 

EXPENDITURE 
Administration 798,551 2,997 801 ,548 
Firefighting force 4,268,728 (143,314) 4,125,414 
Telecommunications 212,910 212,910 
lnsurance 55,504 55,504 
Prevention and training 58,500 58,500 
Facilities 188,633 78,264 266,897 
Fleet 103,050 179,200 282,250 
Operations 67,000 61 ,552 128,552 
Water costs 33,452 33,452 
Retirement allowance 67,000 (14,025) 52,975 
Other 3,000 3 000 

5 856 328 I 64 674 6 02) 002 

Deficit $ $ (164!674) $ t2131454) $ '3781128) 

17. 
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. ROTHESAY 

21 April 2023 

Dear 

Re: Spring Freshet 2023 

The Town is mindful of rising river levels and the vulnerability of 
waterfront properties in Rothesay. Based on topographical 
information and historic conditions, your home has been identified as 
one that may be subject to flooding should water levels rise to those 
experienced in 2018 and 2019. This letter is to let you know what the 
Town is doing in preparation for potential flooding and to inquire 
about plans you may have to mitigate damages to your property. 

The Town is dependent on forecasting by the Provincial Government 
regarding potential flooding. The River Watch site is the primary 
source of information available to the municipality and we receive the 
information in the same manner as other users. You may wish to 
monitor the Provincial Government's site at: 

https://www2.gnb.ca/content/gnb/en/news/public alerts/river watch.html 

A significant number of property owners have chosen to modify their 
properties to reduce vulnerability to flooding. We encourage others to 
consider doing the same. The primary responsibility for protecting 
your property rests with you, the owner. You may wish to seek 
professional guidance in the construction of such improvements. In 
cooperation with the Provincial Government, the Town has acquired a 
supply of sandbags and will have some filled sandbags available. 

Please note that the Town does not have the capacity to provide 
filled sandbags for every waterfront residence that may 
ultimately need them. Property owners are encouraged to make 
prior arrangements with contractors, family or friends to assist 
in filling, transporting and placing sandbags. 

Explore our past / Explorez notre pa5se 
Discover your future / Decouvrez votre avenir 

Grand Bay-Westfield • Quispamsis • Rothesay • St. Martins • Saint John 

...2 

70 Hampton Road 
Rothesay, NB 

Canada E2E SLS 

T: 506-848-6600 
F:506-848-6677 

Rothesay@rothesay.ca 
www.rothesay.ca 
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The Provincial Government has advised that the Town cannot depend 
on military assistance and property owners should endeavour to be 
self-sufficient to the extent possible. During a flood, Town resources 
are directed to protecting public assets, providing relevant information 
and coordinating activities with neighbouring municipalities and 
provincial EMO. 

There are no significant changes in how the Town would propose to 
address a high freshet in 2023. A supply of sandbags will be delivered 
to those requesting them to the extent the supply lasts. At some point 
it may be necessary to discontinue wastewater services and if so, 
portable toilets will be provided. We expect potable water will be 
provided along with test kits for wells and cleanup kits if desired. 

Waterfront property owners are encouraged to plan for the possibility 
of flood conditions. As part of this planning, we request you notify the 
Town of any resources you expect to require and any specific services 
you hope to acquire from the Town. (For example, the number of 
sandbags you need would be helpful in allocating resources.) This 
information will be used in discussions with government about the 
support to be provided in case of a flood event. 

During flooding conditions, the Town will attempt to maintain 
communication with each neighbourhood through email and 
telephone. You are invited to register your email and telephone 
number with the Town office by sending an email to 
rothesay@rothesay.ca. Please be sure to identify the property(s) with 
which you are concerned. 

Thank you for your help. We trust, with the cooperation of all 
concerned, property damage and inconvenience to waterfront 
residents can be kept to a minimum. 

Cc 

, MCIP, RPP 

. er 

Rothesay Council 
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KENNEBECASIS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT INC BOARD MEETING 
FIRE STATION ONE, CAMPBELL DRIVE, ROTHESAY, NB 

FEBRUARY 8, 2023 

Present: Chair Kirk Miller 
Vice Chair Stephane Bolduc 
Treasurer Peter Lewis 
Commissioner Mike Biggar 
Commissioner Dave Brown 
Commissioner Patricia Murray 

1.0 Call to Order 

John Jarvie, Administrator 
Chief Mike Boyle 
Deputy Chief Shawn White 
Carlene MacBean, Executive Assistant 

Chair Miller called the meeting to order at 6: 11 pm and welcomed Patricia Murray as 
the new representative for Quispamsis. 

2.0 Chair's Remarks 

None 

3.0 Approval of Agenda 

Moved by M. Biggar and seconded by P. Lewis, that the agenda be approved as 
presented. 

CARRIED 

4.0 Conflict of Interest 

None 

5.0 Approval of Previous Minutes 

5.1 December 7, 2022 

Moved by P. Lewis and seconded by S. Bolduc, that the minutes of December 7, 2022 
be approved as presented. 

CARRIED 
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t<:V Fire Department Inc. - Fire Board Minutes 
February 8, 2023 

6.0 Unfinjshed Business 

6.1 Station Two - Renovation Update 

Page2 of 7 

Deputy Chief White reported that the project is coming along nicely and are 90% 
completed upstairs. The overhead doors and windows have arrived and are installed. 
Expect the crews to move upstairs in April so work can begin downstairs with that work 
expected to be complete by the end of May. 

Moved by 0. Brown and P. Murray to receive and file. 
CARRIED 

6.2 Regional Public Safety Committee 

Chief Boyle reported this committees is being created within the region - Welsford to 
Hampton. The representatives on the committee will be a representative from each of 
the fire departments and police departments. As this is a large number (30+) it may be 
broken into subcommittees (ie. fire with fire, police with police) which would then report 
back to the overall group. 

Moved by P. Lewis and seconded by D. Brown to receive and file. 
CARRIED 

7 .0 Correspondence 

7 .1 Letter from Quispamsis re: Fire Board Appointment of Patricia Murrj~ 

The Quispamsis Council has appointed Patricia Murray as their new representative as 
of January 1, 2023 until June 30, 2023. 

Moved by D. Brown and seconded by M. Biggar, to receive and file. 
CARRIED 
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February 8, 2023 

Page 3 of 7 

7.2 Letter from Quispamsis re: Approval of 2023 Operating & Capital Budgets 

The Quispamsis Council, at their November 15, 2022 meeting, approved the 
departments 2023 Operating and Capital Budgets. 

Moved by M. Biggar and seconded by P. Lewis, to receive and file. 
CARRIED 

7.3 Letter from Rothesay re: Fire Board Re-Appointment of Stephane Bolduc 

The Rothesay Council approved the re-appointment of Stephane Bolduc to the 
Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Board of Fire Commissioners until December 
31, 2024. 

Moved by P. Lewis and seconded by M. Biggar, to receive and file. 

8.0 New Business 

8.1 Election of Officers 
8.1.1 Chair 

CARRIED 

Commissioner Bolduc was nominated for the position of Chair and accepted the 
nomination. No other nominations were made. 

Moved by P. Murray and seconded by P. Lewis, that Commissioner Bolduc be 
elected as Chair for the 2023 term. 

CARRIED 

8.1 .2 Vice Chair 

Commissioner Miller was nominated for the position of Vice Chair and accepted 
the nomination. No other n.ominations were made. 

Moved by M. Biggar and seconded by P. Lewis, that Commissioner Miller be 
elected as Vice Chair for the 2023 term. 

CARRIED 
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8.1.3 Secretary Treasurer 

Page4 of7 

Commissioner Lewis was nominated for the position of Secretary Treasurer and 
accepted the nomination. No other nominations were made. 

Moved by S. Bolduc and seconded by P. Murray, that Commissioner Lewis be 
elected as Secretary Treasurer for the 2023 term. 

CARRIED 

8.2 2022 Annual Report 

Moved by S. Bolduc and seconded by P. Murray, to accept the 2022 Kennebecasis 
Valley Fire Department Annual Report and to send the online link, to the Town Clerks 
of Quispamsis and Rothesay to be distributed to both councils. 

CARRIED 

8.3 KVFD Public Survey 

A survey has been created to provide internal and external feedback on the 
operations of the department. Chief Boyle explained this is a part of the ongoing 
accreditation process. The survey link will be posted on all of the department's 
social feeds and sent to both Towns for them to do the same. 

Moved by P. Lewis and seconded by D. Brown for the survey link be sent to both 
councils before releasing onto their social feeds. 

CARRIED 

8.4 Fire Prevention Officer - Activity Update 

An update on the activities of the Fire Prevention Officer were provided: 
• The second week of October is known internationally as Fire Prevention Week in 

the fire service. The fall of 2022 was the first time in three years we were able to 
roll out all our public education programing for Fire Prevention Week which is 
primarily organized by the FPO. Planning begins in August and consists of an open 
house, firefighter for a day contest (all grade 3 students) and exhibits at local 
businesses. Our public outreach efforts focus on the Importance of having working 
smoke alarms and advertising our HomeSafe Program which consists of a 
voluntary home inspection. 
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Page 5 of 7 

• During the fourth week of October and first week of November, all nine public and 
private elementary schools celebrate career week with career fairs. The FPO is 
often requested to attend these events and ongoing visits to grade 3 classes with 
instructions on how to complete their home escape plans for our Firefighter for a 
Day contest continue. 

• As per the Office of the Fire Marshal, all schools are required to conduct one fire 
drill within the first five days of school and a total of three drills during the fall term. 
The fire department is requested to observe one of the drills in the fall and is often 
attended by the FPO while he is on-site for educational purposes. 

ACTIVITY NUMBERS REACHED 
0 en House 

FFFAD Contest 445 rade 3 students tau ht ::: 9 schools, 23 classes 
Career Fair 

• Efforts have continued with education inside mid-rise buildings in the community. 
Our departments partnership with Parkland in the Valley was restarted in 
November with our first annual presentation on fire safety and evacuation with the 
residents since the start of pandemic. FPO Willins presented fire safety 
information specifically related to the building and answered questions. The 
partnership also provides the opportunity for us to review their safety plan and 
gather information for emergency responses. Plans for firefighters to tour the 
building and a mock evacuation exercise have been discussed. 

• FPO Willins has been following a professional development plan to continue 
developing his skills as an FPO. He is in the final stages of his inspector level 1 & 2 
examinations and should be a certified fire inspector this spring. As part of his 
training, he has been accompanying Division Chief Trecartin and members from 
the Office of the Fire Marshal on inspections. His position will be a key resource in 
assisting other department inspectors with their training. 

• Both FPO Willins and Division Chief Trecartin maintain regular communication with 
the building inspectors from both towns. 

• FPO Willins is also working on his level 1 & 2 Fire Investigator course through Fire 
Wise and should be a certified fire investigator by summer of 2023. 

• FPO Willins will continue to work with owners and residents of multi-unit apartment 
buildings on pre-planning and fire safety education in addition to managing the fire 
prevention programs of the department. 

Moved by P. Lewis and seconded by D. Brown to receive and file. 
CARRIED 
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9.0 Financial 

Page 6 of7 

9.1 Draft Financial Statements for the Month Ended December 31, 202E 

Moved by S. Bolduc and seconded by M. Biggar to receive and file. 
CARRIED 

9.2 Budget Variance Analysis 

Moved by S. Bolduc and seconded by D. Brown to receive and file. 
CARRIED 

9.3 Capital Purchase - SCBA 

The approved 2023 Capital Budget includes $452,805 for the replacement of the 
SCBA inventory of the department. This replacement wiff include up to 24 air packs 
and 60 air cylinders. Depending on the manufacturer selected, there may also be a 
need for additional face pieces. 

Presentations have been delivered to the department by both suppliers of 3M Scott 
Fire & Safety and MSA Safety Incorporated; the department currently uses Scott air 
packs. A trial period is planned for both types of air pack. A tender was posted on 
NBON using Canoe procurement, which is also used by both towns. 

Moved by S. Bolduc and seconded by D. Brown to receive and file. 
CARRIED 

10.0 Business Arising from Committee of the Whole 

None 

11. 0 Reports 

11.1 Chiefs Report 

Moved by P. Lewis and seconded by S. Bolduc to receive and file. 
CARRIED 
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11.2 Response Summary 

Moved by S. Bolduc and seconded by D. Brown to receive and file. 
CARRIED 

12.0 Adjournment 

Moved by S. Bolduc that the meeting be adjourned at 7:03 pm. 

Date of next meeting - Aprll 13, 2023 

Respectfully submitted, 

jlrAv {U 
SECRETAR- Y- /T- R_EA,,,..,_S_U_R_E_R __ _ 
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Statement of Expense with Budget Variance 

For the 12 months ending December 31, 2022 

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCES BUDGET 

YEAR TO DATE YEAR to DATE YEAR TO DATE 2022 

(Under Budget) 

Line I REVENUE: 

1 Members Contributions $5,636,875 $5,636,874 ($1) $5,636,875 

2 Rebate of Property Tax (Miscellaneous Revt $58,566 $56,322 ($2,244) $58,566 

3 Local Service Districts $0 $0 $0 $0 

4 Revenue Fee Structure $0 $0 $0 $0 

5 Misc. Revenue $1,000 $1,798 $798 $1,000 

6 Interest Income CIA $5,000 $15,650 $10,650 $5,000 

7 Deficit 2nd previous year $213,454 $213,454 $0 $213,454 

8 $5,914,895 $5,924,098 $9,204 $5,914,895 

EXPENSES: 

ADMINISTRATION: 

9 Admin. Wages and Benefits $660,700 $647,327 ($13,373) $660,700 

10 Convention/dues/training $15,000 $10,796 ($4,204) $15,000 

11 Administrative Agreement $12,000 $12,000 $0 $12,000 

12 Professional Services $50,000 $31,169 ($18,831) $50,000 

13 CPSE Accreditation $3,000 $135 ($2,865) $3,000 

14 Office supplies/Copy Machine/ S/C $7,600 $8,532 $932 $7,600 

15 Computer hardware/software/IT $36,000 $25,288 ($10,712) $36,000 

16 Telephone/ Internet $14,250 $14,820 $570 $14,250 

17 $798,550 $750,066 ($45,619) $798,551 

FIREFIGHTING FORCE: 

18 Salaries Basic $2,942,187 $2,941,674 ($513) $2,942,187 

19 Dedicated FP Salary $0 $0 $0 

20 Overtime $70,000 $63,081 ($6,919) $70,000 

21 Vacation Pay on Retirement $17,270 $0 ($17,270) $17,270 

22 Force Benefits $702,071 $692,594 ($9,477) $702,071 

23 FP Position Benefits $0 $0 $0 

24 Career Uniforms and maintenance $28,500 $32,254 $3,754 $28,500 

25 Medical and Fitness Testing $20,000 $13,939 ($6,061) $20,000 

26 Employee Wellness $9,000 $8,593 ($407) $9,000 

27 Career Recognition $3,000 $3,935 $935 $3,000 

28 Holiday Relief Wages and overtime $352,700 $431,979 $79,280 $352,700 

29 Holiday Relief Benefits $124,000 $132,893 $8,893 $124,000 

30 $4,268,728 $4,320,943 $52,215 $4,268,728 

Page 1 of 3 
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YEAR TO DATE YEAR to DATE YEAR TO DATE 2022 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS: 

31 Cellular Telephones $5,000 $4,792 ($208) $5,000 

32 Communication Equipment $1,000 $964 ($36) $1,000 

33 Maintenance / Repairs $700 $336 ($364) $700 

34 Dispatch Service $206,210 $206,210 $0 $206,210 

35 $212,910 $212,302 ($608) $212,910 

INSURANCE: 

36 Insurance $55,504 $57,722 $2,218 $55,504 

37 $55,504 $57,722 $2,218 $55,504 

PREVENTION AND TRAINING: 

38 Firefighter / Co. Officer Training $45,000 $44,436 ($564) $45,000 

39 Fire Prevention $6,000 $5,915 ($85} $6,000 

40 Public Education $2,500 $2,062 ($438) $2,500 

41 Training Supplies $5,000 $716 ($4,284) $5,000 

42 $58,500 $53,129 ($5,371) $58,500 

FACILITIES: 

43 Station 1 Operating $183,700 $187,295 $3,595 $183,700 

44 Station 2 Operating $51 ,500 $40,433 ($1 1,067) $51,500 

45 Station Supplies $12,000 $12,423 $423 $12,000 

46 $247,200 $240,151 ($7,049) $247,200 

FLEET: 

47 Fuel Vehicle $20,000 $39,577 $19,577 $20,000 

48 Registration Vehicle $550 $452 ($98) $550 

49 Vehicle Maint. & Repairs $82,500 $71,924 ($10,576) $82,500 

50 $103,050 $111,953 $8,903 $103,050 

OPERATIONS: 

51 New Equipment $22,000 $36,257 $14,257 $22,000 

52 Maint. & Repairs Equip. $25,000 $20,751 ($4,249) $25,000 

53 Maint. & Repairs Bunker Gear $4,000 $8,214 $4,214 $4,000 

54 Medical Supplies $10,000 $5,002 ($4,998) $10,000 

55 Fire Fighting Supplies $5,000 $4,350 ($650) $5,000 

56 H&S/Cause determination $1,000 $1,443 $443 $1 ,000 

57 $67,000 $76,017 $9,017 $67,000 

Page 2 of 3 
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YEAR TO DATE YEAR to DATE YEAR TO DATE 2022 

WATER COSTS: 

58 Water Costs - Quispamsis $5,399 $5,398 ($0) $5,398 

59 Water Costs - Rothesay $28,055 $28,054 ($0) $28,054 

60 $33,453 $33,453 ($0) $33,452 

OTHER: 

61 Miscellaneous $3,000 $2,299 ($701) $3,000 

62 J Retirement Allowance $67,000 $67,000 ($0) $67,000 

63 $70,000 $69,299 ($701) $70,000 

64 $5,914,896 $5,925,035 $13,004 $5,914,895 

65 (DEFICIT) SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD ($937) ($3,801) ($0) 

Page 3 of 3 
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2022 Operating Budget 

I 

Une 

RE 
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

EX 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
25 

VENUE: 

Members Contributions 

Rebate of Property Tax 

Local Service Districts 

Revenue Fee Structure 

Misc. Revenue 

Interest Income CIA 

Surplus 2nd previous year 

f ADMINISTRATION: 

Admin. Wages and Benefits 

Convention/dues/training 

Administrative Agreement 

Professional Services 

CPSE Accrediation 

Office supplies/Copy Machine/ SIC 

Computer hardware/software/IT 

Telephone/ Internet 

FIREFIGHTING FORCE: 

Salaries Basic 

Dedicated FP position 

Overtime 

Retirement Vacation benefit 

Force Benefits 

New position benefits 

Career Uniforms and maintenance 

Medical and Fitness Testing 

BUDGET 

2022 

$5,636,875 

58,566 

-
-

1,000 

5,000 

213,454 

$5,914,896 

$ 660,700 

15,000 
12,000 

50,000 

3,000 

7,600 

36,000 

14,250 

$ 798,550 

2,942,187 

-
70,000 

17,270 

702,071 

-
28,500 
20,000 

Actual Actual% YTD 

2022YTD YTD% of2022 
December31 Budget 

$5,636,874 100.0% 

$56,322 96.2% 

$0 

$0 

$1,798 179.8% 

$15,650 313.0% 

$213,454 100.0% 

$ 5,924,098 100.2% 

$ 647,327 98.0% 

10,796 72.0% 
12,000 100.0% 

31,169 62.3% 

135 4.5% 

8,532 112.3% 

25,288 70.2% 

14,820 104.0% 

$ 750,066 93.9% 

2,941,674 100.0% 

-
63,081 90.1% 

- 0.0% 

692,594 98.7% 

-
32,254 113.2% 

13,939 69.7% 

Variance Explanation 

Rebates based on 2022 actuals 

Higher lock box revenue than budgeted/Used heat pump sate 

Higher than budgeted interest rates 

2nd year prior surplus 

Chief position vacancy/New Chiefs lower compensation 

As required 

Paid to Rothesay 

As required/lncludes shared HR costs (10% ofKRPF costs) 

As required 

Includes shared IT costs (10% of KRPF costs) 

Included in Salaries Basic now 

As required 

1st Class + LT at 5 weeks each 

Benefit cost went down but budget assumed an increase 

Included in Force benefits now 

New CBA required clothing 

As required 
2023-02-032:23 PM 
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2022 Operating Budget 

I 

Line 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

.35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

40 

41 

42 

43 
44 

45 

46 

47 
48 

Employee Wellness 

Career Recognition 

Holiday Relief Wages and overtime 

Holiday Relief Benefits 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS: 

Cellular Telephones 

Communication Equipment 

Maintenance / Repairs 

Dispatch Service 

INSURANCE: 

Insurance 

PREVENTION AND TRAINING: 

Firefighter I Co. Officer Training 

Fire Prevention 

Public Education 

Training Supplies 

FACILITIES: 

Station 1 Operating 

Station 2 Operating 

Station Supplies 

FLEET: 

fuel Vehicle 

Registration Vehicle 

BUDGET 

2022 

9,000 

3,000 
352,700 

124,000 

$4,268,728 

$ 5,000 

1,000 

700 

206,210 

$ 212,910 

$ 55,504 

$ 55,504 

$ 45,000 

6,000. 

2,500 

5,000 

$ 58,500 

183,700 

51,500 

12,000 

$ 247,200 

$ 20,000 

550 

Actual Actual% YTD 

2022YTD YTD% of2022 
December 31 Budget 

8,593 95.5% 

3,935 131.2% 

431,979 122.5% 

132,893 107.2% 

$ 4,320,943 101.2% 

$ 4,792 95.8% 

964 96.4% 

336 48.0% 

206,210 100.0% 

$ 212,302 99.7% 

$ 57,722 104.0% 

$ 57,722 104.0% 

$ 44,436 98.7% 

5,915 98.6% 
2,062 82.5% 

716 14.3% 

$ 53,129 90.8% 

187,295 102.0% 
40,433 78.5% 

12,423 103.5% 

$ 240,151 97.1% 

$ 39,577 197.9% 

452 82.2% 

Variance Explanation 

Chief/Deputy Chief retirements 

Increased scheduling due to Career FF dis.abilities 

Increased HRFF utilization increases CPP/EI/Pension costs 

As required 

Inflationary increase 

Actual lower than budgeted 

Unplanned fuel cost increase 

2023-02-032:23 PM 
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Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. 

Une 

49 

50 

51 

52 

53 

54 

55 

56 

57 

58 
59 

60 

61 

62 

63 

64 

65 

2022 Operating Budget 

I 

Vehicle Maint & Repairs 

OPERATIONS: 

New Equipment 

Maint & Repairs Equip. 

Mamt. & Repairs Bunker Gear 

Medical supplies 

Fire fighting supplies 

H&S/Cause determination 

WATER COSTS: 

Water Costs - Quispamsis 

Water Costs - Rothesay 

OTHER: 

Miscellaneous 

Retirement Allowance 

Totals 

SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD 

BUDGET 

2022 

82,500 

$ 103,050 

$ 22,000 
25,000 
4,000 

10,000 
5,000 
1,000 

$ 67,000 

$ 5,399 

28,055 

$ 33,453 

$ 3,000 

67,000 

$ 70,000 

$5,914,896 

$ 0 

Actual Actual% YTD 

2022YTD YTD % of 2022 
December31 Budget Variance Explanation 

71,924 87.2% As required (newer vehicle impact) 

$ 111,953 108.6% 

$ 36,257 164.8% As required 

20,751 83.0% As required 

8,214 205.4% As required 

5,002 50.0% As required 

4,350 87.0% 
1,443 144.3% 

$ 76,017 113.5% 

$ 5,398 100.0% 

28,054 100.0% 

$ 33,453 100.0% 

$ 2,299 76.6% 

67,000 100.0% 

$ 69,299 99.0% 

$ 5,925,035 $ 10,139 Overall increase to ongoing operating costs 

$ (937) 0.17% 

2023-02-032:23 PM 
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Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. 
Budget Variances Analysis greater than $5,000 

For the 12 months ending December 31, 2022 

Line # Description BudgetYTD Actual YTO 

6 Interest Income $5,000 $15,650 

20 Overtime $70,000 $63,081 

9 Admln. Wages and Benefits '$660,700 $647,327 

12 Professional Services $50,000 $31,169 

15 Computer hardware/software/IT $36,000 $25,288 

21 Vacation Pay on Retirement $17,270 $0 

22 Force Benefits $702,071 $692,594 

25 Medical and Fitness Testing $20,000 $13,939 

28' Holiday Reflef Wages & Overtime $352,700 $431,979 

29 Holiday Relief Benefits $124,000 $132,893 
44 Station 2 Operating $51 ,500 $40,433 

47 Fuel Vehicle $20,000 $39.577 

49 Vehicle Malnt. & Repairs $82,500 $71 ,924 

51 New Equipment $22,000 $36,257 

Material Variances $2,213,741 $2,242,111 

Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. 
Invoices over $5,000 
For the months of November-December 2022 

Non-Recurring Monthly Invoices 

11-23-22 FCC Coostruction 

11-26-22 Sancton Access 

11-30-22 Murock-Boyd 

12-01-22 Safely Soun:e 

12-15-22 Home Star 

12-19-22 Fundy Tactical 

12-20-22 Cumings Fire & Safely 

12-23-22 FCC Construction 

Variance 
(Under Budget) 

$10,650 

($6,919) 

($13,373) 

($18,831) 

($10,712) 

($17,270) 

($9,477) 

($6,061) 

$79,280 

$8,893 
($11,067) 

$19,577 

($10,576) 

$14,257 

$28,370 

Amount 
$425,724.21 

$5,896 28 

$6,339 38 

$6,588 35 

$5,535 20 

$11,833 27 

$5,11520 

S.390,261 .11 

Details 

Unbudgeted increase in interest rates 

As required 

Chief position vacancy/New Chiefs lower compensation 

As required 

As required 

Expected retirement has not materialized 

Benefit cost went down but budget assumed an increase 

As requi red 

As required (several disabilities at end of year) 
Ult;lt;!c:,l~t,U nru·r- UUlll:c:lllUll llll.:l~a~~~ \.ot""~IC.llt"'tHISIUI) 
,..,..r,fr, 

lower than budgeted power costs 

Unforseen increase in fuel prices 

As required (newer vehicle impact) 

As required (Clothing per CBA requirement) 

Description 

Stn #2 progress payment #3 

5caffolding ror high rise training 

Stn #2 design work progress payment 

Replace broken hose tester 

New snow clearing contract 

New career uniforms 

Krakken 

Stn #2 progress payment #4 

9.2 
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Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department 

Office of the Deputy Chief 

To: Joint Board of Fire Commissioners 

From: Deputy Chief Shawn White 

Re: SCBA Capital Purchase 

Date: February 8, 2023 

Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) 

The KVFD has approved 2023 capital budget of $452, 805 for the replacement of the 
SCBA inventory of the department. This replacement will include up to 24 air packs and 
60 air cylinders. Depending on the manufacture selected, there may also be a need for 
additional face pieces. 

Presentations have been delivered to the department by both suppliers of 3M Scott Fire 
& Safety and MSA Safety Incorporated; the department currently uses Scott air packs. 
A trial period is planned for both types of air pack. A tender was posted on NBON using 
Canoe procurement, which is also used by both towns. 

"[The Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. intends to participate in one or more 
procurements conducted by Canoe Procurement Group of Canada between [ 01-2023 
to 01-2024]. For further information and access to the Canoe Procurement tender 
notices, please review www.merx.com. For further information about Canoe 
Procurement Group of Canada, please visit www.canoeprocurement.ca" 
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Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department 

Fire Chief's Report to the Joint Board of Fire Commissioners 

Significant Incidents 

December 8, 2022 

11.1 

Firefighters were dispatched to an address in Quispamsis for a male in his ?O's 
unresponsive and not breathing. Firefighters delivered three shocks from the 
defibrillator and were able to regain a pulse. Paramedics arrived, took over care and 
transported the patient to the hospital; the patient was discharged from the hospital just 
over a week later. 

December 22, 2022 

In the early evening, firefighters were dispatched for a structure fire near Highland 
Avenue in Rothesay. A fire in a propane stove damaged the stove and caused minor 
damage in the kitchen. Firefighters turned off the propane to the home, ventilated 
smoke and checked for any further fire damage in the kitchen area. 

December 26, 2022 

A mountain biker fell off their bike and suffered serious back 
injuries in the afternoon of December 26th. Firefighters, police 
and paramedics were dispatched to the "Shady Grove" area in 
Quispamsis for an off-road rescue; although firefighters were 
familiar with the trail area, it took over a half-hour to find them, 
as the patient was found in a different location than what was 
originally reported. Firefighters escorted a paramedic into the 
trail and after the patient was treated and packaged, they were 
carried to the ambulance by firefighters, approximately two 
hours after the initial dispatch. 

Page 1 of 5 



2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_094

December 29, 2022 

Around 9:20 pm, firefighters were dispatched to a basement fire in a home on Monarch 
Drive in Quispamsis. A fire in a bathroom caused significant smoke damage and after 
the fire was extinguished firefighters worked on ventilating the home and checking for 
any fire extension. Twenty minutes after the dispatch for this fire, the KVFD was 
dispatched for a fire on the French Village Road; a large shed near a home was 
completely engulfed and destroyed by fire however the nearby home was not damaged. 
Nauwigewauk Fire Department and Hampton Fire 
Rescue were requested to assist at the second fire. 

January 11, 2023 

The KVFD and Hampton Fire Rescue responded to an 
accident on Route 1 at the Hammond River Bridge this 
afternoon for an accident involving a car and a transport 
truck. The car had extensive damage and the sole 
occupant needed to be extricated by firefighters. The 
occupant was treated and transported to the hospital by 
Ambulance New Brunswick paramedics. The highway 
was shut down for approximately an hour while 
emergency crews managed the scene. 

KVFD Drone Program 

One of the strategic priorities of the KVFD is to invest in functional technology to support 
our purpose of public protection and as part of this priority, the department has recently 
implemented a drone program. 

This project began in 2021 when Senior 
Firefighter Nick Arsenault delivered a 
presentation on the benefits that a drone 
program would bring to the department. 

These include fire prevention activities 
such as pre-planning and many 
emergency operations applications 
including fire assessment during an 
incident, assisting with locating victims 
during rescue incidents, and assessing 
large-scale incidents (e.g., wildfires, floods). 

Page 2 of 5 
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In addition to a significant operating distance, the drone purchased by the department 
has infrared capabilities and lighting that will allow it to be used at night. 

SFF Arsenault recently completed his certification as an advanced drone operator 
through Transport Canada which included an exam and practical test with a flight review 
and has become the department's first official drone pilot. SFF Arsenault's work and 
commitment to the program have made this possible. 

Live Fire Training 

In late November, Senior Firefighters Mike Nixon 
and Matt McCully participated in a live-burn 
exercise in Long Reach. They delivered 
instruction on fire attack with firefighters from the 
Long Reach Fire Department and led firefighters 
inside during the burn. 

Electric Vehicle Training 

With an increase in hybrid and electric vehicles in 
the community, the KVFD recognized 
the need for training on these types of 
vehicles. Firefighters participated in 
theory and hands on training and from 
DCI Training and are now prepared 
with the best practices that facilitate a 
safe response when dealing with 
incidents involving electric vehicles. 

::-= ,-.7 :I ~ - .. ---· 

. --·---
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Fire Chiefs on the Hill 

Each year the Canadian Association of Fire Chiefs holds a "Government Relations 
Week" through which Fire Chiefs meet with Members of Parliament and other elected or 
senior officials. During this week they discuss key issues in the fire service, budget 
asks, and engage in relationship 
building and education on Parliament 
Hill. 

This year 38 fire chiefs from across the 
country came to Ottawa; Deputy Chief 
Shawn White represented the 
community and the Kennebecasis 
Valley Fire Department at this 
conference. 

Firefighter Karey Madill Retirement 

On January 2nd, Karey retired after 24 
years of service. He was formerly a 
volunteer firefighter with the Bradley 
Lake Volunteer Fire Department and 
was hired as a firefighter with the 
Rothesay Regional Fire Department in 
1998. He retired as the driver at station 
1 for C Platoon. 

Page 4 of 5 
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Kennebecasis Firefighters Union Christmas Program 

On December 16th , members 
of the Kennebecasis 
Firefighters Union volunteered 
their time to prepare a 
Christmas of food and toys for 
50 families in need this year. 
In addition to the KVFD 
providing space for the event 
the Hampton/KV Home 
Hardware supplied a truck to 
move the groceries and 
KenVal Foodland put the food 
order together for the 
program. Also, a thanks to all the members of the community who donated food, toys 
and money to support the program. 

Page 5 of 5 
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Response Report 

Annual Incident Numbers 

Response Type Description 2020 2021 2022 3 Year Average 
Fire/explosion - dollar loss 37 36 33 35 
Rubbish/grass fire - no dollar loss 66 28 30 41 
Chimney Fire 3 2 2 2 
Explosion - no fire 1 0 1 1 
Rupture - water pipes 0 0 1 1 
Rescue - Miscellaneous 11 6 9 9 
Vehicle Accident 84 88 122 105 
Building Collapse 0 0 2 1 
Industrial Accident 1 0 1 
Home Accident 0 0 1 1 
Resuscitation Call - dead on arrival 1 0 0 1 
Public Hazard - hazardous object remo-.ed 0 1 1 
Public Hazard - gasoline or fuel spill 4 12 12 9 
Publ,c Hazard - toxic chemical spill 0 1 0 1 
Pubhc Hazard - power line down 21 10 45 25 
Public Hazard - miscellaneous 10 10 9 10 
Gas Leak - propane 2 10 9 10 
Gas Leak - refrigerant 0 0 1 
Gas Leak - response to carbon monoxide detector alarm 34 29 13 25 
Gas Leak - miscellaneous 1 2 0 1 
Public Se™ce - animal rescue 1 a 1 1 
Public SeNce - assist police or other agency 10 4 18 11 
Public SeNce - citizens locked in or out 2 2 1 2 
Public SeNce - citizens trapped in elevators 1 4 2 2 
Public SeNce - first aid 471 492 644 536 
Public SeNce - Flooding 3 3 5 4 
Public SeNce - mutual aid 6 14 13 14 
Public Se™ce- miscellaneous 8 17 19 15 
Alarm No Fire - accidental miscellaneous 39 48 40 42 
Alarm No Fire - smoke or steam mistaken 6 6 10 7 
Alarm No Fire - sprinkler surge or discharge 0 3 2 2 
Alarm No Fire - detector activated 46 43 60 50 
Alarm No Fire - unknown odours 4 6 10 7 
Alarm No Fire - miscellaneous 15 7 24 15 
False Alann - municipal alann system 0 0 1 1 
False Alann - verbal report to lire station 0 0 2 1 
False Alarm - miscellaneous 2 5 2 4 
Incident Situation Unclassified 3 2 0 2 

TOT AL INCIDENTS 894 892 1144 977 
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December 2022 

Response Type Description 2020 2021 2022 3 Year Average 
Fire/explosion - dollar loss 2 4 3 3 
Rubbish/grass fire - no dollar loss 2 0 2 1 
Chimney Fire 1 0 0 0 
Explosion - no fire 0 0 0 0 
Rupture - water pipes D 0 1 1 
Rescue - Miscellaneous D 1 1 1 
Vehicle Accident 12 8 17 12 
Building Collapse D 0 0 D 
Industrial Accident 0 0 D 0 
Home Accident 0 0 0 0 
Resusciation Call - dead on arri\.el 0 0 0 0 
Public Hazard - hazardous object remowd 0 0 0 D 
Public Hazard - gasoline or fuel spill 1 2 1 1 
Public Hazard - toxic chemical spill 0 0 0 0 
Public Hazard - power line down 2 1 1 1 
Public Hazard - miscellaneous D 1 1 1 
Gas Leak - propane D 0 1 1 
Gas Leak - refrigerant 0 0 0 0 
Gas Leak - response to carbon monoxide detector alar 8 1 1 3 
Gas Leak - miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 
Public Service - animal rescue 0 0 0 0 
Public Service - assist police or other agency 0 0 4 1 
Public Service - citizens locked in or out 0 0 0 1 
Public Service - citizens trapped in elevators 0 1 1 1 
Public Service - first aid 28 45 73 49 
Public Service - Flooding 2 0 0 1 
Public Service - mutual aid 1 2 1 2 
Public Service- miscellaneous 0 2 4 33 
Alarm No Fire - accidental miscellaneous 1 4 0 2 
AlanTI No Fire - smoke or steam mistaken 1 0 0 1 
Alarm No Fire - sprinkler surge or discharge 0 1 0 1 
Alarm No Fire - detector activated 2 2 8 4 
Alarm No Fire - unknown odours 1 1 0 1 
Alarm No Fire - miscellaneous 0 0 3 1 
False Alarm - municipal alarm system 0 0 0 0 
False Alarm - verbal report to fire station 0 0 1 1 
False Alarm - miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 
Incident Situation Unclassified 0 0 0 0 



 

 

 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees, Kennebecasis Public Library was held on February 
15th, 2023 at 6:30pm in person.  

In Attendance:  Mrs. L. Hansen, Chair; Ms. N. Emerson, Secretary; Mr. A. Maxwell, Mr. 
D. Shea, Mrs. C. Collette, Mr. N. Donovan 

Regrets: Mrs. A. Watling, Treasurer 

Absences: Ms. E. Greer, Vice-Chair 

Call to Order:  Mrs. Hansen called the meeting to order at 6:31 pm. 

Approval of Agenda 

It was moved by Mr. Shea to approve the agenda. Mr. Donovan seconded, and the 
motion carried.  

Disposition of Minutes 

Mr. Maxwell moved to approve the minutes of the January regular meeting. Mr. 
Donovan seconded, and the motion carried.  

Communications 

Ms. Emerson proposed communications to the mayors of Rothesay and Quispamsis in 
support of the library’s staffing proposal. Discussion ensued.  

Report of the Librarian  

Ms. Emerson presented her report to the board, including updates on staffing, 
collections, and programming. Mr. Maxwell moved to accept the Librarian’s Report. Mr. 
Shea seconded, and the motion carried.  

Financial Statement 

Ms. Emerson presented the financial report, outlining the expenditures thus far in 2023 
and the first draft of the total 2022 expenditures. Discussion ensued.  

Facilities Management 

Ms. Emerson updated the library board on behalf of the facilities manager, Phil Shedd. 
Discussion ensued.  
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Mr. Donovan moved to accept the committee reports as presented. Mrs. Collette 
seconded, and the motion carried.  

New and Unfinished Business 

Ms. Hansen presented the most recent draft of the second staffing proposal. Discussion 
ensued. A transmission date of March 1st 2023 was decided.  

Adjournment:  As there was no other business, Mrs. Hansen moved that the meeting 
be adjourned at 7:10pm.  

Next Meeting:  The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, March 14th, 2023 at 
6:30pm, in person at the library.  

 

 
Respectfully submitted,  

 

 
Norah Emerson 
Library Director and Secretary to the Board 
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A meeting of the Board of Trustees, Kennebecasis Public Library was held on March 
14th, 2023 at 6:30pm on Zoom.  

In Attendance:  Mrs. L. Hansen, Chair; Mr. A. Maxwell, Vice Chair; Ms. N. Emerson, 
Secretary; Mrs. A. Watling, Treasurer; Mr. D. Shea, Mrs. C. Collette, Mr. N. Donovan; 
Ms. E. Greer 

Regrets:  

Absences:  

Call to Order:  Mrs. Hansen called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 

Approval of Agenda 

It was moved by Mr. Donovan to approve the agenda. Mr. Shea seconded, and the 
motion carried.  

Disposition of Minutes 

Mr. Maxwell moved to approve the minutes of the February regular meeting. Mrs. 
Watling seconded, and the motion carried.  

Communications 

Having received feedback from the board, Mrs. Hansen submitted the board’s 
comments on the NBPLS Strategic Plan on March 13th.  

Report of the Librarian  

Ms. Emerson presented her report to the board, including updates on staffing, 
collections, and programming. Mr. Donovan moved to accept the Librarian’s Report. Mr. 
Greer seconded, and the motion carried.  

Financial Statement 

Ms. Emerson presented the financial report, outlining the expenditures thus far in 2023. 
Discussion ensued.  

Facilities Management 

Ms. Emerson updated the library board on behalf of the facilities manager, Phil Shedd. 
Discussion ensued.  
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Mr. Maxwell moved to accept the committee reports as presented. Mr. Shea seconded, 
and the motion carried.  

New and Unfinished Business 

Ms. Emerson provided a brief update on the delivery of the board’s staffing proposal to 
PETL.  

Mrs. Watling reintroduced the topic of the CN Rail donation to the library from 2020. 
Discussion ensued on public recognition of this donation, including suggestions for 
activities, displays, and community partnerships.  

Adjournment:  As there was no other business, Mrs. Hansen moved that the meeting 
be adjourned at 7:17 pm.  

Next Meeting:  The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, April 19th, 2023 at 
6:30pm, in person at the library.  

 

 
Respectfully submitted,  

 

 
Norah Emerson 
Library Director and Secretary to the Board 
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Includes:

General Capital Fund Balance Sheet G1

General Reserve Fund Balance Sheet G2

General Operating Fund Balance Sheet G3

General Operating Revenue & Expenditures G4-G6

Variance Report G7

Capital Summary G8

Town of Rothesay
General Fund Financial Statements

2023-03-31
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G1

Town of Rothesay

Balance Sheet - Capital General Fund

2023-03-31

ASSETS

   Capital Assets - General Land 4,559,420             

   Capital Assets - General Fund Land Improvements 9,362,227             

   Capital Assets - General Fund Buildings 6,611,482             

   Capital Assets - General Fund Vehicles 4,409,167             

   Capital Assets - General Fund Equipment 4,246,495             

   Capital Assets - General Fund Roads & Streets 45,342,779           

   Capital Assets - General Fund Drainage Network 21,171,976           

   Capital Assets - Under Construction - General 1,446,441             

97,149,987           

   Accumulated Amortization - General Fund Land Improvements (5,079,703)            

   Accumulated Amortization - General Fund Buildings (2,896,486)            

   Accumulated Amortization - General Fund Vehicles (2,938,132)            

   Accumulated Amortization - General Fund Equipment (2,309,033)            

   Accumulated Amortization - General Fund Roads & Streets (22,841,311)         

   Accumulated Amortization - General Fund Drainage Network (8,134,680)            

(44,199,345)         

52,950,642$        

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Gen Capital due to/from Gen Operating (100,000)               

   Total Long Term Debt 4,934,000             

     Total Liabilities 4,834,000$           

   Investment in General Fund Fixed Assets 48,116,642           

52,950,642$        
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G2

   BNS Gas Tax Interest Account 18,606                         

   BNS General Operating Reserve #214-15 6,758                           

   BNS - Gen Operating Reserve GIC 910,960                       

   BNS General Capital Reserves #2261-14 86,688                         

   BNS - Gen Capital Reserve  GIC 1,500,000                    

   BNS - Gas Tax Reserves - GIC 4,116,904                    
6,639,916$                 

   Def. Rev - Gas Tax Fund - General 3,580,543                    

   Invest. in General Capital Reserve 1,413,489                    

   General Gas Tax Funding 554,966                       

   Invest. in General Operating Reserve 917,718                       

   Invest. in Land for Public Purposes Reserve 153,675                       
   Invest. in Town Hall Reserve 19,524                         

6,639,916$                 

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Town of Rothesay
Balance Sheet - General Fund Reserves

2023-03-31
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G3

Town of Rothesay
Balance Sheet - General Operating Fund

2023-03-31

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash 2,035,174               
   Receivables 68,447                     
HST Receivable 265,543                  
   Inventory 35,691                     
   Gen Operating due to/from Util Operating 667,260                  

     Total Current Assets 3,072,116               

Other Assets:
   Projects 756,857                  

756,857                  

TOTAL ASSETS 3,828,973               

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Accounts Payable 1,250,282               
   Other Payables 644,541                  
   Gen Operating due to/from Gen Capital 100,000                  
   Accrued Pension Obligation (15,700)                   
   Accrued Retirement Allowance 444,587                  
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,423,711               

   Retained Earnings - General 170,485                  
   Surplus/(Deficit) for the Period 1,234,777               

1,405,262               

3,828,973               

EQUITY
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G4

Town of Rothesay
Statement of Revenue & Expenditure

3 Months Ended 2023-03-31

CURRENT BUDGET FOR  CURRENT     BUDGET   VARIANCE NOTE    ANNUAL  

MONTH MONTH  Y-T-D        Y-T-D   Better(Worse)     #    BUDGET  

REVENUE

Warrant of Assessment 1,676,981 1,676,982 5,030,944 5,030,945 (0) 20,123,778

Sale of Services 47,851 42,019 156,269 131,956 24,313 464,704

Services to Province of New Brunswick 27,467 27,467 27,467 27,467 0 80,000

Other Revenue from Own Sources 65,808 46,150 96,236 69,033 27,203 142,008

CORE grant 8,732 8,732 26,195 26,195 0 104,778

Conditional Transfers 25,000 0 25,000 0 25,000 51,500

Other Transfers 130,625 130,625 404,695 404,695 0 796,570
$1,982,463 $1,931,974 $5,766,806 $5,690,290 $76,516 $21,763,338

EXPENSES

General Government Services 220,016 231,197 795,756 798,976 3,220 2,592,591

Protective Services 785,554 787,915 1,691,061 1,698,644 7,584 6,235,746

Transportation Services 380,379 419,290 1,077,362 1,134,394 57,032 3,668,562

Environmental Health Services 71,072 86,144 223,904 258,432 34,528 1,077,728

Environmental Development 63,722 86,798 173,297 238,982 65,685 829,950

Recreation & Cultural Services 219,768 224,783 569,380 542,515 (26,866) 2,496,171

Fiscal Services 356 333 1,270 1,000 (270) 4,862,591
$1,740,866 $1,836,460 $4,532,029 $4,672,943 $140,914 $21,763,338

Surplus (Deficit) for the Year $241,597 $95,513 $1,234,777 $1,017,348 $217,430 -$                    
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G5-G6

Town of Rothesay
Statement of Revenue & Expenditure

3 Months Ended 2023-03-31

CURRENT BUDGET FOR  CURRENT   BUDGET VARIANCE NOTE    ANNUAL  
MONTH MONTH  Y-T-D     YTD Better(Worse)     #    BUDGET  

REVENUE
Sale of Services
Bill McGuire Memorial Centre 1,485 1,667 7,093 5,000 2,093 20,000
Town Hall Rent 9,017 8,217 28,622 24,651 3,971 98,604
Community Garden (20) 50 (20) 50 (70) 1,200
Fox Farm Rental 1,750 1,875 5,250 5,625 (375) 22,500
Arena Revenue 34,262 27,835 106,110 89,505 16,605 1 214,900
Recreation Programs 1,357 2,375 9,215 7,125 2,090 107,500

47,851 42,019 156,269 131,956 24,313 464,704

Other Revenue from Own Sources

Licenses & Permits 48,534 36,875 56,898 50,625 6,273 82,500
Recycling Dollies & Lids 151 67 209 200 9 800
Interest & Sundry 10,639 2,667 30,321 8,000 22,321 2 32,000
Miscellaneous 775 833 1,100 2,500 (1,400) 10,000
Fire Dept. Administration 1,000 1,000 3,000 3,000 0 12,000
Local Improvement Levy Mulberry Lane 4,708 4,708 4,708 4,708 0 4,708

65,808 46,150 96,236 69,033 27,203 142,008

Conditional Transfers
Canada Day Grant 0 0 0 0 0 1,500
Grant - Other 25,000 0 25,000 0 25,000 3 0
Grant - Students 0 0 0 0 0 50,000

25,000 0 25,000 0 25,000 51,500

Other Transfers
Surplus of 2nd Previous Year 0 0 274,070 274,070 0 274,070
Utility Fund Transfer 130,625 130,625 130,625 130,625 0 522,500

130,625 130,625 404,695 404,695 0 796,570

EXPENSES
General Government Services
Legislative
Mayor 3,250 3,917 10,741 11,750 1,009 47,000
Councillors 10,837 11,258 32,541 33,775 1,234 135,100
Regional Service Commission 9 1,256 1,256 3,769 3,769 0 15,076
Other 320 292 940 875 (65) 13,500

15,663 16,723 47,991 50,169 2,178 210,676

Administrative
Administration - Wages & Benefits 83,886 88,047 254,036 258,963 4,928 1,189,610
Office Building 57,685 60,250 94,844 81,250 (13,594) 4 177,750
Supplies 26,382 28,917 42,717 45,750 3,033 143,000
Solicitor 134 4,167 5,126 12,500 7,374 50,000
Professional Fees 0 0 0 0 0 35,000
Other 15,520 15,717 41,670 41,350 (320) 110,000

183,607 197,097 438,392 439,813 1,421 1,705,360

Other General Government Services
Website/Other 516 500 2,611 2,500 (111) 3,000
Community Communications (Team) 140 460 1,183 1,381 198 5,525
Civic Relations 1,809 83 1,809 250 (1,559) 1,000
Insurance 0 0 280,086 282,462 2,376 282,462
Donations 0 0 5,404 5,400 (4) 36,500
Cost of Assessment 0 0 0 0 0 328,068
Property Taxes - L.P.P. 17,410 16,000 17,410 16,000 (1,410) 16,000
Fox Farm Rental Expenses 870 333 870 1,000 130 4,000

20,746 17,377 309,373 308,993 (380) 676,555

Total General Government Services 220,016 231,197 795,756 798,976 3,220 2,592,591

Protective Services
Police
Police Protection 271,400 272,601 814,199 817,803 3,604 3,271,213
Crime Stoppers 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 0 2,800

274,200 275,401 816,999 820,603 3,604 3,274,013

Fire
Fire Protection 181,139 181,139 543,416 543,416 0 2,614,733
Water Costs Fire Protection 330,000 330,000 330,000 330,000 0 330,000

511,139 511,139 873,416 873,416 0 2,944,733

Emergency Measures
EMO Director/Committee 0 0 0 500 500 500

0 0 0 500 500 500

Other
Animal & Pest Control 215 417 645 1,250 605 5,000
Other 0 958 0 2,875 2,875 11,500

215 1,375 645 4,125 3,480 16,500

Total Protective Services 785,554 787,915 1,691,061 1,698,644 7,584 6,235,746
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G5-G6

Transportation Services
Common Services
 Administration (Wages & Benefits) 111,235 121,824 329,945 368,272 38,327 5 1,557,760
Workshops, Yards & Equipment 109,435 115,517 238,791 249,850 11,059 6 756,350
Engineering 0 625 4,257 1,875 (2,382) 7,500

220,670 237,966 572,994 619,997 47,003 2,321,610

Roads & Streets 437 2,500 2,811 3,500 689 65,000
Crosswalks & Sidewalks 434 1,491 1,352 4,472 3,120 17,300
Culverts & Drainage Ditches 0 0 2,998 3,000 2 80,000
Street Cleaning & Flushing 69 0 69 0 (69) 45,000
Snow & Ice Removal 125,199 134,504 430,437 428,513 (1,924) 810,000
Flood Costs 0 5,000 0 5,000 5,000 15,000

126,139 143,495 437,669 444,485 6,816 1,032,300

Street Lighting 12,182 12,083 36,507 36,250 (257) 145,000

Traffic Services
Street Signs 0 833 2,644 2,500 (144) 10,000
Traffic Lanemarking 0 0 0 0 0 35,000
Traffic Signals 1,034 833 2,885 2,500 (385) 10,000
Railway Crossing 1,445 2,083 5,463 6,250 787 25,000

2,479 3,750 10,992 11,250 258 80,000

Public Transit
Public Transit - Comex Service 18,735 21,788 18,735 21,788 3,053 87,152
Public Transit - Other 146 208 438 625 187 2,500

18,881 21,996 19,173 22,413 3,240 89,652

Total Transportation Services 380,351 419,290 1,077,335 1,134,394 57,060 3,668,562

Environmental Health Services
Solid Waste Disposal Land Fill garbage 15,962 18,690 51,021 56,070 5,049 224,280
Solid Waste Disposal Landfill Compost 1,745 3,204 4,698 9,612 4,914 38,448
Solid Waste Collection Fero 53,365 64,250 167,663 192,750 25,087 7 771,000
Solid Waste Recycling bins 0 0 0 0 0 4,000
Clean Up Campaign 0 0 521 0 (521) 40,000

71,072 86,144 223,904 258,432 34,528 1,077,728

Environmental Development Services
Planning & Zoning
Administration 47,757 63,469 125,403 168,994 43,591 8 550,000
Planning Projects 0 4,583 0 13,750 13,750 9 55,000
Heritage Committee 0 1,250 0 3,750 3,750 15,000

47,757 69,302 125,403 186,494 61,091 620,000

Envision Saint John 15,965 15,996 47,894 47,987 93 191,950
Tourism 0 1,500 0 4,500 4,500 18,000

15,965 17,496 47,894 52,487 4,593 209,950

63,722 86,798 173,297 238,982 65,685 829,950

Recreation & Cultural Services
Administration 51,666 53,444 121,115 112,333 (8,782) 10 399,000
Beaches 0 0 0 0 0 53,500
Rothesay Arena 51,435 48,667 116,173 111,380 (4,794) 367,000
Memorial Centre 9,274 13,317 31,994 23,150 (8,844) 11 67,850
Summer Programs 80 0 252 0 (252) 72,100
Parks & Gardens 39,249 45,726 113,936 111,778 (2,158) 691,725
Rothesay Common Rink 12,548 10,060 43,738 38,000 (5,738) 52,950
Playgrounds and Fields 8,702 6,750 10,270 13,917 3,647 134,000
The Hive expenses 1,248 1,167 2,908 3,500 592 14,000
Regional Facilities Commission 30,004 30,068 90,140 90,205 65 360,819
Kennebecasis Public Library 7,084 7,084 21,253 21,253 0 85,012
Special Events 978 1,000 10,101 9,500 (601) 40,000
PRO Kids 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 0 7,500

219,768 224,783 569,380 542,515 (26,866) 2,345,456

Fiscal Services
Debt Charges
Interest 356 333 1,270 1,000 (270) 195,591
Debenture Payments 0 0 0 0 0 667,000

356 333 1,270 1,000 (270) 862,591

Transfers To:
Capital Fund for Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 3,750,000
Reserve Funds 0 0 0 0 0 250,000

0 0 0 0 0 4,000,000

356 333 1,270 1,000 (270) 4,862,591
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G7

Town of Rothesay Variance Report - General Fund

2 months ending 2023-02-28
Note # Actual Budget Better/(Worse) Description of Variance

Revenue
1 Arena Revenue 106,110 89,505 16,605$                              Higher than budgeted revenue
2 Interest & Sundry 30,321 8,000 22,321$                              Conservative estimate of interest rates
3 Grant - Other 25,000 0 25,000$                              Pickle Ball Grant advance

Total 63,926$                              
Variance per Statement $76,516

Explained 84%

Expenses
General Government

4 Office Building 94,844 81,250 (13,594)$                            Upstairs TH renovations for tenants

Protective Services

Transportation
5  Administration (Wages & Benefits) 329,945 368,272 38,327$                              1 vacant position
6 Workshops, Yards & Equipment 238,791 249,850 11,059$                              Fuel costs and bldg repairs lower than estimated

Environmental Health
7 Solid Waste Collection Fero 167,663 192,750 25,087$                              Fuel escalation lower than anticipated

Environmental Development
8 Administration 125,403 168,994 43,591$                              Vacant position and budget for software 
9 Planning Projects 0 13,750 13,750$                              No expenses incurred to date

Recreation & Cultural Services
10 Administration 121,115 112,333 (8,782)$                               Perfect Mind Software
11 Memorial Centre 31,994 23,150 (8,844)$                               Repairs for rental 

Fiscal Services

Total 100,593$                           
 Variance per Statement 140,914

Explained 71%
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G8

Town of Rothesay
Capital Projects 2023

General Fund

3 Months Ended 2023-03-31

   ANNUAL  COUNCIL  CURRENT   Remaining

BUDGET APPROVED  Y-T-D     Budget

General Government

G 202* 001 Town Hall Improvements 40,000 0 1,976 38,024

G 202* 00* IT 17,000 0 0 17,000

Total General Government 57,000 0 0 1,976 55,024

Protective Services

P-202*-0**  Protective Serv. Equipment Purchases1,270,000 0 105,375 1,164,625

Total Protective Services 1,270,000 0 0 105,375 1,164,625

Transportation

T-2023-001 Asphalt 2023 1,225,000 111,392 30,138 1,194,863

T-2022-003  Buildings - Master Drive HVAC 85,000 0 29,996 55,004

T-2023-004 Intersection Improvement 175,000 214,711 0 175,000

T-202*-00*  Fleet Replacement 750,000 691,429 2,913 747,087

Unassigned:

Total Transportation 2,235,000 1,017,532 0 63,046 2,171,954

Recreation

R-202*-00*  Recreation Equipment 215,000 28,220 31,103 183,897

R-202*-00*  Recreation Master Plan 60,000 0 0 60,000

R-2022-002  Recreation Pickle Ball 150,000 77,081 4,327 145,673

R-2022-004  Wells Bldg 2,500,000 0 527,506 1,972,494

R-202*-00*  Arena Renovation 100,000 0 4,239 95,761

R-2023-005  McGuire Centre Repairs 30,000 0 0 30,000

Total Recreation 3,055,000 105,300 0 567,175 2,487,825

Carryovers

T-2020-013 Stormwater Master Plan 0 0 8,357 -8,357

T-2020-014 Traffic Study 0 0 1,116 -1,116

R-2021-002  2021 Wells Building 0 0 2,249 -2,249

T-2022-001  Ashpalt 0 0 960 -960

T-2022-004  Intersection Improvement 0 0 6,603 -6,603

0 0 0 19,285 -19,285

Total 6,617,000$      1,122,832$        -$                  756,857$           5,860,143$      

Funding 2023 Operating Reserve Gas Tax Borrow Grant

General Government 57,000 57,000

Protective Services 1,270,000 20,000 1,250,000

Transportation 2,235,000 1,510,000 725,000

Recreation 3,055,000 2,245,000 100,000 710,000            

6,617,000$      3,832,000$        -$                  825,000$           1,250,000$      710,000$          

2023 Budget and Funding Allocation
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Town of Rothesay
Utility Fund Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

Attached Reports:

Capital Balance Sheet  U1

Reserve Balance Sheet  U2

Operating Balance Sheet  U3

Operating Income Statement U4

Variance Report U5

Capital Summary U6
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U1

Assets:

   Capital Assets - Under Construction - Utilities 1,045,388              

   Capital Assets Utilities Land 119,970                 

   Capital Assets Utilities Buildings 2,003,612              

   Capital Assets Utilities Equipment 813,621                 

   Capital Assets Utilities Water System 29,367,286            

   Capital Assets Utilities Sewer System 26,453,412            

   Capital Assets Utilities Land Improvements 42,031                    

   Capital Assets Utilities Roads & Streets 220,011                 

   Capital Assets Utilities Vehicles 113,001                 

60,178,334            

   Accumulated Amortization Utilites Buildings (901,044)                

   Accumulated Amortization Utilites Water System (9,388,542)             

   Accumulated Amortization Utilites Sewer System (9,810,100)             

   Accumulated Amortization Utilites Land Improvements (42,031)                  

   Accumulated Amortization Utilites Vehicles (47,171)                  

   Accumulated Amortization Utilites Equipment (386,734)                

   Accumulated Amortization Utilites Roads & Streets (24,930)                  

(20,600,551)          

TOTAL ASSETS 39,577,782            

Current:

   Util Capital due to/from Util Operating 150,000                 

        Total Current Liabilities 150,000                 

Long-Term:

   Long-Term Debt 7,967,369              

        Total Liabilities 8,117,369              

Investments:

   Investment in Fixed Assets 31,460,414            

        Total Equity 31,460,414            

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 39,577,782            

Capital Balance Sheet

As at 2023-03-31

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Town of Rothesay
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U2

Town of Rothesay
Balance Sheet - Utilities Fund Reserves

2023-03-31

ASSETS

   BNS Utility Capital Reserve # 00241 12 62,069                         

   BNS - Util Capital Reserve GIC 1,100,000                    
1,162,069$                 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Invest. in Utility Capital Reserve 730,318                       

   Invest. in Utility Operating Reserve 109,384                       

   Invest. in Sewerage Outfall Reserve 322,367                       
1,162,069$                 

2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_115



U3

Current assets:

   Accounts Receivable  Net of Allowance 2,921,844        
        Total Current Assets 2,921,844        

Other Assets:
   Projects 45,452              

45,452              

TOTAL ASSETS 2,967,296$      

   Accrued Payables 17,332              

  Due from General Fund 678,910            

   Due to Capital Fund (150,000)          

   Deferred Revenue 12,012              
        Total Liabilities 558,254            

Surplus:

   Opening Retained Earnings 32,898              
   Profit (Loss) to Date 2,376,144        

2,409,042        

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,967,296$      

EQUITY

Town of Rothesay

ASSETS

Utilities Fund Operating Balance Sheet

As at 2023-03-31

LIABILITIES
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U4

CURRENT BUDGET FOR  CURRENT   BUDGET  VARIANCE  ANNUAL 
MONTH MONTH    YTD       YTD   Better(Worse)  BUDGET

RECEIPTS
   Sale of Water 283,397 307,698 284,352 307,698 (23,346) 1 1,155,000
   Meter and non-hookup fees 16,579 16,105 16,579 16,105 474 64,420
   Water Supply for Fire Prot. 330,000 330,000 330,000 330,000 0 330,000
   Local Improvement Levy 58,881 59,000 58,881 59,000 (119) 59,000
   Sewerage Services 1,978,670 1,942,500 1,978,670 1,942,500 36,170 2 1,942,500
   Connection Fees 72,375 14,583 75,075 43,750 31,325 3 175,000
   Interest Earned 8,294 7,500 24,707 22,500 2,207 90,000
   Misc. Revenue 388 610 763 1,831 (1,068) 7,323
   Surplus - Previous Years 0 0 41,757 41,757 0 41,757
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,748,583 2,677,997 2,810,783 2,765,141 45,642 3,865,000

WATER SUPPLY
   Share of Overhead Expenses 52,250 52,250 52,250 52,250 0 209,000
   Wages 14,368 13,835 43,337 41,506 (1,830) 232,000
   Audit/Legal/Training 1,046 8,375 3,683 9,625 5,942 13,500
  Other Water 31 42 609 125 (484) 500
   Purification & Treatment 34,230 30,500 59,765 65,500 5,735 536,000
   Transmission & Distribution 297 9,167 3,188 27,500 24,312 4 110,000
   Power & Pumping 5,526 4,250 21,097 12,750 (8,347) 51,000
   Billing/Collections 97 417 292 1,250 958 5,000
   Water Purchased 124 100 249 300 51 1,200
   Misc. Expenses 481 2,250 5,721 6,750 1,029 27,000
   McGuire Road Operating 441 1,500 1,874 4,500 2,626 18,000
TOTAL WATER SUPPLY 108,891 122,685 192,064 222,056 29,992 1,203,200

SEWERAGE COLLECTION & DISPOSAL
   Share of Overhead Expenses 78,375 78,375 78,375 78,375 0 313,500
   Wages 29,000 29,000 87,000 87,000 0 348,000
   Audit/Legal/Training 235 3,417 1,480 4,250 2,770 11,000
   Collection System Maintenance 4,762 7,917 5,384 13,750 8,366 85,000
   Sewer Claims 121 0 4,842 5,000 158 20,000
   Lift Stations 8,534 6,750 20,084 19,250 (834) 77,000
   Treatment/Disposal 18,904 19,583 38,377 34,750 (3,627) 103,000
   Misc. Expenses 5,786 2,167 7,031 6,500 (531) 26,000
TOTAL SWGE COLLECTION & DISPOSAL 145,717 147,208 242,575 248,875 6,300 983,500

FISCAL SERVICES
   Interest on Long-Term Debt 0 0 0 0 0 254,803
   Principal Repayment 0 0 0 0 0 548,497
   Transfer to Reserve Accounts 0 0 0 0 0 175,000
   Capital Fund Through Operating 0 0 0 0 0 700,000
TOTAL FISCAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0 1,678,300

   TOTAL EXPENSES 254,608 269,894 434,639 470,931 36,292 3,865,000

   NET INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD2,493,976 2,408,103 2,376,144 2,294,209 81,934 (0)

Town of Rothesay
Utilities Operating Income Statement

3 Months Ended 2023-03-31

N
O

T
E

 #
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U5

Town of Rothesay Variance Report - Utility Operating

2023-03-31

Note Variance
# Account Name Actual YTD Budget YTD Better(worse) Description of Variance

Revenue
1    Sale of Water 284,352 307,698 (23,346)                Usage lower than expected
2    Sewerage Services 1,978,670 1,942,500 36,170                 Increase in users + fee increase > budget
3    Connection Fees 75,075 43,750 31,325                 Apt building in Q1

 
Expenditures
Water

4    Transmission & Distribution 3,188 27,500 24,312 Budget smoothed over yr

Sewer

Fiscal Services
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U6

Original Council  CURRENT   Remaining
BUDGET Approval  Y-T-D     Budget

WATER

W-2022-003 Filtration Bldg Water 630,000           -                  8,022 621,978
630,000$        -$              8,022$               621,978$       

SEWER

T-202*-001 Sewer work in Ashphalt contract 100,000 -$                0 100,000

S-2021-001 Turnbull Court Design 500,000 -$                1,100 498,900

S-2021-008 WWTP Design Phase II 50,000 -$                11,500 38,500

S-2023-002  Lagoon Dredging 1,320,000 -$                0 1,320,000
1,970,000       -                -            12,600               1,957,400      

Total Approved 2,600,000       -                20,622               2,579,378      

Carryovers

Funded from Reserves

S-2020-001 Turnbull Court Design 0 0 19,936 -19,936

W-2021-004  Well Development - Quality -                    0 4,894 -4,894

0 0 0 24,830 -24,830

2,600,000       -                45,452               2,554,548      

Funding:

Total Operating Reserves Borrow Gas Tax Grants
Water 630,000          330,000         300,000         
Sewer 1,970,000       370,000         1,600,000$        

2,600,000$     700,000$       -$          1,600,000$        300,000$       -$            

Capital Projects 2023

Utility Fund

3 Months Ended 2023-03-31

Town of Rothesay
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Town of Rothesay 2023-03-31

219500-60

Donations/Cultural Support Budget Paid to date

KV3C (in kind) 2,500.00                  -                             

NB Medical Education Trust 5,000.00                  

KV Food Basket 5,000.00                  154.04                       

Fairweather Scholarship 1,000.00                  

Saint John Theatre Company 1,000.00                  

Symphony NB 2,500.00                  

sub 17,000.00                154.04                       

Other: 19,500.00                

Sophia Recovery Centre 5,000.00                   

Rothesay High School 250.00                       

Special Olympics NB 200.00                       

You Can Ride Two 500.00                       

sub 19,500.00                5,950.00                   

36,500.00                6,104.04                   

G/L Balance 6,104.04                   -                                  

Other:

Kennebecasis Crimestoppers 2,800.00                  2,800.00                   Protective Services

PRO Kids 7,500.00                  7,500.00                    Recreation

10,300.00                10,300.00                 
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TOWN OF ROTHESAY 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE  
April 20, 2023 
 
In attendance:  
Mayor Nancy Grant  
Deputy Mayor Matt Alexander  
Councillor Don Shea 
Councillor Helen Boyle 
Town Manager John Jarvie  
Treasurer Doug MacDonald 
Financial Officer Laura Adair 
 
 
The meeting was called to order at 8:50am.  
 
The agenda was accepted with an alteration to the sequence, # (4) compliance report to be 
discussed prior to 3(d) to allow Don Shea to exit meeting due to a conflict of interest. (HB/DS) 
 
The minutes from March 30, 2023 were accepted as presented (NG/DS)  
 
February Financial Statements 
 

a) General Fund – Treasurer Doug MacDonald reviewed March Statements, nothing out of 
the ordinary. Variance report explained any significant differences. 
 

b) Utility Fund – Treasurer Doug Macdonald reviewed statements. Water volume 
consumption is lower than the previous years, which results in lower revenue. Sewer 
revenue higher due to new users. 

 
The statements were accepted as presented (DS/HB). 
 
 
Donation Requests – 2023 Summary 
 

a) Heritage NB – It was agreed to recommend deny request to Council to fund $1000 
(DS/NG) 

b) KV Girls Softball –It was agreed to recommend to council  to fund $500 for the East 
Coast Games Event (DS/NG) 

 
 
Compliance Report 
 
Compliance report – all items filed 
 
Motion to accept and receive items for information (HB/DS) 

2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_121



 
Don Shea exited meeting at 9:10am.  
 
Donation Requests – 2023 Summary 
 

c) Bradley Joudry - It was agreed to deny request based on Grants and Donation policy 1(c) 
(NG/HB) 
 

d) World Performers Canada – It was agreed to recommend to council to fund $500 to 
the group going to the World Performers (HB/NG) 

 
 
Next Meeting 
 
Regular Finance Meeting May 18, 2023 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:40am. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________    ________________________ 
Deputy Mayor Matt Alexander      Laura Adair 
Chairman       Recording Secretary 
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ROTHESAY 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 

 
TO : Mayor and Council 
FROM : Finance Committee 
DATE : May 2, 2023 
RE : Donation Recommendations 

 

 
 

The finance committee recommends the following motion re donation requests: 
 

 
 

a) Council deny a grant request from Association Heritage NB. 
 

b) Council approve a grant in the amount of $500 to KV Girls Softball 
Association. 

 
c) Council deny a grant request from Bradley Joudry. 

 
d) Council approve a grant in the amount of $500 to the dance group attending 

the 2023 Dance World Cup.  
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Your Worship and members of Council, 
MAR 2 0 2023 

March 8, 2023 

The Association Heritage New Brunswick (AHNB) is the official no; profit association of New Brunswick's 

heritage organizations, encompassing over 100 member groups including museums, historical sites, and 

galleries. Their mission is to promote the conversation, preservation, interpretation and appreciation of 
New Brunswick's heritage resources. 

The AHNB annual conference is the premier event for museum professionals and specialists in heritage 

to come together to advance their skills and knowledge. AHNB's 49111 Annual Conference and AGM will 

take place this year from November 8-10 in Sussex, at the Fairlane Inn. As the Conference Committee 

Chair, I, Melanie Wade, am reaching out to you today. We are looking for sponsors to support our 
conference through a one-time donation of up to $1000.00 

We have reached out to the Mayor's and Council of other communities in both Saint John and Kings 

counties and wonder if perhaps a combined donation from the areas in our Heritage Zone might be a 
possibility. 

Our conference is an Ideal opportunity to showcase and market your town and its services to our 

members. This year we would like to add value to your involvement in AHNB's conference by increasing 

the visibility of your town and raising awareness of the businesses and/or companies. 

We would like to offer Rothesay the following benefits as a sponsor: 

1. Rothesay logo would be prominently displayed within our conference program 

2. Rothesay Promotional materials would be included in swag bags 

3. Rothesay logo would be prominently featured in all communications about the event, on social 
media etc. 

4. We would offer an opportunity to provide a promotional sign visible throughout our lunch and 
banquet. 

5. We would offer a special thank you, by the host of the conference prior to the start of the 
conference and again at the end. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me at (506) 756-8546 or if you prefer my email is 
kingscountyhistoricalsociety@!gmaif .com 

You can find mor information about AHNB on their website at https:ljahnb-apnb.c~. We look forward 

to building on your relationship with heritage decision-makers from across New Brunswick. 

With our best regards, 

~1a;;:- //kU~ 
Conference Committee Chair 
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SCHEDULE A 

Application for Rothesay Municipal Grant 

App. Date: April 10th, 2023 
APR 1 1 2023 

Applicant: KV Girls Softball Association 

Address• 175 Hampton Rd, PO Box 21005, Quispamsis, NB ·-
Contact: Stacy Blois Tei._{506) 650-9336 

Email: president@kvsoftball.ca 

Organization Description: __ 

KV Girls Softball is a non profit fastpitch program for girls aged 4-19. 
more than 360g irls participated in our program-:-

Amount Requested: $_5_0_0_.0_0 ____ _ 

In 2022 

Descriptions of proposed event or activity: ___________ _ 

KVGSA has been chosen as the association to host the softball division of the 
Greater Saint John East Coast Games. Teams from NS, PEI and NB will 
compete in the U11 di¥ision at Wells Field on June 23 25th. 

Project costs:~-----------
umpires: $1120 Field Rental & Fie1d Supplies. $400 Commemorative l•shirts for participants 
$860 Medals for Gold and S ilver 6nishing learns $800 Player of lhe Game Awards S180 

Benefits to town of Rothesay: ________________ _ 

All teams participating in the East Coast Games will be from away, and will depend 
on the town of Rothesay to be their venue for meals and snacks for their family 
.throughout the weekend We are expecting approximately j 50.people..from..away_tO­
spend the weekend with us. The Wells Park provides lots of spectator space, and 
the dog park, walking traJI and playground allow tne siblings of players to keep busy 
.during the games We have been_commendecLmany timesJor-1ha..Wells.Eark 
venue. 

All records in the custody and control of the town of Rothesay are subject to the 
provisions of the Right to Information and Protection of Privacy Act ("the Act"), SNB 
2009, c R - 10.6 and may be subject to di-;closure under the provision~ of "the Act". The 
information collected on this form may be shared with internal department~, external 
agencie~ or relem,ed al a public Town Council or committee meeting. 

Any questions regarding the collection of this information can be directed to the 
Rothesay Town Clerk, 70 Hampton Road, Rothe~ay, NB E2E 5L5 (506-848-6664). 

3 
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SCHEDULE A 
Application for Rothesay Municipal Grant 

App. Date: March 31st. 2023 

Applicant:_ Bradley Joudry 

Address:  Rothesay, N_B _______________ _ 

Contact: Jeramie Joudry Tel.  

Email:  --------------
Organizatton Description: To allow a fosteri~g of leadership, ~omi:nunity, heath and 

well-being through t~E! promotion and development of fun and safe football m the province 

of New Brunswick for all age groups and for both genders - - --------
Amount Requested: $_2_00_ 0 ____ _ 

Descriptions of proposed event or activity:. To sponsor Bradley Joudry in part1c1patton 

of the 2023 Football Canada Cup as team NB travels to Edmonton. AB to represent NB 

Project costs: $2, 7!.§__ 

Benefits to town of Rothesay: Support c9mmunity b!gb_perlormin_a outh sport a_s .!JTl~Or 

sponsor of .!!'Suring a local Rothesay kid 1s being sponsored by the Town of RothesaL 

Bradley attends RHS and, has been in Fundy Minor Football since 2017 and, has also given back to his . . 

communit}'. throu9..h coaching the l~st few years and, m !>9ing an active volunteer during 

the _!!oodm9s a few years ago in both 2018 and 19. 

All records in the custody and control of the town of Rothesay are subject to the 

provisions of the Right to Information and Protection of Privacy Act ("the Act" ), SNB 
2009, c R-10.6 and may be subject to disclosure under the provisions of "the Act". The 

information collected on this form may be shared with internal departments, external 

agencies or released at a public Town Council or comminee meeting. 

Any questions regarding the collection of this information can be directed to the 

Rothesay Town Clerk, 70 Hampton Road. Rothesay, NB E2E SLS (506-848-6664). 

3 



2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_127

World Performers 
A UA A 

PARENT CONTACTS: 

Trevor & Jenny Shea 
 

Rothesay, New Brunswick E2E 3L5 

MEMBER TEAM CANADA 

Dance World Cup 
Braga, Portugal {June 30TH - July 8"™) 

PHONE -------------
Trevor Shea:  

WEBSITE 

https://dwcworld.com/home 

EMAIL 

 

COST ANALYSIS 

$2367.35 
$649.75 
$1000.00 

$938.68 
$1140.00 

$2920.62 

$600.00 
$6000.00 

Entrv fees. costumes. 
Soecial trio dance fees 
4 overnight rehearsals in 
Mnnrtnn NR 
Rehearsal in Toronto 
Accommodations in 
Tnrnntn 
Return airfare Canada -
Pnrt11n.:1I 
Travel insurance 
Accommodations. Braoa, 

Dr. Nancy Grant, Mayor & Councillors 
Town of Rothesay 
70 Hampton Road 
Rothesay, New Brunswick 
E2E SY2 

Dear Dr. Grant & Councillors:, 

March 25, 2023 

RECEUVED 
MAR 3 0 2023 

---------------
As the Mayor of Rothesay and an ally of young artists, permit me this 
opportunity to ask for your support assisting my daughter, Julia Shea, and 
her teammates, to participate as a member of Team Canada at the 2023 
Dance World Cup in Braga, Portugal - an event that will see competitors 
from over 60 countries. 

Julia Shea, Claire Randall, Harry Halpin and Brigitte Carroll are all residents 
of the town of Rothesay and Julia, Claire and Brigitte have danced and 
taught at KidSing Performance School (Kennebecasis Valley) for over 
eight years. In this time, these young artists have represented their 
community at many provincial competitions, performed at school and 
community events and contributed to community fundraisers such as the 
Empty Stocking Fund. 

Unfortunately, this opportunity comes with a cost. Each dancer must raise 
personal funds to participate. This is a once-in-a-lifetime opportunity and 
I sincerely hope you will consider helping these young artists realize their 
goals. A cost breakdown for each participant has been provided in the 
sidebar to the left. 

Each youth must have a parent chaperone throughout the process 
including, accompanying them to Portugal. 

On behalf of this wonderful group of teenagers and young adults, 
sincerely appreciate your consideration and would like to thank you for 
supporting Maritime amateur dancers. We have outlined helpful options 
for donations but any amount is greatly appreciated. 

GOLD 
PLATINUM 
PLATINUM PLUS 

$250.00 
$500.00 
$1000.00 (and up) 

Julia, Claire, Harry and Brigitte hope to have earned your support. Please 
feel free to connect with the undersigned to follow-up with a face-to-face 
meeting, phone call or to arrange a donation. 

Sincerely, ? ;$•• Harry and Brigitte) 
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World P 
CAN A DA,Nc. 

To whom it may concern, 

MAR 2 2 2023 

11{ H~c ~~/ 

ers 
Oct 2022 

World Performers Canada Inc. is an organization dedicated to the development and education of Canadian Dancers 
nationwide through travelling, training, and performing opportunities at an elite level. 

A group of dancers has been selected by World Performers Canada Inc. to represent Canada at the Dance World Cup 
(Europe) next June/July 2023 in Braga, Portugal. WPC's National Dance Team will represent Canada alongside 60-70 
other nations and share the stage with over 6000 competitors world-wide. 

Unfortunately, this opportunity does not come without cost. Each dancer must raise personal funds in order to 
participate in this initiative. This is a once in a lifetime opportunity for dancers across our nation and we hope you might 
consider helping through sponsorship. With your financial support, not only will you be helping to enrich the life of a 
dancer in your area but you will be contributing to a dream journey to represent our country while providing memories 
that will last a lifetime. 

Any donation made will allow the dancer to take one more step toward their financial goal. We sincerely appreciate 
your consideration and would like to thank you for supporting Canadian amateur dancers representing Canada. We have 
outlined helpful options for donations below but any amount is greatly appreciated. Please make payment payable 
directly to the dancer. Any donations over $1000.00 will be recognized on our social media. The company name will be 

recognized as a suppo~ &,31\-\e (CA.,.fo\ \ 

*GOLD LEVEL: $250.00 
*PLATINUM LEVEL: $500,00 
*PLATINUM PLUS LEVEL: $1000.00 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to get in touch with us! Thank you again for your consideration and 
support of our talented Canadian dancers! 

Warmest Regards! 

Jacques Monfiston and Nicole Garland 
Directors/Founders World Performers Canada Inc. 
http://worldperformerscanada.com 

·* ~e. Q.\--\-oc.ned s"'ee+ -b( 
'i<\-~ ""'~ oJoo..v-\- dctr¥:~,­

tr~ 1+\e, 

lnstagram: worldperformerscanada 

World Performers Canada Inc. 
c/o 105 Vanderhoof Ave #1 

Toronto, On M4G 2H7 
Email: worldperformerscanada@gmail.com 
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Here is some information about Brigitte Carroll, 

Born and raised in Rothesay, New Brunswick, Brigitte ls very excited and honored to be given 
the opportunity to represent Team Canada at the Dance World Cup this summer in Braga, 
Portugal. Brigitte will be competing as a member of their senior Jazz and Contemporary team 
and has also been selected to represent Canada as one of their senior soloists. This opportunity 
is so special in very many ways for Brigitte. Not only will Brigitte be competing on the world 
stage, but she will also be given the opportunity to meet and interact with many other dancers 
from all around the world and share her same love for dance with them. This is also very special 
to her as she will be sharing this experience with some of her very own students and dance 
friends. As amazing of an opportunity as this is, it does come at a high cost between airfares, 
accommodations for rehearsal weekends, accommodations, and food for 10 days in Braga, 
accommodations for her final rehearsals in Toronto, registration fees, choreography fees, and 
more! 

Brigitte has been a part of the dance world here in the Maritimes for over 15+ years. She started 
her dance journey as a competitive dancer at Kidsing Performance School. You may have seen 
her in Rothesay High School's musical production as a dancer and choreographer from 2014-
2018. After graduating in 2018, Brigitte moved to Charlottetown, PEI to continue her studies in 
dance performance. She graduated from the dance performance program at Holland College in 
2020. Shortly after she also obtained her GFI certificate with a primary focus in Barre fitness 
and received her Progressive Ballet Technique training. Since graduating, Brigitte moved back 
to Charlottetown, PEI to choreograph and teach at many local studios and continued dancing as 
a company member for the hurricanes dance team, X-Clusive Crew, and Oshun Dance Studios. 
Shortly after her move, she took on a larger role in the competitive dance world as the 
competitive director for 24Strong. While she is still currently working for 24Strong remotely, she 
has since moved back to Rothesay, New Brunswick, and continues to teach at both Kidsing 
Performance School and 24STRONG. She is very excited to have returned home to continue 
educating young dancers and sharing her love for dance with them in her hometown. This next 
journey will be a very big steppingstone for Brigitte as she aspires to continue to be a dance 
educator as well as a professional dancer. 

A message from Brigitte: 

" Growing up in the competitive dance world, the World Performers of Canada team has always 
been something I dreamt of being a part of. Once I had graduated high school and hung up my 
dancer's jacket and exchanged it for a teacher's hat, I assumed that my chances of receiving an 
invitation to this team were over. This organization is one of the very few organizations in 
Canada that allows dancers over the age of 18 to participate on a competitive and international 
level team. I am so honored to be representing the East Coast and team Canada as a member 
of their jazz and contemporary team in Braga, Portugal in June of 2023. My 14-year-old self 
would be very proud of 22-year-old me. 
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Thank you to my amazingly supportive friends, students, their families, my past dance teachers, 
and most importantly my incredibly supportive family. I know there is much fear that comes with 
watching your child pursue a career in the arts but with their ongoing love and support, they 
have made this possible for me in so many ways. Any donation, big or small makes a huge 
difference. Thank you to everyone who has supported me this far and that continues to support 
me. I am beyond appreciative! If you wish to contact me about sponsorship you can e-mail me 
at brigittehcar@gmail.com." 

Thank you in advance for your consideration. 

Brigitte Carroll 



 
 
 
 

ROTHESAY 
AGE FRIENDLY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Common Room, Rothesay Town Hall 
Tuesday, April 18, 2023 at 10 am 

 
 

 

 
PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR HELEN BOYLE  

  DR. SHAWN JENNINGS 
  JILL JENNINGS  
  NANCY HASLETT 
  DIANE O’CONNOR  
  WILLA MAVIS  
  DIANNE TAYLOR 
  ANGELA MORSE 
 
  RECREATION COORDINATOR KERI FLOOD 
  AGE-FRIENDLY COMMUNITY COORDINATOR KIRSTIN DUFFLEY 
  RECORDING SECRETARY ELIANE KNOX 

 
 
ABSENT: ROBERT TAYLOR 

  SAMAH MAGHLAWY 
  HIGH SCHOOL REPRESENTATIVE (Vacant) 
  ROTHESAY RESIDENT (Vacant) 
  TOWN MANAGER JOHN JARVIE 

 
The meeting was called to order by K. Duffley at 10:00 a.m. She gave introductory remarks and indicated 
that during the last meeting on February 21, 2023, no quorum was reached. 
 

1. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
K. Duffley called three times for nominations from the floor for Chairperson. N. Haslett nominated Diane 
O’Connor as Chairperson. There being no other nominations, Diane O’Connor was elected Chairperson 
by acclamation. 
 
Chairperson O’Connor called three times for nominations from the floor for Vice Chairperson. N. Haslett 
nominated Willa Mavis. There being no other nomination, Willa Davis was elected Vice Chairperson by 
acclamation. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOVED by Counc. Boyle and seconded by D. Taylor the agenda be approved as circulated.  

CARRIED. 
 
3. ADMINISTRATION 
3.1 Code of Ethics 
All members were asked to review the document, sign the Member Statement, and return it to K. Duffley. 

 
  

DRAFT 

2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_131



 

ROTHESAY 
Age Friendly Advisory Committee 
Minutes -2- 18 April 2023 
 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
4.1 Meeting minutes of November 22, 2022 
MOVED by N. Haslett and seconded by Counc. Boyle the minutes of November 22, 2022, be adopted 
as circulated.  

CARRIED. 
 

4.2 Meeting notes of February 21, 2023 
MOVED by Vice Chairperson Mavis and seconded by J. Jennings the meeting notes of February 21, 
2023, be adopted as circulated.  

CARRIED. 
 
5. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

N/A 
 
 

6. DELEGATIONS  
N/A 
 

7. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS 
7.1 Aging in NB User Guide (Second Edition): https://www.stu.ca/aging-in-nb-en/   
 
Chairperson O’Connor explained to the Committee the second edition of Aging in NB User Guide. 
K. Duffley mentioned that she can print upon request or can be accessed online. The link is indicated 
on the meeting agenda. Guides are also available at local libraries. D. Taylor suggested asking social 
workers to distribute the guide. W. Mavis offered to distribute copies. K. Duffley mentioned that she 
shared it on social media and in the Rothesay HIVE newsletter. 
 
A discussion took place regarding The Hive holding a Wellness Fair during the Fall. Chairperson 
O’Connor explained her experience organizing and planning the Wellness Fairs in the past years. 
She said it was successful and popular events for seniors 50-year old and over. During one event, 
they counted 1,000 visitors. 
 
N. Haslett asked if funding received from Canadian Health Solutions could be used to  organize a 
health clinic. K. Duffley advised that would have to be decided by Rothesay and Canadian Health 
Solutions to use the funding in that manner. 
 
K. Duffley informed the Committee that Hampton is organizing a Wellness Fair. She will contact 
them to inquire regarding their funding. Chairperson pointed out that Hampton Senior Resource 
Centre holds Speaker Sessions every Fridays. 
 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
N/A  
 

9. CORRESPONDENCE FOR ACTION 
N/A  
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ROTHESAY 
Age Friendly Advisory Committee 
Minutes -3- 18 April 2023 
 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
10.1 Age-Friendly Programming Update 

 

Rothesay Hive Programming 

What’s Going On: 
• New – We are going to start a Walking Group for the Rothesay Hive. Diane O’Connor will lead 

the group. No charge for participants. 
• New – We now have a Puzzle Library for the Rothesay Hive. Members can borrow puzzles to 

take home. No charge for participants. 
• New – We have pickleball equipment that will be able to be borrowed once the two courts open 

at Arthur Miller Fields for members. No charge for participants.  
• There will be no Tai Chi for the summer months as our instructor is away. Hopefully will return 

in the Fall. 
• Garden Club will have their first meeting for 2023 gardening season on Friday, April 28. No 

charge for participants. 

Rothesay Hive Members 

Rothesay Hive Facebook Group: 632 members 
Rothesay Hive Members as of now in 2023: 87 members. 

Renforth Seniors Exercise Classes 

The Renforth Seniors Exercise Classes remain popular. The class is still being offered at the Bill 
McGuire Centre on Mondays and Wednesdays from September to June each year. 

Zoomers on the Go 

The Zoomers on the Go program will continue at the Bill McGuire Centre for the month of April – June 
on Tuesday and Friday from 9:30am – 10:30am. The class currently has a waitlist. This program is run 
by UNC Cellab.  
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ROTHESAY 
Age Friendly Advisory Committee 
Minutes -4- 18 April 2023 
 

Saint John Newcomers Centre Programs 

Future Engage continues to have programs at the Rothesay Hive and various other locations depending 
on the activity on Thursdays from 10am-12pm. They also have their Conversational English Chats on 
Wednesdays from 3pm-4pm.  

June 1 – Intergenerational Day 

The Rothesay Hive will host another event for June 1st for Intergenerational Day. This year will not be 
as formal of an event, instead we are proposing a casual open house with lawn games with the students 
from the surrounding schools and games inside as well. The event would be Thursday afternoon.  
 
Chairperson O’Connor said she will bring skipping ropes for the kids. 

 
 
K. Flood suggested the arena to hold the Wellness Fair. She will talk to Chairperson O’Connor, K. 
Duffley, Charles Jensen, and Ryan Kincade, and get back to the Committee. June was suggested and to 
reach out to local nursing students. They could check the blood pressure. N. Haslett also suggested 
approaching local pharmacies. Chairperson O’Connor proposed to contact New Brunswick Extra-Mural 
retired nurses. N. Haslett mentioned Sandy Bergeron would be a great resource. She recommended 
holding the event in late September and before making the ice at the arena. Chairperson O’Connor 
indicated that she has a lot of contacts. It was proposed to do a mini–Wellness Fair at the Bill McGuire 
Centre to seek the interest of the public. 
 
D. Taylor spoke about the interest regarding The Hive poster with rehab clinics and social programs, 
particularly the seated classes. She indicated that she had notes and she will give them to K. Duffley.  
 
D. Taylor asked for an update regarding the 2023 Winter Speaker Series that was held in February. K. 
Flood replied that the number of participants was pretty good. The Death & Taxes was a big success.  
 
10.2 Rothesay Hive Member Feedback Survey 

 
K Duffley explained to the Committee that she created a survey for The Hive members only. It will be 
sent out by email and a paper copy will be given upon request. It would take up to 8 minutes to complete 
it. She asked the Committee members to please contact her for any comments or suggestions before she 
sends it next week. 
 
Chairperson O’Connor proposed to do a PSA for CBC radio. 
 
Chairperson O’Connor reminded the Committee members that there are two Committee vacancies. 
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ROTHESAY 
Age Friendly Advisory Committee 
Minutes -5- 18 April 2023 
 
 

 
11. CORRESPONDENCE FOR INFORMATION 

N/A 
 

12. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting is tentatively scheduled for Tuesday, May 16th at 10 am. 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOVED by N. Haslett and seconded by Counc. Boyle the meeting be adjourned.  
CARRIED. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 10:47 am. 
 
 
    
CHAIRPERSON RECORDING SECRETARY 
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ROTHESAY 
WORKS AND UTILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING 

Rothesay Town Hall Common Room 
Wednesday, April 19th, 2023 

5:30 p.m. 
 

PRESENT:   DEPUTY MAYOR ALEXANDER, CHAIRPERSON COUNCILLOR  
SHAWN CARTER, VICE CHAIRPERSON    
STEPHEN ROSENBERG  
CYNTHIA VANBUSKIRK 

 
TOWN MANAGER JOHN JARVIE 
DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS BRETT McLEAN 
RECORDING SECRETARY DEBBIE KEYES 

 
ABSENT:   DAVE BROWN  

SARAH RICHARDS 
GEORGE THAMBI 

 
    
 
Deputy Mayor Alexander acted as chairperson and called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 

 
    
The Committee welcomed new member S. Rosenberg and introductions were made.  
 

1. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
Deferred to next meeting of May 17th, 2023 due to lack of attendees. 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MOVED by S. Carter and seconded by C. Vanbuskirk the agenda be approved. 

CARRIED. 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Works and Utilities Committee meeting of March 22nd, 2023 
MOVED by S. Carter and seconded by C. Vanbuskirk the minutes be approved as circulated. 

CARRIED. 

4. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
N/A 

 
5. DELEGATIONS 

N/A 
 

6. REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS 
N/A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 DRAFT 
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ROTHESAY 
Works and Utilities Committee  
Minutes -2- 19 April 2023 
 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
7.1 Capital Projects Summary 

 
7.2 Solid Waste Tonnage Report 
Spring Cleanup is next month: 

• Solid Waste pickup is week of May 15th, 2023. 
• Organic Waste pickup is week of May 22nd, 2023. 

Town Manager J. Jarvie stated that Fero contract is up this year with an option to extend contract which 
the Town will bring a recommendation to Council. The Fundy Regional Service Commission is looking 
at managing a collection system on a regional basis.  

 
7.3 Speed Radar Signs Report 

 
8. CORRESPONDENCE FOR ACTION 
8.1 18 March 2023 email from resident RE: Chatwin Street 
DO McLean visited Chatwin Street last week, the main area of concern is between Civic #26 and Civic # 
32. DO McLean stated Chatwin Street will be looked at next year to possibly be added to the priority list 
on the annual resurfacing program after street is assessed by the Consultant.  

 
MOVED by S. Carter and seconded by C. Vanbuskirk to send a letter to the individual and 
acknowledge their concerns and let the resident know the Town employs 3rd party Consultants 
every other year to do road condition surveys. The condition of Chatwin Street (which 
includes drainage) will be assessed along with other streets during the annual resurfacing 
program survey. 

CARRIED. 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS  
 
10. CORRESPONDENCE FOR INFORMATION 
10.1  Discussion – Welcome Sign - photo provided by DO McLean 

   DO McLean stated the size of the new signs are 6ft x 12ft. DO McLean is having difficulty finding a 
location for these as there are a lot of restrictions from the DTI. Once a location has been found, the 
application will be submitted. 
 
10.2 Discussion - Holland Hill Development 
DO McLean has been in discussion with the developer on the best options for the land. The options are: 

1. The developer builds a public road to the Towns standard. 
2. The Town allows the developer to build a private facility over Town land which the developer 

is responsible for under contract. 
3. The Town sells the developer the land. 

 
10.3 Discussion – General Winter Maintenance  
DO McLean explained the winter maintenance contract currently with Stackhouse expires this year, the 
extension clause is complete. The Town will be going to tender around August 2023. 
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ROTHESAY 
Works and Utilities Committee  
Minutes -3- 19 April 2023 
 
 

11. DATE OF NEXT MEETING: 
Wednesday, May 17, 2023 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
    MOVED by S. Carter and seconded by C. Vanbuskirk the meeting be adjourned. 

CARRIED. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 6:40pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CHAIRPERSON RECORDING SECRETARY 
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ROTHESAY 
CLIMATE CHANGE ADAPTATION COMMITTEE 

Rothesay Town Hall Common Room 
& Webex Virtual Meeting 

Tuesday, April 25, 2023 at 5:30 pm 
5:30 p.m.  

PRESENT: MAYOR NANCY GRANT 
DEPUTY MAYOR MATT ALEXANDER, CHAIRPERSON  
ANN MCALLISTER 
KOREY NIXON 

 
TOWN MANAGER JOHN JARVIE  
RECORDING SECRETARY ELIANE KNOX 

 
ABSENT:  COLLEEN LANG  

LORRAINE PETERS 
 
 
Chairperson Alexander called the meeting to order at 5:37 p.m. 
 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MOVED by A. McAllister and seconded by Mayor Grant the agenda be approved, as circulated.  

CARRIED. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
2.1 Regular Climate Change Adaptation Committee meeting of January 24, 2023 
MOVED by Mayor Grant and seconded by A. McAllister the minutes of January 24, 2023 be adopted, 
as circulated. 

CARRIED. 
 
3. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 N/A 
 
4. DELEGATIONS 
4.1 Food Cycle Science Corporation  Kassia Régnier (see item 7.1.1) 
Chairperson Alexander explained to the Committee that at the last Council meeting a delegation from 
Food Cycle Science Corporation presented their program. Ms. Régnier is joining the Committee 
virtually today to explain it to the members. 
 
Ms. Régnier shared her screen. She thanked the Committee for having her today. She is the Municipal 
Program Coordinator at Food Cycle Science in Ottawa, Ontario. They focus on food waste diversion 
solutions. They sell directly to customers through different partners such as Vitamix, Breville, Sage, 
etc.  
 
She explained the municipal partnerships program to the Committee; currently in partnership with 72 
municipalities all over the country. The problem with food waste is it freezes during the winter, is 
heavy, costs a lot of money, etc. Additionally, when sent to landfills it does not really decompose and 
produces methane, which is a very pungent greenhouse gas emission. Landfills are filling up fast, 
creating cost and environmental issues. Hauling, transfer, and disposal services are a major cost factor 
and environmental contributor. Food in the garbage attracts animals, pests, and other unwanted visitors. 
 
She explained some solutions in different cities, such as green bins, however more trucks are on the 
road and are safety issues. She emphasized that we cannot keep filling our landfills with organics waste. 
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ROTHESAY 
Climate Change Adaptation Committee 
Minutes -2- 25 April 2023 
 
She presented the Food Cycle Science Corporation solution, which is called Foodcycler. It processes 
food waste into dry soil in 4-8 hours and does not consume a lot of energy. She showed the two models, 
FC-30 (2.5 liter) and Maestro (5.0 liter). The final product is dry, sterile, odourless and very rich in 
nutrients, which is good for gardening, add it to your composter or made into pellets as a home heating 
alternative. Foodcycler is a net negative carbon solution. 
 
From economic perspectives, the traditional waste management system is costly, very operationally 
challenging, and a never-ending process. With the Foodcycler, it is a decentralized system. Residents 
can take charge of their food waste and have an impact right at home. 
 
The company has completed over 50 pilots and more are in progress. What they found in these pilots 
is that over time people were becoming more aware of their food waste. 
 
She indicated that they have been granted federal funding in the amount of $400,000 that they are 
distributing among municipalities across Canada who wish to launch the pilot program; Rothesay could 
be included. Funding will be available until early June. 
 
They suggest a twelve-week program. Residents would start by purchasing a subsidized Foodcycler 
from their municipality. The company provides all the necessary marketing, documentation, and 
support. At the end of the program, they simply ask the participants to fill out an exit survey and then 
they analyze all the data collected through the tracking and present it back to the Council with a report. 
 
She presented the funded pilot program with support from Impact Canada. They suggest that the 
municipality subsidizes $100 per household and the rest is the responsibility of the resident. So, for a 
community of 5,000 people, they recommend 100 households. 
 
Town Manager Jarvie asked about the experience with people in apartment buildings. Ms. Régnier 
replied Foodcycler is a great solution for them. The company is doing pilot programs tailored 
exclusively to multi-residential buildings. 
 
Chairperson Alexander questioned if these can be bought at retail locations or through this program for 
now. Ms. Régnier replied that they do sell them directly to consumers via their partners, such as 
Vitamix (in North America), Breville (in Europe) and Sage (in Australia). She confirmed that the price 
is between $500 to $800.  Ms. Régnier pointed out that regarding the twelve-week program, they would 
need the signatures before June to reserve the funding for Rothesay. Therefore, the program would 
start in the summer and their report would be done in December. 
 
K. Nixon asked what the average expected life of the unit is, who would handle the warranties and 
maintenance. Ms. Régnier replied as for the FC-30, it lasts around 5 to 7 years. She added that they do 
offer warranties. The standard is a one-year and extra year warranties can be purchased. The FC-30, 
they offer a recycling program at the end of life of the units. However, the Maestro is built in modules. 
When a part of the machine breaks down, a part can be replaced instead of the entire unit. Furthermore, 
if there is an issue, they ask the resident to contact them directly and they would take care of it and not 
the municipality. 
 
A. McAllister asked about the size of the unit and if they do sit on the floor or counter. Ms. Régnier 
replied it is about the size of a bread maker. The unit volume of FC-30 is 30.5 liters and for the Maestro 
is 28.9 liters. It can be set under the kitchen counter if you have the space.  
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Climate Change Adaptation Committee 
Minutes -3- 25 April 2023 
 
A. McAllister asked how the unit works. Ms. Régnier explained it completely dehydrates the food 
waste, grinds it all up and heats it up with hot temperatures. No precaution needed regarding the heat, 
except to be careful with the blades while washing the unit. When the machine is done, it just shuts off 
by itself. The machine can handle bone, raw meat, dairy products. The only thing they do not 
recommend are big bones, such as steak bones, peach pits or too many cherry pits. 
 
Town Manager Jarvie explained the reason why he asked for this presentation to the Committee, is that 
he receives requests from apartment residents who want to compost and recycle. This could be a 
solution for them. He reminded that when the compost program started everyone received a little 
compost container and this machine could replace it. He described the next steps to the Committee 
members. 
 
K. Nixon asked the quantity units Rothesay would receive. A. McAllister said 200 for the size of the 
community. 
 
Mayor Grant informed that she and the Town Clerk had already received the information and referred 
Foodcycler to Fundy Regional Services Commission. 
 
MOVED by Mayor Grant and seconded by K. Nixon to recommend to the Council that the Town 
express interest in the program and subsequently solicit interest from the community, particularly 
apartments and multi-residential units. 

CARRIED. 
 
5. REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS 
 N/A 
 
6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

6.1 Flyers Distribution  
6.1.1 News Article https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/new-brunswick/saint-john-council-bylaw-

flyers-1.6813595 
 

6.1.2 Memo – Flyer Regulation 
 

  A. McAllister asked the Town Manager Jarvie why the memo was prepared and to explain the “heavy-
handed”. 
 

  Town Manager Jarvie replied that the town has a lot of authority, but do not have enough staff to 
enforce the by-laws, issue fines and keeping the records. 
 

  Mayor Grant said she thinks that the enforcement aspect of this would be minimal because it will be 
completely based on the complaints. It would be from someone who ‘s got a sign which indicate “no 
flyers”. Thus, she asked if it would be a simple phone call to the distributor. 

 
 Town Manager explained the legal aspects of the enforcement of by-laws to the members. 

 
Mayor Grant added that the by-law would be an educational tool as well. 
 
K. Nixon updated the Committee regarding his experience of stopping the distribution of flyers to his 
home. He received them once. He described the type of calls that Rothesay would receive are four 
weeks of accumulating at the end of the driveways. He also added that City of Saint John is moving 
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forward with a flyer distribution by-law. He would like to move forward with a by-law because of the 
nuisance and environmental factors. 
 
Town Manager Jarvie gave some examples of complaints and the enforcements. He said he would 
prefer to put a “no-flyer” sign in the window. 
 
A discussion took place regarding diverse ways of flyers delivery. 

 
 Chairperson Alexander expressed that he would like to see reduced waste. 
 

MOVED by K. Nixon and seconded by A. McAllister to recommend that Council consider the draft 
by-law respecting flyer distribution in Rothesay. 

CARRIED. 
 

Town Manager Jarvie will compare the City of Saint-John and Rothesay draft by-laws for consistency 
and will prepare a report with recommendations for the Council meeting in May. 

 
6.2 Anti-Idling Policy  
 

Town Manager Jarvie explained the difference idling in the summer vis-à-vis winter. He proposed to 
implement anti-idling on certain town vehicles and equipment this summer until the fall to see how it 
works. The trial would be from May until November and be reviewed in November. A message will 
be sent to supervisors and staff. Supervisors will be responsible for overseeing the anti-idling for their 
staff. 
 
A. McAllister asked the Town Manager Jarvie to send her the draft policy. 
 
6.3 Corporate GHG Action Plan - Project Portfolio  
 
Town Manager Jarvie distributed a Corporate GHG Inventory and Action Place Report that he prepared 
to identify the progress. He reminded the members that there are three components that apply to the 
town operations. He indicated that it is not his expertise. He explained the tables. He gave the example 
of Bill McGuire Memorial Centre moving from oil to electricity. The bottom of the table is a 
comparison between where they were in 2015 and where they were last year. There was a small 
reduction in the greenhouse gas footprint. He explained the Bill McGuire Centre power bill. He 
explained that the reason he prepared the report is that these plans are supposed to be 10-year plans 
which started in 2015. He suggested finding someone to update the report and bring some 
recommendations to the Committee. He also proposed to compare the increase of electric vehicles on 
the road. He said he will seek funding. 
 
A. McAllister said she liked the idea and asked if they could also compare with other towns, such as 
Quispamsis. 
 
K. Nixon asked to which town assets this would apply. 
 
Town Manager Jarvie replied that his thought is that you go back to the original, but different buildings 
are listed, but he would ask. He listed some upgrades that were done, such as at the pumping stations, 
the works garage, streetlights, backup generators, etc. 
 
A. McAllister questioned about the arena and reducing the carbon footprint.  
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Chairperson Alexander replied that the Town plan is to build a new facility and Council does not want 
to invest in the arena for the moment. 
 
Town Manager Jarvie explained there is an option with the arena project that would have heat captured 
from the ice plant used to heat to the dressing rooms. 
 
MOVED by A. McAllister and seconded by K. Nixon to recommend corporate greenhouse gas 
inventory and action plans in 2015 to be updated. 
 CARRIED. 

 
7 NEW BUSINESS 
7.1 BUSINESS ARISING FROM DELEGATIONS 

7.1.1 Food Cycle Science Corporation 
Email 
 

8 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting is tentatively scheduled for Tuesday, September 26, 2023, at 5:30 pm. 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
MOVED by K. Nixon and seconded by A. McAllister the meeting be adjourned.  

CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:47 pm. 
 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
CHAIRPERSON RECORDING SECRETARY 
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ROTHESAY 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO  : Climate Change Action Committee 
FROM  : John Jarvie 
Cc  :  
DATE  : 21/04/2023 
RE  : Regulation of Advertising Flyers 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended the situation continue to be monitored. 

Background: 
The Committee has tested the processes available to stop flyer delivery.  To date this test has 
indicated the processes are effective.  In the intervening period the Town has received one 
complaint about undesired flyers being delivered; however, it is not clear that even with a bylaw 
regulating flyer delivery, the incident would have been avoided. (The complaint was that a shear 
pin had be broken due to catching a flyer in a snow blower.  The individual was clearing a 
neighbour’s driveway.) 

While it can be tempting to have Town staff acting in an enforcement role to moderate 
behaviour, when there are successful measures available to for such purpose, that can be 
equally effective without resorting to what can appear to the recipient to be ‘heavy handed’. 

Should the Committee decide to recommend Council adopt a bylaw regulating flyers, a draft by-
law is attached.  
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BY-LAW x -2023  

A BY-LAW RESPECTING FLYER DISTRIBUTION IN ROTHESAY  

BE IT ENACTED by the Council of the town of ROTHESAY under the authority vested in it by the Local 

Governance Act, SNB 2017, c 18 as follows:  

1.  Title  

This By-law may be cited as the "Flyer Distribution By-law".  

2. Definitions  

In this by-law:  

a) "council" means Rothesay Town Council;  

b) "distributor" means any person, which distributes, permits to be distributed or causes to 

be distributed any flyer which promotes activities outlined in Section 3 of this by-law;  

c) "flyer" means any non-subscription based printed or written matter, and includes a 

circular, leaflet, pamphlet, paper, booklet, postcard, coupon, or any other printed or 

otherwise reproduced matter;  

d) "municipality" means the geographic area constituted as the town of Rothesay;  

e) "newspaper" means any newspaper or magazine of general circulation for which the 

occupant has paid or requested delivery;  

f) "person" includes a distributor, business, company, organization or corporation and the 

heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representatives of a person;  

g) "residential property" means property or part thereof used or intended to be used for 

residential purposes, but does not include the portion of a hotel or motel used for the 

purpose of lodging for the public or an apartment hotel;  

3. Application  

This by-law applies to any flyer distributed within the municipality that:  

a) Advertises or otherwise promotes any merchandise, product, commodity or thing;  

b) Directs attention to any business or mercantile or commercial establishment or other 

activity, for the purpose of either directly or indirectly promoting the interests thereof; or  

c) Directs attention to or advertises any meeting, performance, exhibition or event of any 

kind for which an admission is charged for the purpose of commercial gain or profit.  

4. General  

a) Any owner or occupier of a residential property may post a sign or notice on such 

residential property stating they do not wish to receive flyers.  

b) Any owner or occupier of a residential property who wishes to post a sign or notice in 

accordance with Section 4(a) above may:  

i. Post a sign or notice in such form as may be provided by the Council, or ii. Post a 

sign or notice created by the owner or occupier, provided that any such sign or notice 

meets the following specifications:  

1. Is a minimum 11 cm (4.5 in) wide by 12.5 cm (5 in) high;  

2. Consists of lettering that is in black font on a white background; and  
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3. Contains the phrase "NO FLYERS" in a font size of at least 38 pt in a 

sansserif (plain) font type, such as Arial.  

c) A sign or notice stating the owner or occupier does not want to receive flyers shall be 

posted on the residence in a manner such that the sign or notice is reasonably visible to a 

distributor.  

d) No distributor shall distribute or cause to be distributed a flyer at or on a residential 

property if a sign or notice has been posted pursuant to this Section 4.  

e) Sections 4(d) and 4(h) of this by-law shall not apply to the following:  

i. Any election advertising material which is permitted to be transmitted or 

delivered pursuant to any applicable federal, provincial or municipal legislation or 

regulation;  

ii. Newspapers delivered to paid or requested subscribers; iii. Community 

association newsletters or newspapers that do not contain flyers; iv. Information circulars 

produced by a federal, provincial or municipal government or an agency of such 

government;  

 v.  Information circulars produced by a member of Council, a member of the New  

Brunswick Legislative Assembly or a member of the Federal Parliament; or vi. 
 An apartment building containing six or more dwelling units.  

f) No distributor shall distribute or cause to be distributed any flyers on residential property 

other than:  

i. In a mail box;  

ii. In a mail slot;  

iii. In a tube or other receptacle designated for this purpose; or  

iv. On a doorstep  

g) No distributor shall distribute or cause to be distributed any flyers at or on a residential 
property where previously delivered flyers have not been retrieved for two consecutive 
weeks.  

h) No distributor shall distribute or cause to be distributed any flyers to any owner or 

occupant of residential property by leaving same in the owner or occupant’s community 

mail box where such owner or occupant has posted a sign or notice complying with this 

Section 4 on the residential property of the owner or occupant.   

5. Offences  

a) A person who violates a provision of this by-law is guilty of an offence and is liable on 

conviction to a fine.  

b) The minimum fine for an offence committed under this by-law is $140 and the maximum 

fine for an offence committed under this by-law is $2,100.  

c) If an offence committed under this by-law continues for more than one day:  

i. The minimum fine that may be imposed is the minimum fine established in this 

by-law multiplied by the number of days during which the offence continues; and  

ii. The maximum fine that may be imposed is the maximum fine established in this 

by-law multiplied by the number of days during which the offence continues.  
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6. Enforcement  

a) Every person duly appointed by Council as a by-law enforcement officer is hereby 

authorized to carry out any inspection that is necessary for the administration or 

enforcement of this by-law.  

b) Any peace officer or by-law enforcement officer is hereby authorized to take such actions, 

exercise such powers and perform such duties, as may be set out in this by-law, or in the 

Local Governance Act and as they may deem to be necessary to enforce any provisions of 

this by-law.  

7. Severability  

a) Where a court of competent jurisdiction declares any section or part of a section of this by-law 

invalid, the remainder of this by-law shall remain in force unless the Court makes an order to 

the contrary.  

  

   FIRST READING BY TITLE    __________________ , 2023 

  SECOND READING BY TITLE   __________________ , 2023 

  READ BY SECTION NUMBER  

  (Advertised as to content on the  

Rothesay website in accordance 

with the Local Governance act,  

SNB (2017) c.18) 

      __________________ , 2023 

 

THIRD READING BY TITLE 

AND ENACTMENT    __________________ , 2023 

 

  

   

   

  

Dr. Nancy Grant, Mayor  Mary Jane Banks, Town Clerk  

  

2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_147



                           

ROTHESAY 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

      Rothesay Town Hall Common Room 
Monday, May 1, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. 

 
PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR DON SHEA, CHAIRPERSON  

KELLY ADAMS 
JOHN BUCHANAN 
RALPH FORTE 
MATTHEW GRAHAM, VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
 
TOWN MANAGER JOHN JARVIE  
TOWN CLERK MARY JANE BANKS 

   RECORDING SECRETARY LIZ HAZLETT 
 
ABSENT: TRACIE BRITTAIN  

CHRISTIANE VAILLANCOURT 
COUNCILLOR TIFFANY MACKAY FRENCH 

 
DIRECTOR OF PLANNING/DEVELOPMENT (DPDS) BRIAN WHITE 

 
Chairperson Shea called the meeting to order at 5:29 p.m.  
 
1. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
MOVED by M. Graham and seconded by R. Forte the agenda be approved as circulated.  

CARRIED.  
 
2. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
2.1 Regular Meeting of April 3, 2023 
MOVED by J. Buchanan and seconded by K. Adams the Minutes of April 3, 2023 be adopted as 
circulated. 

CARRIED. 
 

3. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
N/A 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
N/A 

 
5. OLD BUSINESS 
              
TABLED ITEMS  

Tabled February 5, 2018 – no action at this time 
5.1 Subdivision Approval - 7 Lots off Appleby Drive (PID 30175467) 
 
Tabled September 8, 2020 – no action at this time 
5.2 Removal of PAC conditions and variance – 59 Dolan Road (PID 00094938)  
 
Tabled October 3, 2022 – no action at this time 
5.3 School Avenue (PIDs 30146708 & 30146674) – Rezoning & Subdivision Agreement 
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ROTHESAY 
Planning Advisory Committee  
Minutes -2- 1 May 2023 
 
5.4       38 Appleby Drive   Adam Hoar 

OWNER:    Shannon L. Hoar 
PID:     30194807 
PROPOSAL:    1 Lot Subdivision 

MOVED by R. Forte and seconded by M. Graham the Planning Advisory Committee hereby 
removes from the table the subdivision application from Mr. Adam Hoar to subdivide land off 38 
Appleby Drive, for one new building lot with reduced public road frontage.  

CARRIED. 
 
The applicant Mr. Hoar, and Andrew Toole of Don-Moore Surveys & Engineering Ltd., were in 
attendance. Town Manager Jarvie explained the application is to subdivide the property to create a 
new lot with access through the existing driveway, a variance for frontage, and land for public 
purposes. 
 
Mr. Hoar expanded, noting 38 Appleby Drive is his personal residence which he plans to sell once 
he downsizes to a residence on the new lot. There is more than enough land to accommodate a 
40x40 or 1800 sq. ft. building. He added he has developed other properties in Rothesay and is aware 
of common concerns such as drainage.  
 
The Committee inquired about the existing building (age and any prior concerns with its 
development), stormwater management (draft plan, evaluation of success, and reaction to public 
concerns), role of the Committee, and plans for the portion of land fronting on Rothesay Road.   
 
Mr. Hoar noted he is unaware of any prior concerns with the development of the existing property. 
He mentioned the original owner planned to subdivide the land into 6-7 lots until Mr. Hoar’s father 
purchased it and built a single residence on it 21 years ago. Mr. Hoar then purchased the property 
from his father 10 years ago. With respect to stormwater management, he explained the 
development will ensure measures are in place to control runoff that currently flows onto downhill 
properties.  
 
Mr. Toole elaborated on the draft stormwater management plan provided. He noted conditions are 
expected to worsen for downstream properties because of changing weather patterns. The 
stormwater management plan, for the development, will intercept and direct existing runoff into a 
detention pond, to be released at a controlled rate and into existing municipal infrastructure.  
 
Town Manager Jarvie informed the Committee that staff were unable to review the draft stormwater 
management plan as it arrived late this afternoon and Committee members were provided a copy at 
the meeting. Mr. Toole mentioned that the plan is in draft form, but it was modeled and determined 
to be effective. There will be more details in the final plan.  
 
Mr. Toole addressed pre-and-post development flow, noting the same amount of water will flow 
from the property but at a controlled rate. In intense rainfall events, downstream properties will 
benefit from “less” water as the flow will remain consistent whether it is a 1 in 5-year storm or 1 in 
100-year storm. He cautioned that the frequency of these events is increasing. When questioned he 
noted the two red arrows directed at each other, on the draft plan, indicate the location of a catch 
basin.  
 
  

2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_149

LizHazlett
Draft



ROTHESAY 
Planning Advisory Committee  
Minutes -3- 1 May 2023 
 
 
In response to an inquiry, Town Manager Jarvie advised the recommended conditions for approval 
require that a professional stormwater management plan be provided, thus a separate mention of the 
detention pond is not required. Following an inquiry about the Committee’s role, he clarified that 
the Committee must determine if the variance for lot frontage, and land recommended for public 
purposes, is acceptable. He cautioned approval should not be granted if the Committee is not 
satisfied that the lot can be safely constructed on.  
 
Mr. Hoar confirmed he has received public concerns in response to the polling letters. He noted the 
main concern relates to stormwater, and so he has proactively begun work on the stormwater 
management plan earlier than necessary. Controlling the water is intended to mitigate existing 
concerns such as uncontrollable direction and volume, especially with snow and ice build-up and 
intense rainfall events. He addressed other concerns about garbage, and snow removal, noting these 
have not been concerns on his other jobsites in the town.  
 
When questioned, Mr. Hoar confirmed the long portion of land leading to Rothesay Road will 
remain as it is.  
 
Chairperson Shea invited comments from the public. The following people spoke: Ann Fairweather, 
2278 Rothesay Road; Sherri and Don Arsenault, 2276 Rothesay Road; Michael Flawn, 68 Riverside 
Drive; and Ryan Dixon and Erica McAdam, 2274 Rothesay Road. Inquiries were made about the 
following: a lack of guarantee that stormwater management measures will work, and no recourse 
available to neighbouring property owners if it doesn’t; inclusion of the narrow portion of land, 
leading to Rothesay Road, if nothing is being done to it; location of the detention pond; blasting; 
consideration for stormwater implications should other developments be approved uphill; standing 
water (retention ponds); and a suggestion to redirect the water to Appleby Drive.   
 
Mr. Hoar reiterated that there are no plans for the narrow strip of land heading to Rothesay Road. 
He reassured the Committee, developers must adhere to, and cannot stray from, the requirements of 
development agreements and building permits (ex. building size, access, plans and drawings).  
 
Mr. Toole reviewed the draft stormwater management plan, noting a detention pond will be 
constructed near the existing garage. It will be a dry pond, so standing water will not be an issue. 
Mr. Hoar reassured the public he does not want flooding to occur. Any problems with the design or 
construction of the stormwater management infrastructure are the responsibility of either himself or 
Mr. Toole. Furthermore, the Town has policies in place to ensure infrastructure is built to 
appropriate standards. Mr. Toole explained how the plan was modeled/tested, utilization of existing 
stormwater infrastructure, how the water will be released from the detention pond, and rationale  for 
not directing the water to the system on Appleby Drive (insufficient capacity) or directly downhill 
on the strip of land fronting Rothesay Road (removal of trees required). Mr. Hoar and Mr. Toole 
reiterated that if the development does not occur, downhill properties will continue to receive an 
uncontrollable flow of stormwater which is expected to worsen in the future. Mr. Hoar spoke of 
stormwater management measures he implemented at 177 Gondola Point Road that are working 
flawlessly. He further noted a breaker might be required, but blasting will not occur, and the 
property is large enough that development will not compromise the integrity of the hill.  
 
Mr. Hoar explained that consideration was not given to potential development uphill. Should 
applications be forthcoming, each project must adhere to similar stormwater management 
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requirements.          
For the benefit of the public, M. Graham explained Committee approval is only one step of the 
process; the Town still needs to approve finalized plans.  
 
When questioned, Mr. Hoar confirmed he is aware of the proposed recommendations.    
 
MOVED by M. Graham and seconded by R. Forte the Planning Advisory Committee hereby grants 
a variance to allow for a reduced frontage of 6.4 meters on Rothesay Road for the proposed building 
LOT-2 to be created from 38 Appleby Drive (PID 30194807) with the following conditions:  
 

a. That the driveway access shall be from Appleby Drive through a common driveway 
documented with a private shared driveway easement agreement registered on the property 
title of both properties;  

b. The developer shall supply to Rothesay’s Town Engineer a stormwater management plan 
designed by a professional Engineer so that the peak surface runoff rates discharged from a 
site subsequent to development shall not exceed pre-development peak discharge rates; and  

c. The developer agrees to provide Rothesay’s Town Engineer with written stamped 
certification from the design Engineer that the stormwater management plan has been 
satisfactorily completed and constructed in accordance with the approved plan.  

d. Completion of a stormwater management system before issuance of a building permit. 

 
ON THE QUESTION: 
There was a brief discussion proposing that a condition be included (d) to ensure the stormwater 
management system is completed prior to issuance of a building permit.  
NAY vote recorded from J. Buchanan.  

CARRIED. 
 

MOVED by R. Forte and seconded by M. Graham the Planning Advisory Committee hereby 
recommends that Council accept the waterfront parcel PID 30194815 as Land for Public Purposes 
for the proposed building Lot-2 to be subdivided from vacant land off Appleby Drive (PID 
30194807).  

CARRIED. 
 
J. Buchanan left the meeting.  

 
Town Manager Jarvie explained a detailed plan will be prepared, and subsequently reviewed by 
Town staff, and it may be subject to change. He clarified there are no guarantees, but the Town will 
have some oversight, and the onus is on the developer to ensure it is built in accordance with the 
design. He added the plan can be available to the public upon request to the developer.  
 
J. Buchanan returned to the meeting.  
 
Town Manager Jarvie briefly spoke of Town policies pertaining to construction on sloped areas. 
Construction is not permitted if the grade exceeds 30%, and there are provisions for areas with 
slopes of 10-30%.  

 
 
 

2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_151

LizHazlett
Draft



ROTHESAY 
Planning Advisory Committee  
Minutes -5- 1 May 2023 
 

 
5.5 Holland Drive   Andrew Baskin 

OWNER:    A.C. Baskin Investments Inc. 
PID:     00056598 
PROPOSAL:  4 Story (48 Unit) multi-unit residential building  

Rezoning R1-B to R-4 
The applicant, Mr. Andrew Baskin, and Mr. Jacob Kilpatrick, Civil Engineering Lead of 
Engineering by Houghton, were in attendance. Chairperson Shea briefly summarized the proposal.  
 
Mr. Baskin informed the Committee that feedback received from prior applications was considered 
in preparation of the current proposal.  
 
Town Manager Jarvie highlighted the following: a review of the proposal based on the current 
Municipal Plan and Zoning By-law (new Zoning By-law is forthcoming thus there may be 
discrepancies such as building height and front of lot parking); a public hearing is scheduled for 
May 15th; and a draft development agreement was provided but is subject to change.       
 
Mr. Kilpatrick gave a presentation, highlighting:  
- Revisions based on prior feedback (change to a 4-storey building, 96 units reduced to 48) 
- Adjacent properties are largely commercial and multi-unit residential (PID under discussion is 

closest of the three properties to Hampton Road) 

- Alignment with the Municipal Plan (area designated for high-density) 
- Promotes walkability  
- Underground and surface parking 

- Public concerns: 
o Traffic: traffic study conducted for 96 units deemed the proposal would have a 

negligible impact, therefore a reduction of almost half (48 units) would have even less 
of an impact 

▪ No direct connection to Hampton Road but pedestrian access is possible  
o Building Height: reduced from 6 storeys to 4 storeys 

o Fire Protection – 4 storeys similar to many existing buildings serviced by the 
Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department 

- Community benefits: 
o High demand for housing especially high-quality options 

▪ Public interest in downsizing due to aging population 
o Chapel Road to Holland Drive route designated as active transportation route in 

Rothesay’s Active Transportation Master Plan 
o Water, sewer, and stormwater infrastructure already exists and has sufficient capacity 

o Contribution to Chapel Road/Marr Road traffic signals 
- Parking:  

o Under the by-law requirement but based on bedrooms per unit (final unit layout 
addressed further in design phase) 

o Underground parking is conservative considering size of parking stalls 

o Parking in front discussed with staff for possible variance, vegetation will be used to 
screen the parking lot, and it is not considered detrimental to neighbourhood  

 
 
 

2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_152

LizHazlett
Draft



ROTHESAY 
Planning Advisory Committee  
Minutes -6- 1 May 2023 
 
 
Chairperson Shea relayed a question from a community member, asking about connections to 
Canadian Tire and Sobeys. Mr. Baskin mentioned he reached out to Sobeys to discuss the 
possibility, but his call was not returned. He spoke of a plan for a walkway around the original three 
parcels but it is not possible in this proposal without shrinking the building. He offered it could be 
explored when development of the other two parcels of land is discussed. Mr. Kilpatrick noted there 
is a sidewalk connection in the direction of Canadian Tire and it would not take much to extend the 
sidewalk. Additionally, a pedestrian connection could be explored from Holland Drive without 
creating access for vehicles. However, a connection to Sobeys requires use of Town right-of-way.   
 
There was further discussion about the proposal in relation to the Municipal Plan (designated high-
density area), and parking requirements (location and capacity – 5 spots short). Town Manager 
Jarvie advised: use of the land aligns with the Municipal Plan’s high density designation and 
walkability, but it is up to the Committee to determine if the proposal is appropriate; parking in the 
front of the lot impacts the total area of greenspace required; the integrity of existing infrastructure 
must be maintained; a pedestrian connection to Hampton Road is possible but a vehicular 
connection is not recommended; staff agree that traffic would have a negligible impact on Chapel 
Road; and should applications for development on the other two parcels of land be submitted in the 
future, they will be judged by their own merit.   
 
When questioned, Mr. Baskin confirmed he also owns the two other lots shown on the site plan.  
 
MOVED by K. Adams and seconded by M. Graham the Planning Advisory Committee hereby 
recommends that Council enact By-law 2-10-34 to rezone land located off Holland Drive (PID 
00056598) from Single Family Residential – Standard Zone [R1B] to Multi-Unit Residential (R4) 
to allow for the development of a 48-unit apartment building subject to the execution of a 
Development Agreement as amended, in accordance with the Community Planning Act.  
 
ON THE QUESTION: 
R. Forte was disappointed there are no members of the public to speak for or against the project. He 
questioned if the project would benefit, or be fair to, nearby residents. He raised a concern that 
approval of this project may make it easier to approve more high-density developments on the two 
adjoining parcels of land.   
 
Mr. Kilpatrick reiterated that any proposals for the two parcels of land must undertake the same 
process as this proposal, and there are density restrictions for each parcel. He asked what Mr. Forte 
means by “being fair to residents”? Mr. Forte responded by asking Mr. Kilpatrick if he would want 
the proposal in his backyard. Mr. Kilpatrick mentioned he has children that sometimes play on the 
street so his focus would be on traffic. Owing to its location, he does not feel the building would be 
imposing on the neighbourhood. Mr. Baskin agreed, noting: the building is in a gully on a hill which 
mitigates the overall height; surrounding properties are mostly commercial (visibility from 
Hampton Road) or multi-unit buildings (two of which Mr. Baskin owns on Scribner Crescent); the 
property owners of 11 Holland Drive (directly adjacent to the property) and 142 Hampton Road 
have not spoken out against the proposal; and the plan is to build an aesthetically pleasing building 
to benefit the Town and its residents. He added the parcel’s proximity to Hampton Road is the 
rationale for building on this parcel first, even though it would be more cost efficient to construct 
the road to the parcel closest to Chapel Road.  
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There was a brief discussion about the difference in elevation from the property to the closest 
property on Chapel Road (#19) – roughly 30ft.  
NAY vote recorded from R. Forte. 

CARRIED. 
 

MOVED by K. Adams and seconded by M. Graham the Planning Advisory Committee 
recommends that Council authorize the Mayor and Clerk to enter into an agreement, as amended, 
to allow for the development of a 48-unit apartment building on land located off Holland Drive 
(PID 00056598).  
NAY vote recorded from R. Forte. 

CARRIED. 
 
6 CORRESPONDENCE FOR INFORMATION 
 N/A 
 
7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING(S) 
The next meeting will be held on Monday, June 5, 2023. 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
MOVED by J. Buchanan and seconded by R. Forte the meeting be adjourned. 

CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:56 p.m. 
 
 
 
CHAIRPERSON 

 
RECORDING SECRETARY

 

2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_154

LizHazlett
Draft



                                                                                      

ROTHESAY 
MEMORANDUM 

             
TO  : Mayor and Council 
FROM  : Planning Advisory Committee 
DATE  : May 3, 2023 
RE  : 38 Appleby Drive (PID 30194807) 
             
 
Recommendation: 

➢ Council accept the waterfront parcel PID 30194815 as Land for Public 
Purposes for the proposed building Lot-2 to be subdivided from vacant land 
off Appleby Drive (PID 30194807).  

 
Background: 
The Planning Advisory Committee discussed the following motions at its regular meeting 
on Monday, May 1, 2023: 
 

MOVED by M. Graham and seconded by R. Forte the Planning Advisory 
Committee hereby grants a variance to allow for a reduced frontage of 6.4 meters 
on Rothesay Road for the proposed building LOT-2 to be created from 38 Appleby 
Drive (PID 30194807) with the following conditions:  
 
a. That the driveway access shall be from Appleby Drive through a common 

driveway documented with a private shared driveway easement agreement 
registered on the property title of both properties;  

b. The developer shall supply to Rothesay’s Town Engineer a stormwater 
management plan designed by a professional Engineer so that the peak 
surface runoff rates discharged from a site subsequent to development shall 
not exceed pre-development peak discharge rates; and  

c. The developer agrees to provide Rothesay’s Town Engineer with written 
stamped certification from the design Engineer that the stormwater 
management plan has been satisfactorily completed and constructed in 
accordance with the approved plan.  

d. Completion of a stormwater management system before issuance of a 

building permit. 

 
ON THE QUESTION: 
There was a brief discussion proposing that a condition be included (d) to ensure 
the stormwater management system is completed prior to issuance of a building 
permit.  
NAY vote recorded from J. Buchanan.  

CARRIED. 
 

MOVED by R. Forte and seconded by M. Graham the Planning Advisory 
Committee hereby recommends that Council accept the waterfront parcel PID 
30194815 as Land for Public Purposes for the proposed building Lot-2 to be 
subdivided from vacant land off Appleby Drive (PID 30194807).  

CARRIED. 
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70 Hampton Road 

Rothesay, NB 
E2E SLS Canada 

TO: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

RECOMMENDATION 

May 111
\ 2023 

R~Ad~ Committee 

' . :J« 
Brian White, Director of Planning & Development Services 

Wednesday, April 26, 2023 

1 Lot Subdivision Application - 38 Appleby Drive 

Rothesay PAC HEREBY removes from the TABLE the subdivision application from Mr. Adam Hoar to 
subdivide land off 38 Appleby Drive, for one new building lot with reduced public road frontage. 

BACKGROUND 
On Monday, April 3rd, 2023, Rothesay PAC TABLED the subdivision application from Mr. Adam Hoar to 
subdivide his land at 38 Appleby Drive pending renotification of the neighbouring properties. 

ANALYSIS 
The notification for the April PAC meeting incorrectly identified that meeting as an online meeting which 
created confusion for some residents. To remedy the notification error Staff did send out letters to residents 
within 100 meters of the proposed subdivision infom,ing them that the Planning Advisory Committee would 
meet in person at 5:30 p.m. on Monday, May 1st, 2023, to consider the application. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A - PAC Recommendation Report 
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Planning Advisory Committee 

April 3rd, 2023 

To: Chair and Members of Rothesay Planning Advisory Committee 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Applicant: 

Brian L. White, MCIP, RPP 

Director of Planning and Development Services 

Thursday, March 30, 2023 

1 Lot Subdivision - 38 Appleby Drive 

Adam Hoar 
Property 
Owner: 

Mailing Address: 
38 Appleby Drive Mailing 
Rothesay, NB E2H 1 P2 Address: 

Property 
38 Appleby Drive PID: 

Location: 

Plan Designation: Low Density Zone: 

Shannon L. Hoar 

38 Appleby Drive 
Rothesay, NB E2H 1 P2 

30194807 

Single Family Residential-
Standard - RlB 

Application For: Lot Fronta2e Variances and Cash in Lieu of Land for Public Purposes 
Input from Other 

Polling, Director of Operations 
Sources: 

ORIGIN: 
A subdivision application from Mr. Adam Hoar to subdivide his 18,575.64 (4.59 acres) land off 38 
Appleby Drive, for one new building lot (8256 sq. meters - 2 acres) with reduced public road frontage 
and accessed via an easement (E-1) as shown on Dwg: 230 l 3SDT. Please refer to Lot 2 on the proposed 
plan of subdivision attached. 

SNl!non ltt Hoar o· > ~ ,.,~nu -0..., .. 1:t 

1...... ~ ~.....___,._ 
.. . 

ti 
N 

I 
! 

Loi 00-2 ,,.,,,u·:::. 
9'C l01tirM 

Lot 73-5 _..,. 
•o""' 

Figure I • Proposed Tentatin: Plan (D\\g: 2301JSDT) 
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BACKGROUND: 
The subject property is zoned Single Family Residential - Standard (Rl-B) and has an existing single­
family home on the land. The RIB zone permits residential lots with a minimum area of 1350 square 
meters (l/3 acre) with 30 meters of public road frontage. LOT-2 with a proposed area of8256 sq. meter 
(2 acres) exceeds the minimum lot size requirement by 500%+, however, a frontage variance 1s 
requested as follows for the new building lot: 

By-law Requirement for Rl-C Lots 

Required Public Road Frontage 30 meters 

Variance Requested 

Proposed Public Road Frontage 6.4 meters 
requires a variance of 78.6% 

Figure 2 - Subject Property 38 r\ppleb) DriH 

Staff note that 6.4 meters is not enough width to accommodate a private driveway and the location to 
the Rothesay Road is too steep to accommodate a driveway. For that reason, the proposed LOT-2 will 
share a common driveway with the existing lot (Lot-I) this driveway will be privately owned and Town 
services (garbage pickup, plowing, or maintenance) will be offered only at the public/private curbside 
connection along Appleby Drive. 

Flag lots such as the proposed lot are contemplated by the Municipal Plan specifically Policy PS-2; 
which states that no more than three flag lots are permitted where they are contiguous to each other 
with all access through a common right-of-way. The maintenance of the common right-of-way shall be 
attributed to all properties and documented through a private driveway agreement registered on the 
property title. 

2 
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Flag lot subdivisions are a type of land subdivision in which a narrow strip of land, known as a 
"flagpole," provides access to a larger, irregularly shaped lot located behind it. This type of subdivision 
is often used in situations where a large lot cannot be subdivided in a more traditional manner due to 
topographical, zoning, or financial constraints. 

The decision to pennit flag lot subdivisions depends on a variety of factors, such as the efficient use of 
land by making use of irregularly shaped or difficult-to-develop lots. Likewise, flag lot subdivisions 
can provide a greater sense of privacy by allowing homes to be located further back from the street. 

DEVELOPMENT ON STEEP LAND 
The Subdivision By-law states that the land must be suited to the purpose, which is proposed, in this 
instance the land is steep however the existence of a home on the same lot gives some us a good 
indication that the land is suitable. Staff do recognize that developing a home on a steep hillside lot can 
present some unique challenges, but with proper planning and design, it can also result in a beautiful 
and functional living space. Staff note that should the PAC grant the variance the applicant will need to 
provide Rothesay with an assessment of the slope and geotechnical stability. The design of the home 
may also need to be tailored to the specific characteristics of the hillside lot. For example, the foundation 
and driveways may need to be engineered and reinforced to accommodate the slope. 

Staff also note that managing stonnwater runoff is an important consideration for any residential home, 
but it becomes even more critical when the home is built on a steep hillside lot. The lot should be graded 
to direct stonnwater away from the home and towards appropriate drainage channels. Swales, ditches, 
and other drainage features can be used to manage the flow of stonnwater and to protect both their 
property and their neighbours. Staff have made specific recommendations to require an engineer 
stormwater management plan to address this concern. 

LAND FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES 
Rothesay's Subdivision By-law states that "As a condition of approval of a subdivision plan, land in 
the amount of ten percent (10%) of the area of the subdivision, exclusive of the public streets, at such 
a location as assented to by Council pursuant to the Act, is to be set aside as Land for Public Purposes 
(LPP). 

Based on the by-law requirements Rothesay would be entitled to 10% 825.6 sq. meters of land based 
on the proposed area of LOT-2. Rothesay's preference is acquiring the applicant's waterfront parcel 
(PID 30194815) as LPP (see Figure 2). This parcel is strategically important to the eventual 
development of a waterfront trail along the Kennebecasis River and for that reason Staff are 
recommending that PAC recommend accepting 585.3 7 sq. meters of land, noting that this is 240 square 
meters less than the requirement, in fulfillment of LPP. 

In 2001 Rothesay prepared a conceptual plan for the proposed "Rothesay Millennium Trail" project 
a 1.8 km walking trail to be located between the CNR railroad and the Kennebecasis River connecting 
the East Riverside/Kingshurst Park with Renforth Beach. Today Rothesay has acquired ~ 1 km of the 
required waterfront parcels. 

Unfortunately, the applicant is reluctant to part with this waterfront parcel ofland and is requesting that 
the Council accept $8,916.48 as cash in lieu of LPP. The amount of cash is calculated by a formula in 
the by-law which values the area of Lot-2 (8256m2) at $13.50/sq. meter resulting in a market value of 
$111,456.00. The applicant would be required to pay 8% of that market value amount which would be 
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$8,916.48. Staffs' preference is to recommend the acquisition of the waterfront land so that eventually 
the public would own the entire river waterfront from Renforth Wharf to East Riverside Kinghurst Park. 

Staff note that the applicant has suggested that the waterfront parcel has a greater value than the Town's 
LPP formula calculation. For that reason, the applicant requests that if the Town would consider relief 
or reimbursement of the building permit fee for the new home, they would then be agreeable to granting 
the land as LPP. Staff estimate the building permit fee in the range of $3500 to $4000. Staff are not 
aligned with the applicant's assessment of the property value and are disinclined to support the fee 
reimbursement as this would potentially overvalue the waterfront parcel. 

POLLING 
Polling was conducted for the proposed subdivision and nearly all the downslope residents along the 
Rothesay Road called, emailed (see polling results attached), or met with Town Staff to ask general 
questions about the project. All of the correspondence received raised concerns regarding lot drainage 
and the potential for adverse drainage runoff from the proposed driveway and new home. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff are recommending that PAC consider the following MOTIONS: 

PAC HEREBY, grants a variance to allow for a reduced frontage of 6.4 meters on Rothesay Road 
for the proposed building LOT-2 to be created from 38 Appleby Drive (PIO 30194807) with the 
following conditions: 

a. that the driveway access shall be from Appleby Drive through a common driveway 
documented with a private shared driveway easement agreement registered on the 
property title of both properties; 

b. The developer shall supply to Rothesay's Town Engineer a stormwater management 
plan designed by a professional Engineer so that the peak surface runoff rates discharged 
from a site subsequent to development shall not exceed pre-development peak discharge 
rates; and 

c. The developer agrees to provide Rothesay's Town Engineer with written stamped 
certification from the design Engineer that the stonnwater management plan has been 
satisfactorily completed and constructed in accordance with the approved plan. 

PAC HEREBY recommends that Council accept the waterfront parcel PID 30194815 as Land 
for Public Purposes for the proposed building Lot-2 to be subdivided from vacant land off Appleby 
Drive (PIO 30194807). 

Attachments: 
Attachment A Proposed Subdivision Plan 

Report Prepared by: Brian L. White, MCIP, RPP 
Date: Thursday, March 30, 2023 
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POLLING RES UL TS 

Good afternoon, Brian 

I would like to take this opportunity to relay concerns regarding the proposed building lot PID 
30194807. 

I reside at 2260 Rothesay Road, sharing a back property line with the proposed lot. I felt it important to 
share that we currently experience heavy water flow from the back hill portion of the property already. 
Even with several trenches we deal with flood damage to our home, land, and shared driveway, in 
addition to dangerous ice in the winter. 

Removing trees, shrubs, and brush will take away natural sources currently assisting in holding back 
additional water. With new building structures and probable paved driveway, combined these things 
will inevitably cause significantly more water to flow downhill onto our property. Increased water 
streams means more land loss, erosion, shifting of the earth causing collapsing of trees, and damage to 
building foundations and roadways. 

Having this new build will be detrimental to the properties below. We strongly urge you to take this 
into consideration when making final decisions. We are not in support of this. 

I appreciate your taking the time to read through our concerns and adding them to the public record. 

Thank you, 

Resident 2260 Rothesay Road 

March 27th 2023 

Good Morning Mr. White, 

My name is (redacted) and I live at 2276 Rothesay Road. I have great concerns re: application to create 
1 new building lot with reduced public road frontage (pid 30194807) dated March 15, 2023. 

My husband and I live below lot#2, the purposed building lot. We would be very interested as to who 
(the engineer) would be doing the drainage system for this property and if they would be guaranteeing 
"net 0 drainage down on our property and the many other properties below? 

We would also be concerned about any blasting, potentially damaging the integrity of the hilt and our 
foundations, walls etc. And if they would be responsible for our repair? 

I understand there is no formal reply to my letter but if I could simply get a few words acknowledging 
it was received. i would appreciate it and add it to my file. 

Kind regards, 

Resident 2276 Rothesay Road 
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Dear Brian and Rothesay PAC 

We have received your Public Notice RE: Application to Create l New Building Lot with reduced 
Public Road Frontage (PIO 30194807). 

Our concerns with the proposal: 

The proposed "Lot 2" is located directly behind our property (PIO 30346944) and is one large hill 
angled towards Rothesay Rd. We currently have a drainage system and retaining wall in place around 
the periphery of our property to direct water to both the east/west of our house. This current system is 
designed to handle the natural flow of water off the hill behind our residence. We are concerned that 
building an access road and potential residence in this area will affect this natural water drainage. This 
will most likely lead to us incurring cost to upgrade or change the current draining system on our 
property. During the purchase of our property in Aug-2021, we specifically delayed our purchase until 
we were able to see how the drainage system functioned in wet conditions at our property and the 
surrounding areas. 

A fitting example of this effect is already occurring at the property in question. The current property at 
38 Appleby Drive has a culvert under their existing driveway that concentrates the water drainage from 
the hill into one central location, which sheds directly into the properties below (PIO 30346944, PIO 
00240002, and PAN O 1233096). The effects of this culvert/driveway have been so drastic that the 
previous owners of PAN 01233096 had to build an extremely large and costly drainage system to 
accommodate for the water run-off. An additional road in this area will concentrate even more water 
run-off as they will undoubtedly need to build culverts under the driveway to keep the road from 
washing out. This will have unintended consequences for the existing properties along Rothesay Rd. 

This will be an incurred cost/risk that we will have to bear based off of this development. Therefore, 
we are not supportive of this application. 

We have attached several videos to this email to show you the amount of water that naturally drains off 
this property into our backyard. 

Thank you, 

Resident 2274 ROTHESA Y RD 

With respect to the variance being requested, I have no objections, however, I do have a concern 
regarding water runoff and drainage. 

My property is highlighted on the attached Public Notice. 

I invested a significant amount into landscaping my property in the past few years, including a sizable 
French drain to collect water runoff. I would like assurance that development of the proposed new 
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building lot will include the requirement to control water runoff from the property such that it does not 
adversely affect my property and the investment I have made. 

Since I bought my property in 2008, rainfall has become longer and harder such that erosion damage to 
my yard was quite noticeable. The work done has enhanced my yard and I would not want to see my 
efforts wasted due to water collection measures not being properly implemented on future property 
developments. 

Yours truly, 

2280 Rothesay Road 
Rothesay, NB 
E2H 2K5 

Good morning. 

We own PIO 00240077 (2258 Rothesay Road) adjacent to the proposed subdivided lot. 

The proposed new lot in its undeveloped state is very steep. Rainfall, snow melt and other groundwater 
from this property currently drains by gravity to the lots below it on the river side. Development of this 
lot would likely see the ground levelled to accommodate a house and yard with some sort of drainage 
system added. 

Our concern is with the plan for drainage of this groundwater from the subdivided lot. Properly, we 
believe, this water would be diverted directly into Town storm drains on Appleby Drive. Our fear is 
there would be no such plan or requirement and the water would be drained from the back end of the 
proposed lot onto undeveloped PIO 00240093 owned by AE MacKay Builders Ltd, and then by gravity 
onto our land. 

We currently have our hands full in spring and during heavy rains dealing with runoff from the MacKay 
land as it is without adding to the problem. In addition, having been on the bad end of a poorly thought 
out and unregulated drainage plan on a different property in another jurisdiction, we aim to avoid a 
repeat of a past problem. 

Please clarify what the Town mandated requirements or owner plans for this property will be. 

Thank you. 

2258 Rothesay Road 
PID 0024077 
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2282 Rothesay Road 

Rothesay NB E2H 2KS 

Rothesay 
70 Hampton Road 
Rothesay, NB E2E SLS 
FAQ: Mr. Brian L. White sent via brianwhite@rothesay.ca 

cc. below 

March 29 2023 

Dear Mr. White, 

RE: Concern related to: Application to Create 1 New Building Lot with Reduced 

Public Road Frontage (PIO 30194807) 

Thank you for taking the time to meet with us on Monday. We are writing with 
response to the letter received on March 17th 2023 regarding the subdivision 
application of 38 Appleby Drive, for one new building lot and a request for a major 
variance reducing the public frontage and creating access to the new lot through a 

shared driveway private right of way. 

Our property on the diagram is Document 33572620 / PID00240002 and 2 sides of 
our property are adjacent to the 38 Appleby Drive property. Upon receipt of the 
letter, we proceeded with a phone call and meeting to understand the application 

process and planned building work. 

We have serious concerns on this proposed application. 

The access to the new lot through a proposed new shared driveway private right of 
way will need to be built on a very steep hill extremely close to our property line 
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and is immediately above and part of our backyard. This is very worrying for a 
number of reasons: 

1. 
The water drainage is a serious concern. All residents are suffering with and have 
suffered with serious drainage issues for years. We would like to confirm who will 
be responsible for any potential future water damage and issues before, during and 
following this project? If the homeowner doing the work needs to have a civil 
engineer create a zero drainage plan, is that engineer legally responsible? And does 
the engineer note the current status of the land/water issues and post report so if 
issues occur there's a reference to what had been an existing problem or 
something that occurred due to the work. 

2. 
In addition to the possible water damage, the reality of a driveway being imposed 
in our direct back yard which would require the removal of hundreds of trees, 
dangerous terrain for our family and four seasons of challenges including snow 
removal being pushed directly into our yard throughout the winter. We asked if the 
current driveway to 38 Appleby Drive could be extended into the proposed new lot 
which would allow for the driveway to be at the elevation required and reduce the 
extensive changes to our surrounding property and would welcome additional 
feedback on this possibility. 

The suggestion that a new elevated driveway be built through our backyard while 
there is already an existing elevated driveway that could be extended does not 
make sense. Both in terms of the finished result that means a driveway overlooking 
our back garden, but also with regard to the months of construction that would 
result in vast amounts of rock and other debris rolling down this incredibly steep 
hill. 

We are also aware that the property owner has ownership of the right of way 
adjacent to our driveway which could become barren of trees to allow for the 
required drainage. 

3. 
We have been informed that the town is in support of this major variance because 
the town wishes to purchase a piece of beach land from the developer. We are very 
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concerned that this is a huge conflict of interest. For a piece of land to be offered 
for sale in exchange for approval on this major variance is unacceptable and we 
propose that this deal be removed from the situation. 

In short: given the existing water flooding problems that all residents in the vicinity 
have already been suffering with, it is highly likely that this new development will 
make this a lot worse. 

We cannot take this risk and we kindly ask the town to support its residents. 

We don't want flooded homes or gardens. We don't want to lose trees. We don't 
want our garden to be a landing zone for construction debris. We don't want a 
driveway running through our garden. We don't want deals being made for land in 

exchange for unsafe bui lding proposals to be signed off. 

We implore the town to reject this application. There is a reason why it is called a 
"major variance" and the town should not be taking major risks with the safety of 
its residents' homes, gardens and livelihoods. 

Thank you for your consideration. We are away on Monday 3rd April so won't be 

able to attend the meeting. 

Best wishes, 

cc: 
nancygrant@rothesay.ca 
mattalexander@rothesay.ca 
tiffanymackayfrench@rothesay.ca 
bi llmcguire@rothesay.ca 
davebrown@rothesay.ca 
he le n boy I e@ rot h esay. ca 
peterlewis@rothesay.ca 
donshea@rothesay.ca 
johnjarvie@rothesay.ca 
maryjanebanks@rothesay.ca 
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BUILDING PERMIT REPORT

Nature of Construction

Building 

Permit Fee

4/1/2023 to 4/30/2023

Date Building Permit No Property Location

Value of 

Construction

$94.25FENCE27 SHIPYARD RD04/03/2023 BP2022-00156 $12,500.00

$29.00DECK27 SHIPYARD RD04/03/2023 BP2022-00157 $4,000.00

$362.50DECK49 GENTLEMAN DR04/19/2023 BP2023-00027 $50,000.00

$362.50ATTACHED GARAGE7 HIGHLAND AVE04/11/2023 BP2023-00028 $50,000.00

$20.00FENCE11 WINDERMERE CRT04/04/2023 BP2023-00032 $750.00

$217.50WINDOWS82 HIGHLAND AVE04/14/2023 BP2023-00033 $30,000.00

$253.75FENCE30 KINGHURST LN04/14/2023 BP2023-00034 $34,807.00

$500.00DEMOLITION4 CLARK RD04/03/2023 BP2023-00036 $0.00

$108.75DECK89 BEAUVISTA ST04/28/2023 BP2023-00038 $15,000.00

$36.25STORAGE SHED25 RIVER RD04/13/2023 BP2023-00039 $5,000.00

$21.75SIDING140 RENSHAW RD04/13/2023 BP2023-00042 $2,500.00

$58.00DECK4 HIBISCUS CRT04/13/2023 BP2023-00043 $8,000.00

$362.50RENOVATION115 VILLA MADONNA04/19/2023 BP2023-00044 $50,000.00
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BUILDING PERMIT REPORT

Nature of Construction

Building 

Permit Fee

4/1/2023 to 4/30/2023

Date Building Permit No Property Location

Value of 

Construction

$20.00ABOVE GROUND POOL1 WYNN ST04/26/2023 BP2023-00048 $2,000.00

$2,446.75Totals:

$57,792.25$7,621,307.00Summary for 2023 to Date:

Summary to Date: $13,171.75$1,808,032.00

 2022 Summary

Value of Construction Building Permit Fee

 Montlhy total: $1,044,032.00 $7,632.75

$264,557.00
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ROTHESAY 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

  
TO  : Mayor Grant & Council 
FROM  : John Jarvie 
DATE  : 2 May 2023  
RE  : Capital Project – Status Report 

The following is a list of 2023 capital projects, holdover 2019, 2021 and 2022 capital projects 
and the status of each along with a continuing project from 2016. 

PROJECT BUDGET $ TO 
31/03/23* COMMENTS 

General Specification for Contracts 40,000 40% Draft document under review by staff 

Trail & sidewalk connector Wells $1.62M - Subject to grants; estimate revised to current – land 
acquisition discussions with Province underway 

Secondary Plan road design 50,000 - Wiljac – design underway 

Fire Department Stn 2 Reno 1,250,000 60% Approved by Municipal Capital Borrowing Board, budget 
adjustment made and increase approved by both Towns 

Intersection improvements 
Grove Avenue at Hampton Road 

475,000 37% Conduit and pole bases complete, awaiting delivery of 
poles and signals, expected in May 

Turnbull Ct sewer replacement Ph II $1.0M 60% Tender awarded; EIA review underway 

Water quantity 100,000  pending 

Water model update 100,000  deferred 

Wells New Building $3.1M 30% Construction Underway 

Hillsview water line replacement 50,000  Preliminary design complete, deferred 

2023 Street Resurfacing inc C&S $1.225M 3% Tender closed, price review underway, on May agenda 

Fleet 750,000  Vacuum Truck has been ordered 

Pickle Ball Courts Phase II 150,000  Tender awarded 

Recreation Master Plan 60,000   

Works Buildings 85,000 
45% HVAC system installed, external unit installed, removal of 

hot water piping underway 

Parks Equipment 215,000 15%  

Arena Condenser 100,000   

McGuire Centre Repairs 30,000   

Town Hall – HVAC controls 40,000   

IT (software upgrades) 17,000   

Water Treatment Train expansion 630,000 10% Purchased and on order - April 2024 delivery expected 

Lagoon Dredging $1.32M  Considered part of the WWTF complex construction in 
revised funding application 

Shadow Hill Court water 400,000  Preliminary design and cost estimates complete 

WWTP Phase II design   Pending Funding approval for Revised Concept 

* Funds paid to this date. 
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Liz Hazlett

From: Liz Hazlett
Sent: Friday, May 5, 2023 8:38 AM
To: Liz Hazlett
Subject: FW: Proclamation Request- Melanoma and Skin Cancer Awareness Month

From: Mary Jane Banks  
Sent: Friday, February 24, 2023 12:18 PM 
To: ani@saveyourskin.ca 
Cc: Liz Hazlett <lizhazlett@rothesay.ca> 
Subject: RE: Proclamation Request- Melanoma and Skin Cancer Awareness Month 
 
Good morning and thank you for your email. 
 
Rothesay, by practice, does not normally read proclamations or declare the many and varied days requested by multiple 
organizations.  
 
The May Council meeting will be Monday, May 8, 2023.  If you wish to present, I would advise of the following: 

 The meeting starts at 7:00 p.m.  
 Presentations to Council are limited to TEN minutes, unless extended by motion of Council, or on invitation from 

the Mayor.  
 The Clerk’s office requires your documentation (or powerpoint presentation, etc.) NO LATER THAN Wednesday, 

May 3rd at 12 noon in order to provide it to Council prior to the meeting.  (by email to 
MaryJaneBanks@rothesay.ca).  

 Any questions you have or any requests you may wish to make should be summarized in your documentation (i.e. 
requests for funding/participation/support, etc) 

 You will receive an invitation for virtual participation from our Webex Host account to participate in the meeting.  

If you have any questions or need any further information, please reach out at your convenience. 
 
Enjoy your day~ 
 
Mary Jane 
 
Mary Jane E. Banks, BComm, NACLAA II 
Town Clerk – Rothesay 
Head of the Public Body (RTIPPA) 
Director of Administrative Services 
70 Hampton Road 
Rothesay, NB E2E 5L5 
 
p (506)848-6664 
f (506)848-6677 
Before printing, please think about the environment. Respectez l’environnement, réfléchissez avant d’imprimer 
                                                                                                                                                             
From: Ani <ani@saveyourskin.ca> 
Sent: Friday, February 10, 2023 6:20:45 PM 
To: Nancy Grant <NancyGrant@rothesay.ca> 
Subject: Proclamation Request- Melanoma and Skin Cancer Awareness Month  
  
CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 
links, especially from unknown senders. 
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Dear Mayor Grant, 
 
Please find attached a letter requesting that the month of May be  
proclaimed 'Melanoma and Skin Cancer Awareness Month' in your  
municipality to support the prevention and early detection of skin  
cancer, the most common form of cancer in Canada. 
 
Additionally, we would love the opportunity to present virtually to  
Mayor and Council at a regularly scheduled Council meeting in May 2023. 
 
For your convenience, I’m also attaching a draft proclamation. 
 
Please don't hesitate to contact me if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
--  
Ani Davidson 
Save Your Skin Foundation 
Volunteer 
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.saveyourskin.ca&c=E,1,2rKu611W5kjBkKxE7dLsMsUYQuU
4tb7lC0h0c_0ba1zUK9w3iQVA7_q2R5AVqi-HF61Xr6Kc9cngfAylBzwT5l99dIrjnpj6ILhYVpLY6W49aX2TtA,,&typo=1 
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Dear Mayor Grant and Council,

As May marks both Melanoma Awareness Month and the beginning of summer, it is
imperative that communities across Canada be reminded of the importance of sun safety at this
time of the year. In order to keep your citizens aware, informed, and vigilant about the potential risks
of over-exposure to UV radiation, we ask that you, as a mayoral body, publicly proclaim May as
Melanoma and Skin Cancer Awareness Month in your municipality.

Over-exposure to UV radiation is one of the major causes of melanoma and non-melanoma
skin cancers. Though skin cancers should be largely preventable, their diagnosis rates are
increasing. Skin cancer is the most common of all cancers. 1 in 6 Canadians born in the 1990s
will get skin cancer in their lifetimes. There are more new cases of skin cancer each year than the
number of breast, prostate, lung and colon cancers COMBINED. While most forms of
non-melanoma skin cancer can be surgically removed, melanoma is an aggressive form of cancer.
The five-year relative survival rate of melanoma that has metastasized is 18%.

Despite these figures, many people seek sun without taking the advisable precautionary
measures, or believe that only severe burns contribute to one’s risk of skin cancer. In fact, any
darkening of skin colour, including a tan, is indicative of UV damage.

In the last two years, over 50 municipalities across Canada have responded to our call and
proclaimed the month of May “Melanoma and Skin Cancer Awareness Month”. If you choose to
participate in the initiative this year, Save Your Skin Foundation will provide you with an online
resource package providing information on these matters which you can share with your
residents.

Save Your Skin Foundation is a Canadian non-profit registered charity founded by North
Vancouver resident and melanoma survivor Kathleen Barnard. It is dedicated to the fight against
non-melanoma skin cancers, melanoma and ocular melanoma through nationwide education,
advocacy, and awareness initiatives like this one.

Thank you for your consideration. We look forward to working with you.

Sincerely,

Kathleen Barnard, Founder and President
Save Your Skin Foundation

813-800 VISTA PARK, PENTICTON, BC, V2A 0B2 | WWW.SAVEYOURSKIN.CA    |    KATHY@SAVEYOURSKIN.CA
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“MELANOMA AND SKIN CANCER AWARENESS MONTH” 
 
WHEREAS   It is imperative that communities across Canada be reminded of the 
importance of sun safety; 
 
AND WHEREAS  Over-exposure to UV radiation is one of the major causes of 
melanoma and non-melanoma skin cancers; 
 
AND WHEREAS  Skin cancer is the most common of all cancers. 1 in 6 Canadians born 
in the 1990s will get skin cancer in their lifetimes; 
 
AND WHEREAS  Many people seek sun without taking the advisable precautionary 
measures and are unaware that any darkening of skin colour, including a tan, is indicative of 
UV damage; 
 
AND WHEREAS  Skin self-examinations should be performed on a monthly basis 
because skin cancers are highly treatable when detected early; 
 
AND WHEREAS  Save Your Skin Foundation is dedicated to the fight against non-
melanoma skin cancers, melanoma and ocular melanoma through nationwide education, 
advocacy, and awareness initiatives: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE the month of May 2023 will hereby be proclaimed as  
 
MELANOMA AND SKIN CANCER AWARENESS MONTH 
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ROTHESAY 
MEMORANDUM 

             
TO  : Rothesay Council 
FROM  : Mayor Dr. Grant 
DATE  : 25 April 2023 
RE  : Council appointments to Committees – For Information 
             
 
The following Council appointments to Town Committees have been extended to May 31, 
2024: 
 
Nominating Committee 
Mayor Dr. Nancy Grant 
Councillor Bill McGuire 
Councillor Peter Lewis 
     
 
The following Council appointments to Town Committees have been extended to the end 
of the Council term (May 2026): 
 
Kennebecasis Regional Joint Board of Police Commissioners 
Councillor Tiffany Mackay French 
Councillor Don Shea 
 
Board of Fire Commissioners (Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc.) 
Councillor Dave Brown 
Councillor Peter Lewis 
 
Rothesay Planning Advisory Committee 
Councillor Tiffany Mackay French 
Councillor Don Shea 
 
Rothesay Works and Utilities Committee 
Deputy Mayor Matt Alexander 
Councillor Dave Brown 
 
Rothesay Heritage Preservation Review Board 
Councillor Tiffany Mackay French 
 
Rothesay Parks and Recreation Committee 
Councillor Bill McGuire 
Councillor Helen Boyle 
 
Kennebecasis Public Library 
Councillor Don Shea 
 
Rothesay Age Friendly Advisory Committee 
Councillor Helen Boyle 
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ROTHESAY 
TO: Rothesay Council 
FROM: Mayor Dr. Grant 
RE: Council appointments -2- 25 April 2023 
 
Rothesay Climate Change Adaption Committee 
Mayor Dr. Nancy Grant 
Deputy Mayor Matt Alexander 
 
Rothesay Finance Committee (internal) 
Mayor Dr. Nancy Grant 
Deputy Mayor Matt Alexander 
Councillor Helen Boyle 
Councillor Don Shea 
 
Personnel Committee (internal) 
Mayor Dr. Nancy Grant 
Deputy Mayor Matt Alexander 
Councillor Dave Brown 
Councillor Bill McGuire 
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ROTHESAY 
MEMORANDUM 

             
TO  : Mayor and Council 
FROM  : Town Clerk Banks 
DATE  : 26 April 2023 
RE  : Amendment to By-law 2-14 Schedule B – Standing Committees 
             
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 Council hereby adopts the revised Schedule B, “Standing Committees”, dated 8 

May 2023 and forming a part of By-law 2-14, “A By-law of the Municipality of 
Rothesay Respecting the Procedure and Organization of Council”; more 
specifically the revision to approve the reduction from 10 to 8 for the minimum 
number of appointments to the Age Friendly Advisory Committee. 

 
Background: 
The Age Friendly Advisory Committee (AFAC) was established in August 2021, following 
the dissolution of The Rothesay Hive Advisory Committee, to meet the provincial 
requirements for the renewal of “Age-Friendly Status” for Rothesay. 
 
There are currently two vacancies on the Committee (current composition of 12 members) 
and obtaining a quorum has been a challenge on occasion.  Town Clerk Banks, in 
consultation with the Age-Friendly & Communications Coordinator, recommended to the 
Nominating Committee the minimum number of appointments be reduced from 10 to 8 for 
the Age Friendly Advisory Committee.  It is a minimum only and will have no effect on 
current appointees’ terms.  The current quorum requirement would reduce from 7 to 6 
members.  There was consensus from the Nominating Committee to recommend the 
change to Council. 
 
 
 
Mary Jane Banks, BComm 
Town Clerk 
 
  
Attachment:  Revised Schedule B (By-law 2-14) – Standing Committees (edit highlighted) 
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Schedule B – Standing Committees 
B-1. The following standing committees of Council are hereby established to provide advice 

to Council on matters related to their mandate. 
 

i. Personnel Committee 
ii. Finance Committee 
iii. Nominating Committee 
iv. Parks and Recreation Committee 
v. Works and Utilities Committee 
vi. Rothesay Living Museum Committee 
vii. Age-Friendly Advisory Committee 

 
Committees required by statute 

viii. Planning Advisory Committee 
ix. Heritage Preservation Board 
x. Emergency Measures Committee 
xi. Appeals Committee (Unsightly Premises) 

 
Legislative appointments 

B-2. The Mayor shall serve as the representative for Rothesay on the Fundy Regional Service 
Commission.  The Deputy Mayor shall serve as the alternate representative. 
 

B-3. At the first regular meeting of Council following the quadrennial election and periodically 
as he shall deem appropriate, Council members to the following standing committees shall 
be appointed by the Mayor: 

Personnel 3  
Finance 4  
Nominating  2  

 Parks and Recreation   
 

2  
Works and Utilities  2  
Rothesay Living Museum  1  
Planning Advisory 
Rothesay Heritage Preservation 
Review Board 

2 
1 

 

Emergency Measures Committee 
Appeals Committee 
Age-Friendly Advisory Committee 

2 
8 
1 

 

 
 
  

2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_179



26 

Rothesay Procedural By-Law  8 May 2023 

 

The Nominating committee shall recommend to Council for approval, appointments of eligible 
voters of the municipality to the standing committees, as a minimum, as follows: 

Parks & Recreation  6 
Works and Utilities  5 
Rothesay Living Museum 4 
Planning Advisory 6 
Rothesay Heritage Preservation Review 
Board 
Age-Friendly Advisory Committee 

6 
 

8 
  

B-4. The Nominating Committee shall recommend to Council for approval one student 
appointee, who is a Rothesay resident, to the Parks and Recreation Committee who is 
in good standing at Rothesay High School. 
 

B-4. The Nominating Committee shall use, where possible, the following guidelines for 
appointees to the Age-Friendly Advisory Committee and every effort will be made to 
secure representation from the various geographical areas in Rothesay: 

 1 staff representative from Rothesay High School 
 1 staff representative from a Rothesay Elementary or Middle School 
 4 Rothesay residents, Age 55+ 
 1 Rothesay resident under the age of 55 
 1 representative from disability-related organizations 

 
B-5. The following are the mandates of the Standing Committees established under Section 

B-1. 
 
STANDING COMMITTEES STATEMENT 
Council has established a number of standing committees to assist in carrying out the work of the 
Town, which committees function in an advisory capacity to Council.  For these committees to 
function effectively it is necessary to set out the responsibilities and authority of each Committee 
and indicate its statutory and reporting functions.  The purpose of the Committees is not to 
participate in the administration of day-to-day operations but rather to assist Council in 
determining policy and priorities and/or by making decisions in areas specifically delegated by 
Council. 
   
The business of a particular committee shall be limited to the issues within its mandate as listed 
but should a committee consider it appropriate, it may meet with another committee or other 
parties to review a particular matter or to make suggestions regarding a particular course of action.  
The Committees may meet with interest groups or individuals to gather information.  The 
Committees report only to Council and reports from Committees shall not be released to other 
parties by Committee members.  Media liaison shall be directed to the Mayor. 
 
The Town Manager may attend all Committee meetings as deemed appropriate. 
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STANDING COMMITTEE MANDATES 
 
I Personnel Committee 
This Committee is responsible for:  

1. establishing policy on personnel related matters 
2. making recommendations to Council re:  procedures to ensure proper selection of the 

Town Manager 
3. approving the job description and objectives for the Town Manager 
4. assessing the performance of the Town Manager by ascertaining the views of Council 

members and producing a consolidated assessment report for Council approval and 
review with the Town Manager 

5. establishing the parameters for salary adjustments 
6. recommending to Council the appointment of municipal officers under the Act, in 

consultation with the Town Manager 
7. recommending, in consultation with the Town Manager, changes in organizational 

structure, and addition or deletion of positions 
8. conducting or causing to be conducted exit interviews with departing senior staff 

 
This Committee will meet at least quarterly or at the call of the Chair.  Staff support will include 
the Town Manager and Human Resources Clerk as required.  
 
II Finance Committee 
This Committee is responsible for advising Council on matters related to: 

1. meetings with the Auditors at the planning and post audit stages, the Auditor 
recommendations and management’s response, draft audited financial statements, and 
the appointment of Auditors  

2. the system of internal controls for protection of the Town’s assets, detecting 
accounting/financial reporting errors and detecting frauds or defalcations 

3. insurance coverage and risk management policies 
4. key financial information that will be provided to the Province or made public 
5. the preparation and adoption of the annual operating and capital budgets 
6. any proposed changes in accounting policies and any accounting significant accounting 

estimates 
7. 5 year capital budgets and financing sources 
8. monthly internal financial statements 
9. the Town’s banking services 

 
This Committee will meet at least quarterly or at the call of the Chair.  Staff support will include 
the Treasurer and additional staff support as required. 
 
III Nominating Committee  
This Committee is responsible for advising Council on matters related to: 

1. determination of eligible voters suitable for appointment to standing committees, joint 
boards and commissions and the terms of office for said appointments 

 
The Committee will meet at least quarterly or at the call of the Chair.  Staff support will include 
the Town Clerk and additional support staff as required. 
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IV Parks and Recreation Committee 
This Committee is responsible for advising Council on matters related to: 

1. the Rothesay Recreation Master plan 
2. selection of ongoing recreation programs 
3. identification of facilities needs and capital expenditures related to recreation 
4. parks, playgrounds and sports fields maintenance standards 
5. the service level or standards for municipal recreation facilities such as the Rothesay 

Arena, Bill McGuire Memorial Centre and Rothesay Common & rink house 
6. cooperation on regional recreational activities and programs 
7. Town entrance and ornamental signage and landscaping 

 
This Committee will meet at least quarterly or at the call of the Chair.  Staff support will include 
the Director of Recreation Services and additional support staff as required.  
 
V Works and Utilities Committee  
This Committee is responsible for advising Council on matters related to: 

1. the service level or standards and/or exceptions thereto, for: 
• street, boulevard and sidewalk maintenance 
• public parking areas 
• municipal buildings 
• street signage  
• traffic control devices 
• garbage collection and recycling 
• municipal vehicles 
• water and sewer utility services 
• utility rates and charges 
• improvements/expansions to the water utility system 
• improvements/expansions to the sewerage system (By-law 1-15 terminology) 
• improvements/expansions to the stormwater management system 
• operational budgets 

2. capital and major maintenance project priorities related to municipal operations and 
utilities 

3. financing for capital works and utilities projects 
4. related matters as referred by Council 

 
This Committee will meet at least quarterly or at the call of the Chair.  Staff support will include 
the Director of Operations and additional support staff as required.   
 
VI Rothesay Living Museum Committee 
This Committee is responsible for advising Council on matters related to: 
 

1. ways and means of protecting, preserving and promoting the heritage and history of 
Rothesay and its founding communities 

2. developing and strengthening the relationship between Rothesay schools and the 
municipality 

3. encouraging the participation of the public who are interested in recording and publicizing 
the heritage of the community 

 
The Committee may create an advisory group (non-voting committee members) of like-minded 
individuals to strive for representation of the five founding communities. 
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The Committee may also enter agreements with like-minded groups as a means to further its 
endeavours and be allocated a modest annual budget by Council for ongoing operations. 
 
This Committee will meet quarterly or at the call of the Chair.  Staff support will be assigned by 
the Town Manager as required. 
 
VII Age-Friendly Advisory Committee 
The main purpose of the Age-Friendly Advisory Committee is to make the town of Rothesay a 
more Age-Friendly community. This Committee is responsible for advising Council on matters 
related to: 
 

1. recommendations to Council and other Town Committees with regard to opportunities and 
initiatives for the eight domains of an age-friendly community (outdoor spaces and 
buildings, transportation, housing, social participation, respect and social inclusion, civic 
participation and employment, communication and information, community support, and 
health services) 

 
2. promotion of the concept of age-friendliness and identifying opportunities for collaboration 

with community partners, including in the private, non-profit, and public sectors  
 

3. re-assessment of  the Age-Friendly Action Plan every three years to maintain the 
provincial Age Friendly designation 

 
4. oversight of the Rothesay Hive Age Friendly Community Centre 

 
5. the establishment of working groups as deemed necessary by the Committee to fulfill its 

mandate  
 

6. such other matters as may arise from time to time related to age-friendly activities in the 
community 

 
This Committee will meet monthly or at the call of the Chair. Staff support will include the Age-
Friendly Community Coordinator and additional support staff as required. The Committee shall 
report to Council through the Committee Council member. 
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COMMITTEES REQUIRED BY STATUTE 
The following committees are required by provincial legislation and governed by municipal by-
laws as noted.  Where there is a conflict between this by-law and the statute, the provincial 
legislation will prevail. 
 
VII Planning Advisory Committee (PAC) 
The responsibilities of this committee are as set out in By-law 1-99, “A By-law to Establish a 
Planning Advisory Committee” and in accordance with the Community Planning Act.  This 
Committee will meet monthly or at the call of the Chair.  This Committee may call public meetings.  
Staff support will include the Development Officer and additional support staff as required.  
  
VIII Heritage Preservation Board 
The responsibilities of this Board are as set out in By-law 1-07, “Heritage Preservation By-law”, 
and in accordance with the Heritage Conservation Act, SNB 2009, c. H-4.05 and amendments 
thereto.  This Board will meet at least quarterly or at the call of the Chair.  Staff support will include 
the Development Officer and additional support staff as required. 
 
IX Emergency Measures Committee 
The responsibilities of this committee are as set out in By-law 1-16, “Emergency Measures Action 
Plan By-law” and the Emergency Measures Act, RSNB 2011, c. 147.   
 
This committee will meet at the call of the Chair. Staff support will include the Town Clerk and 
additional support staff as required. 
 
X Appeals Committee (Unsightly Premises) 
The responsibilities of this committee are as set out in the Local Governance Act and regulations 
thereunder.  This committee will meet as required in accordance with the legislation.  Staff support 
will include the Town Clerk and additional support staff as required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revision March 11, 2019 
Schedule B   Revised to include establishment, composition and responsibilities of the Rothesay Hive 

Advisory Committee. 
 
Revision February 8, 2021 
Schedule B   Revised to reflect the change in mandate and composition of the Rothesay Hive Advisory 

Committee to reflect the suspension of the agreement with the YMCA. 
 
Revision August 9, 2021 
Schedule B  Revised to reflect the dissolution of the Rothesay Hive Advisory Committee and the 

creation and new mandate for the Age-Friendly Advisory Committee. 
 
Revision May 8, 2023 
Schedule B  Revised to reflect the reduction from 10 to 8 for the minimum number of appointments to 

the Age Friendly Advisory Committee. 
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ROTHESAY 
MEMORANDUM 

             
TO  : Mayor and Council 
FROM  : Nominating Committee 
DATE  : 1 May 2023 
RE  : Kennebecasis Public Library Board Appointment 
             
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 Council appoint Cindy Millican as a Rothesay representative to the Kennebecasis 

Public Library Board for a term to expire December 31, 2024. 
 
Background: 
There are currently two vacancies on the Kennebecasis Public Library Board for Rothesay 
appointees, as a result of recent resignations. 
 
In response to social media posts, an application was received from Cindy Millican, 
offering to serve on the Board.  The appointment will expire at the end of 2024, and she 
will be eligible for reappointment at that time. 
 
Rothesay is currently seeking eligible applicants to fill the other vacancy on the Board. 
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~ ROTHESAY 

May 2022 

Mayor Grant and Rothcsay Council 

Re: 2022 Annual Report 

It is my pleasure to present the annual report of Rothesay for 2022. This 
report has been prepared m accordance with the New Brunswick 
regulation 2018 - 54 under the Local Governance Act Attached to this 
report are the audited financial statements showmg that the Town 
operated a small surplus in both the general and utility funds . 

Across New Brunswick municipal reform changed the number of 
municipaJ1ties and the boundaries of many. There were no changes to 
the Rothesay boundary, but reform meant a significant focus on the 
Fundy region and collaboration with other area municipalities. 

The year saw a significant increase in residential development activity 
focused on apartment buildmgs. Three projects were approved on 
Hampton Road and others on Chapel and the comer of Gondola Point 
and Clark Roads These projects generally targeted seniors as their 
clientcle. Low density projects in Sagamore Point and the Hillside South 
Secondary Plan area were also initiated 

When the provincial three-year highway plan did not include resurfacing 
of Rothesay Road, strong representations to the Minister of 
Transportation and Infrastructure led by Mayor Grant and Deputy 
Mayor Alexander resulted in a change in the priorities for provincially 
designated highways in Rothesay and funding for a significant stretch of 
this key part of the regional road network. 

Late in the year a collective agreement was reached with CUPE Local 
5369 for the Town's outside labourers establishing terms until 2025. 

Staff have worked diligently to adjust to changes brought on by the 
pandemic and I thank them for their perseverance during what must be 
described as a challenging three years. I also express my appreciation 
to you, Mayor Grant and the Council for supporting staff and carefully 
considering the many decisions you have faced dunng 2022 

RPP, MCIP 

Exploni our past / btplo,~z not1e paut 
Discover your future / D~couvrez votre ~nir 

Crand Bay-Westfield • Quispams1s • AothHa)' • St, Mart,os • Saint johrt 

70 HamptOf't Ro.td 
Rothe5ay, NB 

Canada E2E 5L5 

T 506·848-6600 
F.506 848·6677 

~hittayq!lrothesay ca 
www.rothesay.ca 
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ROTHESAV 
2022 ANNUAL REPORT 
1. INTRODUCTION 

On January 1, 2018, Regulation 2018 - 54 came into effect. The Province of New 
Brunswick established the Annual Report Regulation - Local Governance Act to 
provide information to property taxpayers regarding their local government. 
Rothesay has published an annual report in the past, but th is report d iffers in that 
it is designed to be in conformance with this legislation. A copy of the new 
regulation is found in the Appendices to this Report. 

2. THE COMMUNITY 
Land Acknowledgment 

We would like to respectfully acknowledge that our town of Rothesay exists on the 
traditional lands of the Wolastoqiyik /Maliseet and Mi'Kmaq whose ancestors, 
along w ith the Passamaquoddy/ Peskotomuhkati Tribes/ Nations signed Peace 
and Friendship Treaties w ith the British Crown in the 1700s. 

We respectfully acknow ledge that the United Nations Declaration of the Rights of 
Indigenous Peoples (UNDRIP) was adopted by the United Nations on September 
13, 2007 and enshrined in law in Canada by Parliament on June 21, 2021 as Bill C-15. 

We respectfully endorse the Calls to Action of the Truth and Reconciliation 
Commission of 2015 as it applies to our Municipal Government of t he town of 
Rothesay. 

History 

Rothesay is a long-established residential community in southern New Brunswick 
and celebrated its 150th anniversary in 2010. In 1997, the Provincial Government 
amalgamated a portion of the Local Service District of Wells w ith the Town of 
Rothesay and the villages of Fa,irvale,. Renforth and East Riverside-Kingshurst to 
form the new town of Rothesay w ith a population of about 11,600. 

The town motto, "Quinque luncta In Uno (Five United In One)", represents the 
strength and unity of our municipality and the joining together of the five 
founding communities. The Municipal Flag for Rothesay represents the first of its 
kind in Canada. By permission of the New Brunswick government, the provincial 
flag, adopted in 1965 on the authority of Queen Victoria's Warrant of 1868, occupies 
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the topmost part (the hoist) of the municipal flag. The Coat of Arms occupies the 
fly. 

Rothesay's current population, based on the 2021 Statistics Canada Census, is 
11,977, a small increase from the 2016 count. This population was distributed 
amongst 4,875 households, 75% of which occupied single detached housing w ith 
an average size of 2.4 persons. 

Rothesay is part of the Fundy Regional Service District, which is composed of one 
unincorporated Rural District and six area municipalities t centered on the mouth 
of the St. John River. 

3. GOVERNANCE 
An eight-person Council with Dr. Nancy Grant as Mayor provides for the 
governance of the Town. Council meeting attendance and monies Council 
members received from the Town are set out in Appendices B & C. Public events 
attended by Mayor Dr. Grant and Council members are set out in Appendix D. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
The Rothesay Council includes: 

• Mayor Dr. Nancy Grant 
• Deputy Mayor Dr. Matthew Alexander, Ph.D. 

and Councillors: 

• Tiffany Mackay French • Helen Boyle 
• Bill McGuire • Peter J. Lewis 
• Dave Brown • DonShea 

COUNCIL MEETINGS 
Rothesay Council meetings are typically held the second Monday of the month at 
7:00 p.m . in the Common Room, RothesayTown Hall, 70 Hampton Road, Rothesay, 
NB. Regular and special Council meetings are open to the public. Council agendas 
and agenda packages are posted to the website prior to each meeting. Approved 
Council minutes are available for review in the Clerk's office and also online: 
www.rothesay.ca. 

Closed session meetings are held in accordance with the Local Governance Act, 
SNB 17, c. 18 (s. 68} when the subject matter relates generally to the following: 
confidential and/or personal information protected by law; contract negotiations; 
land disposition or acquisition; litigation or potential lit igation and legal opinions 
or advice; matters of security; information gathered by police; information that 
could violate confidentiality from the federal or provincial government; and labour 
and employment matters. 
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COVID-19 Pandemic declared 13 March 2020 (World Health Organization} 

Meetings held by videoconference: 

Meetings held in person: 
January & February 
March - December 

Public Health restrictions (COVID-19} in New Brunswick were lifted by the province 
on 14 March 2022. 

Committees of Council (2022) 

• Personnel Committee 

• Finance Committee 

• Nominating Committee 

• EMO Committee 

• Parks and Recreation Committee 

• Planning Advisory Committee 

• Works and Utilities Committee 

• Rothesay Heritage Preservation 

Review Board 

• Rothesay Living Museum 

Committee 

• Age Friendly Advisory Committee 

• Climate Change Adaptation 

Committee 

Mary lane Banks is the Director of Administrative Services and Town Clerk. 
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4. ADMINISTRATION 
The Rothesay Town office is open Monday 
through Friday from 8 am to 4:30 pm, except 
civic holidays. The office is closed from noon to 
1 pm. The main telephone line (506-848-6600) is 
answered 7/24 for service requests and urgent 
matters. 

Town records are filed in a computerized 
database with searching capacity in accordance w ith the guidelines of the 
Municipal Records Authority. Rothesay has implemented a system to record 
customer service requests and to track the nature of requests and the time 
required to respond. There were 675 service requests responded to in 2022 with 
the most frequent being related to general drainage issues, culverts, water meter 
readings and lateral locates. 

Rothesay has a workforce of both unionized and non-unionized employees. 
Unionized employees at Rothesay are represented by the Canadian Union for 
Public Employees (C.U.P.E). Local 5369. 

Our 2022 human resource efforts related in large part to contract negotiations with 
C.U.P.E. focused on reaching a fair and equitable agreement that would benefit 
both the municipality and employees. Rothesay is p leased to report that we have 
successful ly concluded our contract negotiations. The new contract includes 
several key provisions that will benefit Rothesay employees and help attract and 
retain talent. 

At the end of 2022, Rothesay had 46 permanent employees (including 18 members 
of the bargaining unit). During 2022, 32 recruitments were carried out or were in 
progress as of December 31 st• This included four positions vacant from departing 
employees, two positions vacant due to retirement, and 26 to fi ll seasonal student 
positions. 

The upcoming year will focus on recruitment, retention, and succession planning 
as we continue to plan for the transition of30.4% of our workforce who are eligible 
for retirement within the next 10 years. As Nationwide labour shortages continue 
to impact recruitment efforts, retaining and developing employees will continue 
to be a focus of HR initiatives for the near future. 

In the coming year, Rothesay will continue to strive towards being an employer of 
chok e by offering a competitive compensation package, a safe and healthy work 
environment, and meaningful and engaging w ork. 
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5. PROTECTIVE SERVICES 

A. FIRE 
The Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. (KVFD) is a corporation jointly owned 

w ith Quispamsis to provide fire suppression and fire prevention and education 

services throughout the two Towns. Station 1 is located on Campbell Drive in 

Rothesay and Station 2 is located on Hampton Road in Quispamsis Renovations 

began on Station 2 in 2022 and are expected to be completed by summer 2023. 

The Department provides assistance to Ambulance New Brunswick in responding 

to many medical emergencies. In 2022, there were 538 calls for service in Rothesay, 

which was up from 2021 where there were 454, Included in the 538 calls were 282 

EMS incidents, and 65 motor vehicle incidents-collisions. 

The Department consists of 40 firefighters, including 12 company officers, senior 

firefighters, lieutenants and captains. The management team consists of one Fire 
Chief and one Deputy Ch ief, two Division Chiefs, an Executive Assistant to the Chief 

and a Finance Administrator. A Board with equal representation from each Council 

and volunteer appointments from each Town governs the KVFD. Rothesay paid 

$2.3SSM or 40.93% of t he Department's operating costs in 2022. Details about the 
Fire Department are on its website: 

http://kvfire.ca 

The Fire Chief is Michael Boyle, BIS, ECFO 

B. POLICE 

• 

The Kennebecasis Regional Police Force (KRPF),anorganization jo intlyowned and ~-~ 
funded with Quispamsis, carries out pol icing in Rothesay. The Force has 44 officers 

and employs seven civilian staff. In 2022, Rothesay had 2,180 calls for service. 

Rothesay's share (40.05%) of the annual budget fo r policing was $3.03SM in 2022. 

Oversight of the KRPF is charged to a Board of Commissioners appointed by the 

two Towns and one Commissioner appointed by the Provincial Minister of PubUc 

Safety. More information regarding the nature and operations of the Regional 

Police Force is on its website: 

http://www.kennebecasisregiona I pol ice.com/ 

The Police Chief is Steve Gourdeau 
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C. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 
Operations at the Town returned to a level of normality as the Province lifted the 

Covid-19 Public Health restrictions, on March 14, 2022. Later, that spring the Town 

was also fortunate to be spared from the worst effects of the annual spring freshet 
as the flooding season came and went without significant damage to property and 

requirements for sand bagging and cleanup. 

The efforts to establish a joint Emergency Measures Organization (EMO} with 

Quispamsis took the first step through the appointment of the new Kennebecasis 

Valley Fire Department (KVFD} Fire Chief as the director of KV EMO. The KVFD is 

well suited and staffed to be the lead agency for emergency management in the 

Kennebecasis Valley. 

Moving towards a joint EMO model, the KV Fire Chief has created a steering 

committee with representatives from both Towns and the mandate to establish 
an emergency measures organization that represents both municipalities. 
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6. FINANCE 
The Town finished the 2022 fiscal year w ith a general fund surplus of $128,838 and 

a surplus in t he utility fund of $33,993. These will be brought into budgets in 2024. 

During the year, the Town retired $l.3M of debt. No new debt was incurred during 

2022 however debentures in the amount of $800,000 and $1 million are expected 

in 2023 to finance utility and protective service projects respectively. 

The Town's current net debt js approximately $728 per capita and debt service 

costs are 4.41% of the annual budget supported by property taxes. The legislated 

limit for debt service is 20% of a municipality's annual expenditures in its general 

fund. The borrowing limits for utilities are larger and the Town is currently well 

within provincial guidelines w ith utility debt service costs of 21.9%. That debt is 
repaid through utility charges. 

The total operating expenditures and debt service costs of the Town were $19.6M. 

Rothesay pald approximately $155,000 in Provincial property tax in 2022 as well as 

HST to the Province of approximately $550,000. The Provincial Government 

transferred $130,972 which represents 16¢ of the $2.27 provincial tax rate paid by 
non-residential property in the town. 

The Town donated $30,725 to various groups and causes in 2022; none of these ere 

for economic development purposes. A list of the donations is found in Appendix 
A. 
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A. Revenue 

Sale of services 

Water and sewer 2% 
fees 
12% 

Unconditional granl 
1% 

Revenue by source 

Orher 
6% 

Properly tax warrant Unconditional grant 

Water and sewer fees Sole of services 

Conditional grants 

Other 

Property l ax warren! 
70% 

The total tax base of the municipality for the purposes of setting the tax rate was 

$1.515B. The tax rate for 2022 was $1.20 per hundred dollars of assessment. 

Assessments are carried out by Service New Brunswick on behalf of all 
municipalities in the province at a cost of slightly less than two cents per hundred 

to the property owner and an equal amount paid by the Town. Six percent of the 

tax base is made up of non-residential properties that were taxed at a rate of $1.80 

+ the $2.27 Provincial rate. 

Utility rates for the fiscal period were as follows: Water cost was $1.18/m3 plus a 

fixed cost of $51.25 per quarter. The annual sewer charge was $410 in 2022 for a 

single-family house. A typical single-family home in Rothesay paid about $660 for 
water and sewer services. Business and multi-family buildings pay by size of the 

service connection to the Town system. 
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B. Expenses 

cultural serv' 
14% 

Environme 
developm'e 

En .~f lYHiAAit 
healti11f@rvices 

4% 

EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 

Water and sewer 
services 

16% 

General 
government 

services 
10°-·o 

Transportation 
services 

30% 

The audited financial statements of the Town are found in Appendix F. 

Doug MacDonald is the Town Treasurer. 
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7. PARKS & RECREATION 

A. RECREATION 

Rothesay Recreation Department provides numerous programming 
opportunities for its citizens throughout the year. Facilities include the Rothesay 
Arena, Bill McGuire Centre, Rothesay Common, Rothesay HIVE, and the Wells 
Recreation Building. Through the summer months, the Recreation Department 
offers summer programs from various locations within the community. Highlights 
for Rothesay Recreation in 2022 included our participation in Fundy W interfest, 
growth at the Rothesay HIVE, the return of our Canada Day on the Common 
celebration, record participation in our playground programs and the 24th Annual 
KV Santa Claus Parade. 

Despite COVID-19, it was a successful 2022 Fundy Winterfest in Rothesay w ith a 
mix of in-person and virtual programs, events, and activities. We introduced three 
new activities this year for residents and visit ors to enjoy. The first being a contest 
to win an ice fishing session with our partners at The Shacks; 468 people entered 
the contest, and we were able to provide 16 groups with an hour of ice fishing at 
Renforth Wharf. Our second activity was free snowshoe rentals at River and Trail 
Outdoor Company. Our department purchased 8 pairs of snowshoes and River and 
Trail Outdoor Company ran the program out of their store. Over the course of 6 
weeks, we had eighteen rentals which is a great start to this new program. Our last 
addition was our Find Winter Waldo contest. Winter Waldo was hidden seven 
times throughout our trail system. We had 84 groups who successfully spotted 
Winter Waldo in our trails to enter that contest! 
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Other Fundy Winterfest activities in Rothesay included a Virtual Speaker Series, 
Snowshoeing with the KV Walkers, Snowfolk Making Contest,. Virtual Valentine's 
Day live event with the Snow Queen, and a Moonlight Snowshoe and hike with 
River and Trail Outdoor company that saw over 100 participants . 

.... 

The Summer Playground Program had record numbers in 2022 with 314 kids who 
regtstered to attend throughout the summer. We were happy to return to our 
drop-in/punch pass programming format that operated out of Kennebecasis Park 
Elementary School, Rothesay Park Middle School, and Wells Recreation Park from 
June 27th to August 26th. 

Both Kennebecasis Park and Renforth Beaches were open t h is summer and 
guarded Monday to Friday from llam-Spm with Renforth Beach atso under 
Hfeguard supervision on the weekends. The Town was able to hire seven lifeguards 
who were certified to teach swimming lessons. We officially became an affiliate 
member of the Life Saving Society which enabled us to offer the Swim For Life 
programs at our beaches. We had eighteen kids register fo:r our swimming lesson 
programs this summer. 

July 1st saw the return of our in-person Canada Day Celebrations on the Rothesay 
Common. Hundreds joined us to celebrate our Nation's 155th Birthday. The 
celebration began with a f lag-raising ceremony that was followed by musical 
entertainment, First Nations Storytellers, a reading circle w ith the Kennebecasis 
Public Library, face painting. balloon animals, giant inflatables and bouncy castles, 
a BBQ, popcorn, cotton candy, cupcakes, ice cream, and more! 
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It was a successful community garden season with all 42 plots being rented, We 
also hosted our 2nd Annual Halloween Skating Party at the Rothesay Arena where 
participants were invited to come dressed up in their favorite costume. 

The 24th Annual KV Santa Claus Parade took place along Hampton Road on 
Saturday, November 26th. The parade was once again l ive streamed on Facebook 
for anyone who preferred to watch from the comfort of their own home. The 
Facebook video of the parade has over 2,600 views. With forty community groups 
and businesses participating in the parade and an estimated 10,000 spectators 
lined up along Hampton Road to watch it was another grand success. Next year is 
the 25th Annual KV Santa Claus Parade with the theme "A Silver Christmas -
Celebrating 25 Years". 

The 8th Annual Mayor's Tree Lighting event was hosted in person this year at the 
Rothesay Common for the first time in 3 years. We had a great evening w ith live 
musical entertainment, skating, hot chocolate, and gingerbread cookies. 

The new year brought with it many challenges, opportunities, and successes to the 
Rothesay HIVE. In the beginning of 2022, the Rothesay HIVE was closed due to the 
COVID-19 Pandemic until February 7, 2022. In January of 2022, we brought back 
the Rothesay HIVE memberships which were put on hold from November 2020 to 
December 2021 due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. For the first year that Rothesay 
Recreation Department has been responsible for the Rothesay HIVE we are proud 
to have 122 HIVE members, over double the number prior to the pandemic. We 
also offer a 3 Visit Trial for those who want to test out the Rothesay HIVE programs 
and activities prior to becoming a member. 

We have broadened our program offerings in 2022, including but not limited to: 
Garden Club, Mahjong and Bridge Lessons, Movie Matinees, Tai Chi, and many 
community events and programs. We sti ll offer our popular fitness classes, book 
club, coffee and chats, cards and board games, and host numerous information 
sessions. Future Engage also began at the Rothesay HIVE this year. The program 
is run by the Saint John Newcomers Centre and brings people of all ages and 
backgrounds together for intergenerational and cross-cultural activities. The File 
of Life continues to be a valuable and popular resource for the community which 
can be accessed through the Rothesay HIVE. We are always striving to add new 
programs and activities that will benefit our members. By connecting with 
community organizations, we can create lasting connections between older 
adults, future generations, and community supports. 
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B. PARKS 

Rothesay maintains a network of parks and green spaces 
with major highlights such as the Rothesay Common, East 
Riverside-Kingshurst Park, Steele-Kennedy Nature Park, 
Wells Recreation Park, Renforth Wharf Park and smaller 
gems such as Dobbin Park and 150 Anniversary Park. The 
Town also maintains many outdoor recreation facilities 
including five ball fietds, two synthetic turf surfaces at the 
Arthur MiUer Fields, two irrigated soccer pitches and 
approximately 20 kilometers of walking, hiking and cross­
country ski t rails. 

The new basebaH field at Wells Recreation Park was 
completed in 2022 and will open in the spring of 2023. 

The construction of a 120-foot boardwalk along the McKeever Lake trail was 
compteted in 2022. This new 1.5km tratl will be groomed for cross country skiing 
and snowshoeing for the 2023/24 season. 

Construction of the new building at Wells Recreat ion Park started in the fall. 
Expected completion is the summer of 2023. 

Phase l of the Rothesay Pickleball Court project was completed in 2022. Phase 2 
will be finished in 2023 with two new pickleball courts adjacent to the Arthur Miller 
Fields lower parking lot. 

The Marigold Project -All three elementary schools in Rothesay participated. Over 
250 children took part in growing Marigolds from seeds and planting them around 
Rothesay. 
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Parks Rothesay Parks & Trails Trails 
The Rothesay Common 
East Riverside-Kingshurst Park 
Steele-Kennedy Nature Park 
Wells Recreation Park 
Renforth Wharf Park 
Jordan Miller Park 
Stuart Dobbin Park 
150 Anniversary Park 

Wells Trail (12kms) 

Hillside Trail (3 kms) 

Bicentennial Trail (1.5km) 

Villa Madonna Trail (0.5 km) 

Charles Jensen is the Director of Recreation and Parks. 
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C. LIBRARY 

Library services for Rothesay residents are provided in partnership with the town 
of Quispamsis and the Province of New Brunswick. The building in Quispamsis at 
l Landing Court is maintained by the two Towns and cost-shared on a per capita 
basis. Permanent staff working in the library are employees of the Public Library 

Service of New Brunswfck. The original library opened its doors in 1984 and was 
enlarged and renovated in 2013 at a total project cost of j ust under $GM. Rothesay's 
share of 2022 operating cost is $83,217 (38.99% of the total cost) . More information 
on the Kennebecasis Public Library can be found on Facebook: 

https:/J,www,facebook.com/kenneb pl 

The Acting Library Director is Norah Emerson. 
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D. ROTHESAV LIVING MUSEUM 
The Rothesay Living Museum began as a partnership with Rothesay High School 

designed to protect and maintain memorabilia and artifacts from the five 

founding communities of the Town. It has evolved to a "digital museum" and can 

be found at https;//www.rothesaylivingmuseum.com/. It is operated by a volunteer 

committee that has collected stories of prominent citizens in written and audio 

forms, as well as community artifacts. It also sponsored the publication of a book 
and several special events. There are photographic displays located in various 

schools in the community, and in the Common Room at Town Hall. Committee 
activity was impacted by COVID-19 but the museum remains a repository for Town 

history and an opportunity for everyone in the community to gain an appreciation 

for how we came to be. 

Winter Carnival on the Rothesay Common, 1945. 



2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_205

8. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

A. BUILDINC PERMITS 
In 2022 the Town issued 174 Building Permits. 

Total Value of Construction for these permits was $22,184,326.96 - 2022, up 127% 
from the 2021 total of $9,781,945.23. 

The 2022 total value of building permit fees resulting from the permits is 
$161,500.00 up from the 2021 total of $73,531.00. 

B. BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT 

The responsibilities of Town staff include enforcement of Town by-laws. The 

following is the by-law enforcement activity in 2022. 

Zoning Unsightly Building 
Town 

Commercial An rnal Civic 
Owned 

Nose 
By-Law Premises By-Law S gnage Control Complaint Complaint 

Lands 

2022 10 3 1 0 3 s 4 3 

.. 
Pursuant to SECTION S a.(vn) of BY-LAW NO. 4-03 - PEACE, ORDER AND THE 
PREVENTION OF NUISANCES. 

"No person shall either directly or indirectly demand or invoke the official services 

of any police officer, firefighter or other officer of Rothesay where no reasonable 

cause exists for so doing;". Resolving disputes between neighbours is not part of 
the mandate of municipal staff. 

Directing water from downspouts onto a neighbour's property and estabUshing a 
business in a residential area are types of infractions staff dealt with in 2022. 

C. PLANNING 

The Province of New Brunswick lifted the COVID-19 Public Health restrictions on 

March 14, 2022. The Plan ning Advisory Committee returned to in-person meetings 
at Rothesay Town Hall, effective 4 April 2022. The Rothesay Planning Advisory 

Committee had one of its busiest years on record. It met 11 times and reviewed 
several major applications: 
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1. Rezoning 145 Hampton Road- 43-unit apartment building 

2. Rezoning 95 Hampton Road -36-unit apartment building 

3. Rezoning 2 & 4 Highland Avenue -41-unit apartment building 

4 . Rezoning SO Hampton Road - 27-unit apartment building 

S. Rezoning Corner of Gondola Point Road and Clark Road - 24-unit 

apartment building 

6. 14 residential lot subdivision with new public road connections to Dunedin 

Road and Higginson Avenue. 

7. 30 seat commercial restaurant with drive-thru on the property at 110 

Hampton Road 

D. HERITAQE PRESERVATION BOARD 
The Rothesay Heritage Preservation Review Board met three times in 2022. The 

Heritage Permit applications under consideration included the replacement of the 

Church sign at Saint David's United Church, installation of windows in the garage 

at 18 HAMPTON Road and the installation of accessibility ramp on the Old Medical 

Clinic at 8 GONDOLA POINT Road. 

Brian White is the Director of Planning & Development Services. 
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9. PUBLIC WORKS 
In 2022, the Public Works Department recorded 4,661,000 kg of salt/sand m ixture 

that was p,aced by monitored equipment d ur ing road maintenance. 

The Department saw a busy year; staff responded to 208 Service Requests in 2022 
and broken down in the table below. 

Cat ch basins 13 

Culverts 29 

Ditches 11 

Drainage 5 

General Drainage 85 

General Transportation 22 

Potholes 17 
Roadkill 3 

Signs 2 

Snow Plow Damage 18 

Street Lights 1 

Traffic Lights 2 

In 2022, the following infrastructure work was completed: 

• New Catch basins installed to help with drainage 
❖ 10 Appleby Drive 
❖ 2 New at 18 Eriskay Drive to help with winter run off and freezing 
❖ 82 Hampton Road New catch basin and piping to make drop off sidewalk 

safer 
❖ 52 Gondola Point Road to help with winter run off and freezing. 

• 9 pipe related repairs for the Utility Department 
• Tree removals in right-of-way 
• Tree Limbing in right-of-way 
• French Village sightlines (Opening up vegetation at intersections} 
• Fence at Rothesay Elementary School removed, reclaimed and reinstalled in 

new location 
• Line Painting- stop bars, crosswalks and d irectional arrows 
• Curb Sweeping (Two machines)- 4 times during t he year for maintenance 
• Street sweeping (4 Weeks} - once in the spring 
• Storm flushing-5 weeks with rented flusher uni. 
• Shoulder and ditch repair in general 
• Seasonal wharf removal/ installation for Parks Department at K Park and 

Renforth 
• Shoulder mowing (ditches/slopes) 



2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_208

• Mowing trail system for Parks 
• Mowing Oakville detention pond 
• Mowing sewer lagoons 
• Snowplow damage repair 
• Flagging for Parks Department for Hampton Road island maintenance -

ongoing all summer 
• Pothole/ patching asphalt repair 

Asphalt Paving: 

Broadway Street 590m 
Holiday Drive 470m 
Crestline Road 445m 
Forest Road 475m 
Bayley Road 130 m 
Calistoga Road 260m 
Kildare Court 490m 
Crescent Drive 515m 
Park Drive 160m 
Princess Place 60m 
Seville Row 275m 
Frances Avenue 810m 
Beach Drive 490m 
Spruce Street 300m 
Scichilone Street 200m 

Concrete Curb and Sidewalk: 

Hazen Avenue 
Kingswood 
Iona Avenue 
Spruce Street 
Gondola Point Road 

30m 
350m 
240m 
305m 
130m 



2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_209

10. UTILITIES 

A. WATER 

In 2022, the Rothesay treatment plant at Carpenter Pond withdrew 687,125 m 3 of 
raw water from the welll network to produce 653,527 m 3 of drinking water for 
distribution. With 23 new water connections and 19 new sewer connections, 
production was high. 

The following are the performance resu lts for the three Town wastewater 
treatment lagoons for 2022. 

Treated 
Mg/litre Oxygen Mg/litre 

Lagoon 
Volumes(m3) 

Demand Suspended Solids 
(CBOD) (TSS) 

KPARK 215,094 35 25.25 
RENFORTH 345,107 7.25 9 
FAIRVALE 2,832,471 17.3 20.8 

Brett Mclean is the Director of Operations (Works and Utilities) . 

. , . .,.,., 

_ .. _ 
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11. ENVISION SAINT JOHN: 
THE REGIONAL GROWTH AGENCY 

Introducing - Always Moving Forward 

The region's value proposition, or brand promise, was built on and validated by our 
proven track record of forward-thinking, with Canada's first incorporated city at its 
core and many notable firsts to it's name {Canada's first bank, newspaper, and 
museum - to name just a few). The region is united by pride of place and a strong 
determination to grow. People here love to roll-up their sleeves and get things 
done - providing a legacy of success that gives us an outsized advantage in 
building for the future. 

At the region's core is a truly vibrant, contemporary city with a major port. Port 
Saint John's modernization positions it as the Next Great Port in Canada - a clear 
demonstration of Always Moving Forward. And there are many more like this. 

Multiple billion-dollar companies are headquartered in our region providing a 
legacy of success not typically found in a region of our size. Hosting the upcoming 
Memorial Cup builds on our hockey history and reputation for hosting world-class 
events. And the recently opened Area 506 Waterfront Container Village leans into 
our natural assets as the only city on the Bay of Fundy with the backdrop of a 
working port. 

Even our Envision Saint John agency business model - our innovative, 
collaborative approach to growing the region (the first of its kind in New 
Brunswick)- reinforces our region's commitment to Always Moving Forward. 

It's the region's brand persona - The Gritty Go-Getter - that is driving the work of 
Envision Saint John. We're creating new connections, expanding the traditional 
economic development network, looking for diverse perspectives, tapping into 
different talent, and bringing new voices to the table. 

You will also start to notice a new Saint John region word mark designed to reflect 
the connected nature and forward momentum of Saint John and its surrounding 
communities. The connected letters represent our togetherness - as a people, as 
a place and our vision for the future. And the directional arrow reaches ahead, 
representing a region that is forward-thinking, poised for future growth, and 
Always Moving Forward. 

The Saint John region is the powerhouse that will drive growth for NB. 
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12. APPENDICES 

A. DONATIONS 

RECIPIENT TYPE FORM $ PURPOSE 

KV3C grant In kind 2,500 Space in McGuire Centre 

NB Medical Education Trust grant cash 5,000 Medical education 

KV Food Bosket grant cash 500 To offset operating cost 

KV Food Bonk via Quispomsis grant cash 6,000 To offset rental cost 

St Joseph's Hospital Foundation grant cash 1,000 To support programs 

You Con Ride Two) grant cash 1,000 To offset operating cost 

Rothesay High School grant cash 1,000 Student scholarship 

KV Oasis Youth Centre grant cash 2,500 To offset operating cost 

Saint John Theatre Co. grant cash 1,000 To offset operating cost 

Symphony N.8. grant cash 1,000 To offset operating cost 

Junior Achievement N.8. grant cash 300 To offset operating cost 

CIMB-FM Oldies 96 grant cash 1,000 To offset operating costs 

KV Girls Softball grant cash 500 To support programs 

SJ Regional Hospital Foundation grant cash 1,000 To support programs 

RNS Arts Show grant cash 500 To support donations 

NB Competitive Festival of Music grant cash 250 To support programs 

St Paul's Church grant cash 500 To support programs 

Saint John Seafarer's Mission. grant cash 250 To support programs 

Shining Horizons Riding Association grant cash 1,200 To offset operating cost 

Kennebecasrs Rowing & Canoe Club grant cash 2,500 To support programs 

KVMHA grant cash 500 To support programs 

Bradley Joudrey grants cash 500 To support programs 

NB Sport Hall of Fame grants cash 225 To support event 

TOTAL $30,725 
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B. REGULAR/SPECIAL/CLOSED 
COUNCIL MEETINGS ATTENDANCE 2022 
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Jan10 ✓ 

Feb14 ✓ 

Mar14 ✓ 

Aprll ✓ 

May2 ✓ 

May9 ✓ 

May13 ✓ 

Jun 13 ✓ 

Jul 11 ✓ 

Aug8 ✓ 

Sep12 ✓ 

Oct3 ✓ 

Oct 11 ✓ 

Novl ✓ 

Novl4 ✓ 

Nov28 ✓ 

Decl2 ✓ 

*Conf!,ct of Interest (COi} declared 

Closed Committee Meetings 

Finance Committee 
31 March 2022 
21 April 2022 
21 July 2022 
25 August 2022 
29 September 2022 
20 October 2022 

11 

11 II 

11 

11 

11 

I 
I 

I 
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C. COUNCIL REMUNERATION 

Mayor Grant D/Mayor Councillor Councillor 

Alexander Shea Lewis 

$37,000 $20,100 $18,000 $18,000 

-- ------ --

Councillor Councillor Councillor Councillor 

McGuire Mackay Boyle Brown 

French 

$18,000 $18,000 $18,000 

Expenses - Mobility Charges (iPADs} 

Mayor Grant - $300 
Councillors - $2,539 

SENIOR STAFF SALARY RANGES 

$18,000 

POSITION SALARY RANGE 

Di rector Administrative Service/Clerk 100,000 - 125,000 

Director Parks &Recreation 100,000 - 125,000 

Director of Planning & Development 100,000 - 125,000 

Director of Operations 100,000 - 125,000 

Treasurer 100,000 - 125,000 

Town Manager 150,000 - 175,000 
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D. 2022 EVENTS ATTENDED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

January 2022 
Jan 3 New Year's Message to CBC 
Jan 18 Video for Chinese New Year 
Jan 23 Photo for Pink Shirt Day 
Jan 37 Video for Winterfest (Wells} 

February 2022 
Feb 25 Opening of KAM Institute of Design 
Feb 26 Branch 58 Legion Fundraiser 

March2022 
Mar 16 Funding Announcement for Wells BuUding 
Mar 19 Branch 58 Legion Fundraiser 
Mar 28 Regional Chamber of Commerce Luncheon 
Mar 30 Community input into Health and Technology District 
Mar 31 USPORTS Championships at Fieldhouse 

April 2022 
AprS 
Apr9 
Apr13 
Aprl9 
Apr26 
Apr29 

May2022 
May2 
Mayll 
May18 
May20 
May20 
May24 
May26 
May28 
May28 

Envision Meeting and l uncheon 
Jervis Bay Legion Fund raiser for Ukraine 
CBC Interview RE: Changing Density in Rothesay 
The Wave interview RE: Rothesay Road 
"Thank Yous" delivered to schools {Earth Day Clean Up) 
Kick off to Cruise season 

ENVISION Sa int John Regional Mayors Luncheon 
Cheque presentation to KV Girls Softball 
Saint John Catalytic Projects Launch 
Kennebecasis Reg ional Police Force (KRPF} Open House 
Video for Intergenerational Day Canada 
Regional Chamber of Commerce: State of the City 
Red Tria ngle Award dinner 
Quispamsis Uons Club CNIB Dog Walk 
Asian Heritage Month Gala 
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June2022 
Junel 
Junel 
June3 

June3 

Junes 
June7 
June 11 
June13 

June14 
June17 
June18 
June 21 

June 21 

June 22 
June 23 

June 30 

July 2022 
Julyl 
Julys 
July7 
July12 
JulylS 
July 24 
July 24 
July28 

Intergenerational Day Celebration - Rothesay Hive 
East Coast Games Kickoff Reception 
Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Retirement Reception D/C 
Chief Dan McCoy 
Rothesay Netherwood School Graduatfon and Closing 
Ceremonies 
Queen's Jubilee Tea, St. Paul's Church 
David Goss Walk'n'Talk 
East Coast Games Opening Ceremony- Softball (Counc. Boyle) 
Chamber of Commerce Luncheon (Premier- State of the 
Province) 
Saint John Regional Hospital Foundation Reception 
QMJHL Memorial Cup at RothesayTown Hall 
Rothesay Netherwood School Founder's Dinner 
Platinum Jubilee Tree Planting - Veteran's Memorial Park with 
Branch 58 Legion 
Photo with Rothesay's "White Heart" at East Riverside-Kingshurst 
Park 
QMJHL Memorial Cup game with Regional Mayors 
Rothesay High School Graduation Ceremony (Deputy Mayor 
Alexander) 
Sweet Caroline Foundation 

Canada Day celebrations 
Welcome Stephanie Labbe to Arthur Miller Fields 
Concert in the Common 
ENVISION Saint John Regional Mayors 
Kennebecasis Regional Police Force Community BBQ 
Welcome Kayleigh Rafter and KGSA to Wells Ba llfield 
Operation White Heart Fundraiser 
Community PSA for Oldies 96 

August2022 
Aug 3 Port of Saint John Tour with Deputy Prime Minister Ch rystia 

Aug 6 
Aug9 
Aug9 

Aug12 

Freeland 
Saint John Pride Parade (Councs. Boyle and Mackay French) 
Maiden Factor/Port Saint John Dinner 
Visit to Kennebecasis Paddling Club RE: Canada Summer 
Games 
Photo Op with rowers off to Canada Summer Games 
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Aug22 
Aug25 

KV Walkers Ramble 
Premier Higgs Meet and Greet 

September 2022 
Sept 7 Rothesay Park School: Opening of Outdoor Learning Space 
Sept 6 Visit to Rothesay Athletics and Training 
Sept 70 Branch 58 Legion Music Party 
Sept 73 Dedication of new Coast Guard ship 
Sept 79 St. Paul's Church Requiem Eucharist for Queen Elizabeth II 
Sept 24 Branch 58 Legion Fundraising supper 
Sept 29 "The Joanne Project" at Rothesay High School 

October 2022 
Oct 4 Water Tasting at American Waterworks Association Atlantic 

Oct6 
Oct 75 
Oct78 

Oct79 
Oct20 
Oct28 
Oct29 

meeting 
Future Engage with Saint John Newcomers Centre 
Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Open House 
Regional Chamber of Commerce Outstanding Business 
Awards 
Sophia Recovery Centre Sunny Side Up Breakfast 
Saint John Rotary Club Gala 
Branch 58 Leg ion Poppy Campaign Kickoff 
Rocmaura Gala 

November 2022 
Nov 5 Greater Saint John Sports Hall of Fame Induction Ceremony 
Nov 10 RUSI Pre-Remembrance Day Dinner 
Nov 77 Remembrance Day Service at Qplex 
Nov 77 Branch 58 Legion Reception 
Nov 77 PRO Kids Dinner (Councs. Boyle and Brown) 
Nov 22 INNOVATE NB Awards 
Nov 24 Saint John Newcomers Centre Volunteer Appreciation Night 
Nov 26 KV Santa Claus Parade 
Nov 29 Saint John Immigration Launch 
Nov 30 Saint Andrews Society of Saint John 

December 2022 
Dec 1 Christmas message for Oldies96 
Dec 6 New Brunswick Medical Education Trust Open House 
Dec 7 Saint John Newcomers Centre English classes 
Dec 7 Port Saint John Holiday celebration 
Dec 10 Rothesay Ballet presentation "The Nutcracker" 
Dec 12 Saint John Newcomers Centre Grand Opening 
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E. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

ROTRESAY 

C'ONSOLIDA TEO Ftli A.NClAI. ST UE'.\tEr-.'TS 

OECRMBf.R 31,102.2 
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ROTBESAY 

OE('.J!;MBER JI, :1.022 

CONITNTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPOR'I' 

t'INANCIAI, STA n :~ V.:\TS 

Cousolidoltd Statement of Operiitions 

ConsoliclY!ed SCalemcnl ufFin.an<:1al Position 

( 'nn1ohd111cd Sratcmcnr ot C,'h11ngc, m Net Debt 

Consol i\latcd Statemc111 of Cash Flows 

Notes Co ConS<Jlidiltrd Fmancml Statements 

Pa1tc 

l - 2 

3 

4 

s 
6 

' . JS 

teed saunders I «c'ov'nt•n"t; doyle & aKM~.,,, 
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teed saunders I accountants 
doyle & advisors 

L''Dl:J'ENDl::NT Al'DITOl\S' REPORT 

io Her Worship 1'1": Mayor 11nd Mcrnbc,s ofCmmcil 
R<>rhc:say, New Brunswu:k 

Opimon 

We have 11uditcd Che consotidatcd finar,cial sll11crnems o f Ho1hcl11y (rhc •ro,..,"11~), which cc,mp1isc tile 
con:.olidated statement of tinm1cial p~1uoo a.sat Decem!Hr 31, 2022, and the consolidoted stlltements or 
operRtioos, changes in net debt and ca!lt f1ows for the year then ended 1111d notes to rite cou,olidated 
finillltial slutcments, mcludm11 a ~ummary of signilic.mt accounting policies. 

ln our opinion, l~e c<>n:.olidaled fuwtcinl s1:11cmcnts present f111rly, in all rnotenal n:spccta, the 
fmancral posiuon of me I own a, 111 llo:cmbcr l l, 2022, uk1 the 1cs11lt; .,f it.J opcrahM, en.I 11, Cll~lt 
flows fur lhe yea, d,eu emled in l \.'\:Ordam:o: with Canadian public sc:1;1ur 1c.:ountin11 ~lamlanfs 

Hmi1 fr,~ Opimm, 

Wr: cooductc:d our c1udit III accor,lance with CaMdfan tieneraUy 1M:ecp1ed auditing itand:uds Our 
,csponsihilitic:.s under Lho,ie sl.llndanfa an, farther descnhcd 1n the Am1,tor.,• Rcspon~1h1litic:., fQr the Au<iit 
of the Financilll StJ!o:m.:nL'I sccliun of our report. We l!.nl independent of the Town in accordance with 
1h11 ethical ro:t1uircrnenl:s thal ore relc:vant lo our audit o f the consolidated fin11nc,ol storemcnts in Canada, 
o.oo \lie have fulfilled 0111 ocher ethkal respousibilitiu in accord.lllo:e with d!OS<il requ11e1ucnts. We 
believe dl111 11lc a11d1t c.,.,dcocc we have ob111i11cd i3 111fticic11t and apptopr,1t1e to p.-o.idc A b~sis foe oor 
opinion. 

Rt.Jp<J1Uibifitits of MmtngP.ttMnt m,,t UMJe Cltn•gP.d with (Jo11t•nt111ct for tilt Consolidated Fma,,dal 
St alt mum., 

r.fa11agcmcnt " rcsp<>n.1it>lc tor the prrpar~tion 11m1 fair prc,cntsnon ot thc'IC c:onwlidared finonc1al 
statements ill acconbncc with Canad tan public sector DCCounting standard~, and far such intcmal cm,tml 
•~ manag,cment detcnnmc, ,s ncccsSAI)' to enable lhc prcparalton of cctt~lidatcd finonciol ~latcmcnt~ 
that ~ rrco: from m.it~rial misstatement, wltetl1c,t due to fraud ur em.1r. 

In prcJlanng the consolidated finandal ,tatcmcnt~ mnnagcment u relpo111iblc for 05.,essing the Town·• 
ability IV contmue as a going 1.unc1:rn, <foc:lu~ing, n applic,ble, rm11lcrs n:la(ini: to goi11g C!lllccm and 
using the going conc.:n1 luuis of m:counting u11leS:1 mim11boemenl either 111tends lo liquid111~ die Town or 10 
cease opetatlons. Of has no ~hstic n!tematLve but to do so 

Tho:1e charged 1<,Lth g,wo:m11.nce are n:.spon,;(blc for u,•.,,sceing lh~ Town', lin111ici11l reporting pro~ess 

Auditors' Resp,m~lbilir,esfur liw .◄ udil ~{the Consol/eluted F/,iu11~·111I Sw1~m.m11 

Our objccllves arc la obtain reasonable usunmcc about ,~flclhcr the ccnsohdatcd fimmc,al statements a~ 
a whulc ue fn:c, from material ini,statc:numl, wh..thcr due tu fraud ur error, and tu issue IIJ1 aud,ton' 
l'vpor1 th::.t inc;;.lud¥K our op,nior• R-.u.eouablv ot:dUt.;u,c::~ i,:; ~ hith l•\'¥1 u( tlef.;lm:m.~•, bul i • i,~t o. guarcntt1e 

that an ~11dit cond11e1cd in scco1dancc wlch Can.tdia11 gc11c1ally aetc1,11ed auditing $tllndard3 v.ill Qlways 
dcrcct II ffll'ltcrfal minutemen! when it c,d~- Mts.5tnfcmcnt, can 3n.sc fmm frand or error Bild are 
consrdcrcd material ir, mdividua!ly or III the: IIIU!fCJl,8.la, rltcy could rc-:1Sonably be expected to Influence 
the e,;onom,c dccision.s of users taken on the ha.sis of these consolid.J.tcd financial statements . 

}~\ ,.ff.-t.Z-t>l ·1 !-.•':\.. ~~.,~, ; ,,, tJB,\ n 1a. r "' "'~'•' ,_.. •• , r~-'·• 11 .. p .... • ... ,.;. ~., '"'''•'• , "'"..,,1 , ...... '"rs,- , . , 
~l)~"iio- :,r I ',ltd•'- 1 r,? :"•rf'Jr-p:• ll I~ -.n11t;, ·rl'- "- i"t", f "'t~-1\~,I" lH."l :-,~ 111)~1.!\(1 l':;"'i' fr:.11 t1,.1;,1.,, ...._.-;,t-•t1 
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Tndq,endt'nl Auditon' Report to Her Wofllhip lbc Mayor and Members of Council of Rothcsay (cont'd) 

A.11ditor.s1 Re.rporJsihilitie~ for the Audit oftlte Con.10/id{Jled 1"in1111,:iol StlJtt mt nu (com'd) 

As part of an alldit in aecor~nee with Canadian generally accepted 4udihng sta11dards, we exercise 
profess1onJ.ljudg,nent .and mamrain ptt>f"sional skepti,i;ism throogJ!out rhc audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess die ri,ks of maltrial mintatemtenl uf the eon:KlJidai.:d financial statcml!nb, 
whether due lo fraud or error, dcsie,i and perform audit proccdurc:5 responsive lo those 1isk.s, and 
ohtam audn evidence tlu11 is sufficient snri •ppropri~tc to provide II bns1s for our opinion The 
risk of not dorecti11g a material mi,stau:men! l"Cl>'tllling from fr<llld is higher than for one resulting 
from error, iU fraud mny mvnlve colluiuon, forg!II')', 1ntcnllonal nm1>s1nns, m1m:prescnlollons, or 
the ovcmdc of internal cm11rol. 

• Obt.tin an unden;l,1Udmi; ~f inlcmal contrul n:hwanl tu lhc audit in ,,rJcr to dt:sigi, audit 
pra<:cdures lh:11 arc appropriate ii! me circum$11tl'l'C$, but nat fuf the purpose of expnminl! ~o 
opinion 011 the e.tlectivc~ss of the Town's i11tern11I (u111tol. 

• F.ulu11c the appropnata1c.<1 of accnun1il1g pnlic,es used and the rca.~onall!cne11,1 of accou111i11g 
c~11maces a11d related disclosuu:~ made by inanage111en1 

• Conclude nn lhe appropnatcncss of management', u511 nf the gninK concern bui~ of accounting 
and, b.\Scd on the 411dtt evidence obt~incd, whether a n1~teriJI unccrlainty e,usu related 10 e,culs 
or conditioM rhat lllllY C."lSl significant doubt on the Town•, ~bi!ity tu continue 11s .t go1ns 
concern. If we c,im:ludc: !hat a material uncertainty exists, we arc required to chaw allcntfon in 
cur auditors' rc:port u, the related d1sclosuft's 1n the comolidalcd financial ,catcmr;nrs or, if such 
d1Selos~re, are Inadequate, to modify our opinion Our conclusions DN based Oil the audit 
oevidt11c:e obtained 11µ ICI Che Llale c,f uur audi!on' ,.,po,r Howo,v.,r, fu,uri: e,-.:nrs or wmhtions 
may cause lhc Town to cc- to continue as a going concern. 

• Eva!uatoe the ovt ,sll Jir~s.:nlcshon. 1tmch1re a1Ml i;onlenl of th.: tun$0lida,ted lin•nctol slat~ments, 
including the d1sdusun:,i, .and whc:1her the financial datcmcnts rq,=nl the undcrlyins 
tranll8Cti.1n~ and event, in a 11u1nncr that ,.:hi,wcs fa ir p~111111tf)II 

Wt c.:ommunic11C<f with lhosc cha1 gcd v.itla govetna11.:e 1cgardill3, .unong 01l11:r tn.ineis, th~ planned 
,co~ and timing of the audit enrl significnnt audit finding.,. including any s1g,u tlc11nt dc:ticiencie, i11 
internal control that wi:- 1dct1tif) during nur audic . 

it,in1 John, N~ 
Allfil lt ,20:n 

. l • 
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ROTHESA\' 

CONSOL IDATED ST A TEME~T o•· OPERATIONS 

FOR TUE YEAR E."'i"DED DECEMHl:R JI, 2022 

REVF.NUE 
Property tax wamint 
Unconditional grant 
Conditional gm·cmmcnt transfer,; {Note 28) 
Scrvic~~ olhff 11ovcrnmcnls 
Sal.: of services (Note 28} 
Ot!Jcr own soun:~ (Note 28) 
W3ter and sew~r u~o,r foes 

Sundry income 

EXl'F.Nl)rTURF: (Note ~8) 
General @OVcmmcnt scivicc1 
Protective services 
Transport111ion strvi<:es 
l::11v1rot11ntnU 1 h.ialth soervi~cs 
Environmental f!evelopm4:nl r.cr\lice.s 
Recreatfon and cultural $Crvices 
Wat~r and sewer service~ 

ANl\1.JAL SURPLUS FOR THF YEAR 

i\CCUMtlLATED SURPLUS -
BF.Gl" Nll"IG OF VF.Alt 

CHANGE IN OWNERSRTP OF CONTROLLED 
1'1.Nl'ITIE..i. (N,,te 2) 

ACCLMULATt:D 5URPLUS 
F.NU <W \' J:AR 

.zo;u 
Budget 

(Note 27) 

S 18,181 ,SI0 
130,973 

1,190,000 
6(),000 

•119,900 
82,Y'IJ 

J ,JSl ,730 
,~ 1122 

2J m.2os 

2,351 067 
5,686,685 
5,5#,451 

862,000 
682,/01) 

2,963,304 
~ .120 

21 552 ' Q2 

s l,228,8Q8 

j, 

im 
Actual 

S IS,18l,.S l0 
IJ0,972. 

1,315,988 
81,806 

475,710 
96J,68l 

3,16) ,226 
_ill.ill 

2!1,1!11.2.HJ 

2,Jl!J,!102 
S,S14,S28 
li,996 4}4 

96228l 
1f,11,I l'2 

3, ISS,894 
!,6!lS,182 

21222 2!\Q 

2,788,670 

85,146,8211 

_____.5, ◄2 7 

$37.940.~S 

WJ 
Actu11I 

S 17,002,299 
13 1,l'H 

2,286,228 
80,180 

459,024 
112,770 

),077,512 
____l2J. I 76 

2J..ID.JB2. 

2,05l,M7 
~.067,807 
5,520,00'l 

854,521 
507,044 

3,036,557 
l m.~111! 

20.5)2.lil 

2,11$3,829 

1!2.162,618 

_ill 

s.~~1ltt61HR 

teed saunders I •~riunt•Ns 
doyte &!ldvkorl 
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ROTIRSAY 

CONSOL.IDA TED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 10?2 

Zill 11.tll 

FINANCIAL ASSETS 
C;a:;h IUld clcli 1:q11h:1.leuts (Note 4) 
Acwunlll r-iv.11ble (NO(e 5) 
lllvestment3{No~ 10> 

LLAUJLI l lt:S 
Accounts pay-.ible i,nd accro~c.l liabilil:c• (N01e 9) 
T.Jcfcncd revenue (Note 8) 
Luna; 11:m1 dtb4 (Note I l) 
Accrutd peosion obligation (Note 16) 
Ae.:rued sick l~vo (Note 15) 
A4 nicd rcfocmcn1 a1Jow11nce (i-:otc \6) 

!'"'ET DEBT 

r,ur.-l'lNANUALASSl!:ll; 
Tangi"ble capital assets (Note 21) 
Ac.cumubtcd amol'hzatio11 (Note 21) 

.lnvcotmy 
Prc.p1ud expenses 
U=ortized debeiirun: c;osh 

ACCl,'ML l.ATEU SURPLUS 

CONTINGENT l,IABILITY (Note 11) 

COMMITMENT (Nllfe 18} 

APPROVED BY. 
, 

__ I'_,_,'-, ___ ,1_t ... /'"'·•..;.'_.I_._/ ___ ~l11yc,r 

Town Tre.isurer 

S l 0,)24, I 0~ 
1,550,IS') 

)41227 

s 12 21 1u9-0 

$ 2,1132,770 
J,592,SSS 

11,059,96? 
iO,lS2 

142,374 

I !.!S2 520 

,1i li2i l•S 

,s,,m.s4a) 

164,706,278 
(68 l57 W) 

%,341,92~ 

35,691 
3l,91J 

1.234 

iMlS.77.J 

$m1 2~g.~~ 

S 10,44~,85!1 
1,357,294 

290,.d.28 

5.Li..2')7.SRO 

s 1,K(,9,68(, 
),982,636 

14,4lS,2JS 
71,893 

20~,2&9 
I QI I S!lJ 

21 ~2S ~25 

(9 4"11 945) 

158,983,625 
(.6ill.4.221) 

94,569.)98 

31,163 
22,~07 

l.7Jli 

~J.IJ 

S 8S1146Jis 
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ROTHESAY 

CONSOLIDATF,D STATI.MENT OF CllANGI.s l"I NET D1:'.B1 

AS AT DECUmER 31, 2021 

Annual ,11rplus 

Acq11is1tiou of 1aog1blc capi1o I 11ssets 
l'r•x«ds on di,posiil of tangible CJ1p1t.:il = IS 
Am-0ni1ation of ungi hie capital as.sets 
L'h411ge m nwm:,,;h1p of tanglhlc capital assets 
Loss OD disposal ur 1angiblc capiul a.s~u 

/\cquis1t1on of inventories 
,\cqu~ition of prepaid 155CU 

Acquisition of unamorti1.t:d dcbmrurc cims 
Consumption or invcntmies 
Us11 uf pn:,paud assets 
Coru.umplic.m of unumtmilll:d d~bcnt~ to$tS 

Clumgc in owucrship cf conllollcd entities 

Deat4se in net debt 

Net debt - beh'lilDID!\ ~•f year 

Net debt - end of )'e&r 

APr~VED DV: ~ 

:;;~ ~~:iJijj_ Towu Trw ,m:r 

Wl 

s 2,"188,670 

(6,669,289) 

4,758.755 
{!,711) 

mm 
1,009, )CJ 

m,6911 
(32,92]) 

().234) 
J 1,163 
22,507 

I 705 

994,670 

S.427 

1,000,0117 

_(2 :122.2~ll 

s l§1-1z1110> 

MU 

5 2,913,829 

(S,8112, \ 78) 
12,423 

4,649,782 
76 

361,8~8 

2,IJJ,800 

(31,163) 
(22,507) 
{1,705) 
16.268 
2:l,059 

--2.l]') 

2,116,931 

_.ill 

2,117,112 

111 .. mJrn 
s: i2.~1z.2m 

teed saunders jl iic,oumanis 
~ &acM1on 
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ROTUESAV 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASO FLOWS 

FOR TIIE VEAR INDED DECETtfflER 31, 1012 

lfW 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 
CASU £.Q\JlVALENTS 

OP£RATL"G TRANSACTIONS 
Arwuol surplu1 
t oss 0 11 ll1sposal ot tangible carual a~u 
Amortization of t,ngtblc ~api111J asset, 
Accounb 1ccc1vahk 
Accmmb J)ll}'ablc: and 111:crucd lfab1lilics 
DcfcrTetl revenue 
Accrued sicl: lta\'t 
Cl,ung,! in JC~rued pt<1Sio11 obli1+1li~n 
Clu111ge in .iccrucd retimnent allowon.:c: 
(hsnge in invC11t'll)''PICpau1 eXp¢tlSe.1•UtllllliOnJZCd debc:nl\m; COSIS 

CAPITAt. TR,\"iSAr.rtO~ 
Acquiut,on oftangrblc ~pita) ~U 
Chane,c 1n .,.,nc,sh,p of c.apibl as~Cl5 

Pnxti1:d! on disposal of tangible capital 11.,sc1, 

FINANCING TRANSACTION 
Loug Tenn detir tnel) 

S 2,788.670 
136,71& 

4,7S8,7SS 
(192,865) 
963,08•1 

(.190,081) 
(lil ,'>15) 
(61,74 I) 
47,717 

(1<!473) 

7 973 86? 

(6,669,289) 
(5,71 I) 

J,.1...lli.2il) 

C"iVESTING TRANSACTION 
hicrease (d~Nose) 111 i11\'es!men1s (54,722) 

CHANGE IN OWNERSIW' m 
CONTROLLED ENTITIES 5.427 

NET INCREASE IN CA.SU AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS (12S.754) 

CASH AND CASH EQlll\' ALE.NTS • BEGINNING OF YEAR 10 44'l !I'll 

CASH A.ND CASH f.QUT\'AU:NTS - E~bOF YEAR $10,3217!0; 

s 2.98l,829 
}67.8611 

4.649.732 
856,669 

H.509 
6'19.971! 
(SS,717) 

(107,727) 
19,003 

(14802) 

--2.llJ. .. lli 

(5,882.178) 
76 

__Jl,423 

(~) 

(I •1&82!1) 

0 37S!l')4) 

86277 

38) 

2,211,410 

...8.23!_4 . .;g 

$ 10144~1~sx 

.11tcounto1ms teed saunders I-·-"~'"-·' 
doyle a. •~011 
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ROl'IIESAV 

:-fOn:s TO CONSOl..lDA1 l{,1) flNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2021 

I. PURPOSE or l'IIE ORGANIZATION 

lfothcsay ("the T OY.ll ' } wa• 111.xi,porarcd a• a town by the 1'1ovmc<: of New Hrun5wu:k 
Munk1pahliC$ Act on J11111111ry I, 1998 and WIIS approvcLI for statu, a.-. a Munrclpallly effective 
J1U1uary I, 1998 by a.n amendment of ;'\cw Drun$Wick Rcgulallon 85-6 under Che Muni-ip.1J1ties Act. 
ru a muni(1palit}, Roth.isay is extmpt from Income tax u,u.ler section l49(l){c) of lhe Canaduin 
Income. Ta~ A<.t 

l. Sm.L'\L\RY OF SIGNIFICA:"IT AC:COUN'IING l'Ol.l(IJ.:S 

l )n,; fiu.a.11\,,.i~l !\U.ICUA.1-ll., U llll. l'uwu tt) L. l h u u .:.p 1u~uhm v11:, 1,f IUH,tn~\:UICUI vn:y:1.n;liJ in MA..VtcJi::IU"'l; 

wilh Canadian sencrall)· accepted a<;C11unl1ng principles for lo<:el g<m:mmcnl, as Jttommcnded h)· 
the Public Sei;lor Accounting Board (PSAll) of111c Chartered Pmfcs.<mnal Accounlilllts of Canada 

The focus of Pubhc Sector Ao.:ountmg Sraodards ('PSAS0

) fin:mm,I statements is on lhc financial 
position of the Town and 1hc changes thereto. The consohdaled stalemcnt of fma.nctal po~itton 
im;lu<l~ a.II of the a,$el" an<l liabilitie:. of 1l1c T uwn and ,ts jomtly c.intnJlh:J cnlilies. 

Signifo:anr 11Spc~ts of the uccounting po!ic,es ~doptcd by the T own nre as follow:s: 

Reporting Enlitv 

l'hc ~onsolii!al~ limmcial stah:imcnt.\ n:flccl the ssscls, liahilit,cs, revenues, cxix--nditun::s llfld 
chanl!cs in net tkb4 11nd cash flows of the reporting cnlily. 'Ihc reporting cntily is comprised or all 
orgll/11Zalions nod eruerpri~ accou11table for lhct ndm111isrra1ion ofthell' affnlrs and reSQ\lt.:cs to the 
Towu and which .\It ow,1e,I "'J<)1nlly cc,11,,ill~i by tl1t 1<111111 

TIie e11tities focludcd in 1he c1>nsoiida1el1 fwruicial smem,ill(s .ire as follow~: 

Rolhll:i:JY 
Kffl!lcbccas\s R~g.ion~I Jouu Bo111d of Police Couumssioncrs (KIUBPC) 

- Kctlnclicca.~is Vallty ri,c l),;piirtmcnt In-: . (K VFD) 
Kcnnchccuis Public l,ih13ry 

lmcrdcp:imncnul Rnd organi-z.it1onal tra1U,1ction, ftm1 oolancc.s ftrc ckmin.,tcd 

Tl,e joh11ly controlled erihie.s have l,co:11 1•revortio11a1efy co,,,olidarcd ~r the following race~, 

Keru1cbccasi, Reg1<>MI J.lint Boord of 
Police Commissioners 

Kcnncbccash Valley Fire Department Inc . 
Kcnnehccasi• Vuhlic l.ihnuy 

10ll lli1 

~0.05% 
40.91¼ 
3l'L'>9¼ 

40.08% 
il0,77¾ 
lK9~'o 

Changes in nwner~hip percentage~ have hecn accounted fnr a.• an adjmrment tP accumulated s11r11lu~ 
Cdclie11) 

l)WTicnh1p percentages. on any dosrolution of the controlled entity may vary ttnm 1hc alx>vc 
depending upon the ttnns of the agreements. 

lffd 5aU~ j •ccounUnlS 
doyle a. , ctv1~0" 



2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_227

ROTIIESAV 

NOTES ro CONSOLIUATF.D FlNANCJAL ST"ATEMENTS 

Ot:<'f-"1ll t:R JI, lllll 

.1. SUMMARV OF SJGNTFIC/\N'l ACCODi1'JNG POf.lCIF.S (cont'd) 

liudw 

The budget t1eu1~ cont11inad in lhcsc c:onsohdalcd fim~11cial statcm,:nts were .tpproved by Coun~il 
on November IS, 2021 and rhc Director of'Co111mu11it) Finances on Novtmber 25, 2021. 

f'mancial lnmumcnts 

~·inaftc:1111 1n11t,m1cnts arc rceOl'dcrt at ra i1 value whtn 11cquirNI or is!uet.l In subieq11c111 ptiriotls, 
equity instruments "'Rh actively traded market! are reported .it fair value. with any unrealized gains 
lmsc~ repnned in annual ~urrlu.~ All mhcr lin1mci11I instmmeuts ~re 1<.:pon~ ~1 an1ortiwd costs, 
and tc5lcd for impainncnt at each rcport1n3 date. ·r ran,ucrions com on Ille acq111sition, ~a le or issuc 
of financial in~1rumcnts arc cAp:n.scd when incuncd 

C:a_ih and c:a,h cqu1val\1nt~ incturtc c,i.~h on hanrl and t,.~lanc:cs w,11' b1nk5 nnct short term deposit; 
with 01iKinal maturilics of lluc,c months or less 

Revenue Kcx:ot11ilion 

1 }nrc~tnctcd rc•,cnuc •~ r«ordcd ,,n an accrual tiasi, :inti i.\ rc:coeu1zcd whcu colloction is tCll5onnbly 
assurt:d Kcslricial cunlrib•Jliun~ arc rccogiuzed &$ rcvieriuc ;,.. 1hr year m wb;cll the related 
expenses on: incu11cd 

Olhcr ,cvtnue is re.ortltd whc11 ii i~ earned. 

E.~pcn9il\lJ~ J!.scoAJl.11.i.on 

Expcnd11urc:s arc rccnrd-:d on a11 accrual ha.~is. 

Mcn~uremient linccrtainty 

The prqxira1ion of enc con::olidiued fiu n~ull sll11cments ir, c,,11fom1ity w11l1 ("ftm1di:111 pul>li~ s~1or 
Bccounting standards require., m.1na,.,::mcn1 to make c:rt1mah15 that affect 1hc reported am01►nt of 
a,,;scl!i wiJ liabili1ics a.nil tl~lusun: of 1:AJnlmgcnl asi.ccs and liuhilillcs 111 the date of the financiJI 
stahancnts and the n.,purtcd llmount of rc•;cnues 1111d cxpcn !ES d~ring !he reporting pcncd. These 
estimates or11 m·iew~d periodically. a.ml a1 acljustmenu become necessillY, they arc n:poncd in 
ellmmg.1 in the penod in wh1~h rliey hero111e k11<>w11 .'\cluAI r~,tl~mlly tl•IT~r frorn thos~ estimates 

Ex11111ples of significant el(im111c;; include 
the allow111i~ for doubtful ai:.:ou111s, 

• prnvidin!I for amorti1atk,n of tangible capit~I a~,.:t~ 
• thcc~tim•rcd useful l1vC/i of tangible capital as~t;·, 
• the rccu\·erabihty of tangible capital a, i,:ts; and 
• poll employment bc:ndit, li11b,lity 

lnvcntones 

lns,cnturies arc va'.ucd 31 rile low.:r ofc:0$1 and m:I rc:iliy.iblc \al uc: with cosc l>clng determi!ICd 011 the 
first in, fir.II OU I ha.ii~ 

teed saunders 1,c,ount•nb 
d0yle .. .ldvttotl 
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~on:s 'IO C0NS0LIDA nm 1/JNANOAL S1 A 1 EMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2021 

z. SUMMARY OF SIGNlFT('AN'I ACCOUN l'INC POl,ICU:S (cont'd) 

C:1111!!111 Reserve~ 

The u.~e of the Capit11I Reserve Ful!d.~ is restricted ta ~ ttal acqu1.~iMns The intention 1s to u,•c 
thcJc funds for future capdal acquJ~1tions and reduce future hormMng requm:ments 

QAg1tin@. Remycs 

1l1e use of lhe~c funds is 1estrietcd to payrue111 of oper,Uu1g expenses 

Tungible C31l118l A~$elS 

Tun~iblc cuptt31 a.sn~l:! are ~u,dcd at .:ust whtclt induclc) all ilJDOllflls that .uc dir~ctly auribubblc 
tu ui:qui)ihon, .:011$lruc.tivn. d,:,,elop•nc:ul or ~UcmtcJII of lhc 1n,;c:1, 1111: CO$I of rite 111ngible ~p1t11l 

11sset, less 11ny f.!Sitiurtl valu.t 1'.her, nppt,coble, is 11111vrt1zed on II stm,ght•line b11sh over tile 
estimated useful live~ AS fon,,w, 

Asael Type 
t.1nll 11nrrnvcmcn1~ 
8111ld•ngs a11d lei.st:hold improvements 
Vchrclcs 
Mllchincry and l!<lutpm~nl 
Roads 1111d meet; 
Storm •wet 
Water and Wlstcwat<:r network~ 

F:.1ti"'llled U14!ful l.ife 
10-75 ~llr~ 

20-40ycl!n< 
:J-2S years 
J-20 yetVS 
5-75 years 

2S·60ycars 
30-4\0 ycau 

Assets undr construcliQn 3JC nol 11monizcd until the 3S!Ct is :wa1lahh: for produc1ivc 115c. 

~r:wtlgn 

The Town is II dlversifitJ muuiciP')I unit tbal pwvidcs a wide range or sef't'iccs to ,i$ residents fot 
m11nagcment reporting purposes. the T<>wn's. opcr•oons 11nd ,.;hvit es Me 01~11izcd 1mt! rcportcrl by 
f\mction. This pre:icntation was cr~:1tcd for the purpose of recording $pcdfic activities to an3in 
ccm.11n ohjtttl\'c.<i in accordance with sptctal regulations, rc:ltrtct on~ or limi1at1nns. Municipal 
services arc provided by il~mcms as fallows: 

fii:.n~r .. , tJtpv .. ,.r11m0!.~mm 
'l11is dcpartmc:111 is resp<msiblc for the i,vurall 11,ovemanc.e 1111<.I liruuicial admini.strJliun uf thu 
Town. This mcludcs Council funclions, gencrnl and fina11c1ol man3gmit11l, legal ntallcrs and 
compliallcc with legislation, as well as civic relati..,ns. 

l'ro~cllve Sc~1~ 
Tius d~pGrtmcnl is re$pOru,1ble for rhe provision uf polil:in& sel'\'ices, lire protix:ti!JII, e1t1ergeo~y 
meas1,r.-~.11n1rnal co11rrol and other protcclive meuurcs 

Iwlm1tl.Mi.Q!l.Sec.tim 
nus ,lqiartrncnt i, ,~sp«11-1ib[c fol' cmni!l('ln SCPl1cc,o;, 1'1."l:l<h an,1 sr,cct'> moi111cna11c.:, ,1 ,ccc 
lighu11g. rrat'li~ scC'\·icc~, parking and other tran ,:ortation rel1ted functions. 

~nvironmcn,t<1l Hc11lth Scf\'iccs 
This dcpartmcnl is n:sponsiblc for the provis(or. of wask cullcctmn and dispofal 

I) 
teed saunders J •· ' ........ ""' ......_.. accountants 

..... ,.e & •°"'•°'~ 
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NOT KS TO CON.'iOI.IDATF.D nNAN□AL STATEMENTS 

Pl:C~'.,"ltBF.R 31, 202? 

l. SUMMAR vm· SIGNIFICANT i\CCOllNTING POUCIES (confdl 

Stgrncnt.::d It1formn1io11 {co11l't!f 

piviro11111enN1I .DeveloF4Tient Scf\li, C$ 
This dcpanmm IS re.,ponsible for plaMmg ~nd :zonme, C<>mm1Imty development, tnuri~m 3nd 
nthe1 municipal dcvc:lopmcnt t.nd promotio~ :,:rv1ccs 

~c~ati911 and Culrural Service, 
fhis depirtmcnl ~• rc,pcns1blc for the maiillcnancc and ('ptration of rc:crcabonal anJ culturnl 
far.ilihes including arena, (IDl'k1 and rlaygrounds and other rc:cn:atmnal and culturJI facilities. 

Water and Sewer Scrv1cc,1 
i"i,; d~partmcnt 1s responsible for the prov1sicn o ( water 1111d sewer scn1ces mduding the 
mainleMnte and operation of the underground nctWQrlo, 1rc11\menl planl!l, n:m:rvoin wul 
l11goons. 

The: Town has doeum~nlcd a \Chalule of scegrm,nt,:J disclo~urc: m Kule 23 

~ID!~o»ncnl llen<ifit.~ 

l'hc l'nwn rccngnI7.Cll il~ obl1gat10M ,mdcr poS1 employment benefit plan., and lhe Rlatcd co.st,. nel 
of plan w.scts The, Tuwn has a si.:k le:a,·e bl:nc:lit ~, Jocumcnt~ in Note I!, anJ a pen~iuu plan and 
relircrncnl allowance 11, dt..-cum.:nh:<l in ~ote l 6. 

3. FINANClA.L INSTRUM~.vrs 

The To"'" i1 ~xpored 10 varioos 1isks tllrough its tin:1nc111l insmtmcnn and 1111111 comJ1rchc1151ve risk 
m11nai;em11nr l'nunework 10 mnnitor evalua1e and manage the:~ rhk.,. The: folfowing analyst.~ 
prQv1dcs inforrr.at10n 11bnut the I own·~ ri~ CllJl''•un: and roncc:nrrahon ILS of December 3 ! , 2022. 

Credit.~1)( 

Cr(<Jit r1:;k arise3 from 1he potential thM " counlcr party writ fs1 I to perform its obhgat1on.s. The 
T,,wn is ci.poscd t~ credit ri,k fmm It, accounls receivable The Town mimm17..cs credit ri~k 
fhrough ongoing c:rcdn m:magcmcnl. 

J.,h1ut,h ty ~,i3k 

Liq111d11}' risk is tke risk tha1 an entity will encounter difticulty in ~ nng nbhg~llon~ am,c1ated 
with financ:1111 hAbil1Cic:; l'hc l'owa is cxpo:i,d tn 1hi., rlsk ma inly m re-spec I of it., receipt of fund~ 
from iHl customers and n1hcr related sourci:1, k>n.11 lcnn dcbl, a~wunL~ payable and accrued 
h•billlle• and 01her oblisat,oos 

Currcnc \, Risk 

Currency mk 1s th~ risk lo lhc comp:iny's Cl!minF,\ that arise fr.,m fluctwmons of fore1i;n cxch'11lgc 
rates and the dei,rcc ufvolat11ity ofthe:<! ra1_,, Th~T= is ml t!xposed tu forc,gn currmc)' nsllas 
11 docs not hold foreign curn,ncio:$. 

It/ 
teed saundet's I eccooi-t.nis 

doyle & advisors 
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NOTES ·ro CONSOLI DA l'ED FINANCIAL ST ATF.MF.NTS 

Dle:CE~IDll.R 31, 1022 

3. FL"i'ANC'IAL INSlltlJMF.N'fS {cont"d) 

Interest R~I<: Risk 

lnterc.t ralc ri,k is the ri~k th:it the V11lue of a tina.nct:il insrrumeni mlght b;: advtrsely off«ted by a 
l:hongc in the intc=t rates. lo !!Ccktng Ill mimmuc Che ri~ks from inletcst rate l111etu&Ho11s, the 
Tow11 UJuages t>.posure 11,ruut;h il.!l normal operating 1111d financing acuv1ties. The T-1"'11 is not 
expo1ed to interest rate ti\k a• its long term debt does not have a variable tnlcrc~t rate 

4. CASH 

Umcsui.:ted 
Rc~trictcd - merve fond, (Nole 2 5) 
Restricted - controlled e11ti1i~ 

S. ACCOU.Sl'S RKC£1VAl11£ 

Vue ftom the Federal Go\ler111nc=nt nnd i1& a.gc:ncies (Note 6i 
Pue from the Province of New 8111115..,ick et,:01" 7} 
Water and sewer 
Am1a 
Other 

2lll2. 

S 2,31.3,833 
7,750,182 

----26.0.lt82 

s 10 324.104 

lDll 
$ 49J,68b 

SS,921 
392,54q 
53,57'1 
51 ~Z2 

$ 11S~01J59 

6. nut FROM •·EotRAL GOVER,~ff.NT ANII ITS AGENCIES 

f 11nada Revenue Agimcy (H'i l 1cl,m<i) 
RCMP Secondment~ 

7. DUE FROM l'R0\'1N< •: CW ,tw KIUJNl'iWIC'K 

Department of l nm,portalmn and lnfnutruchJro 
D<lparflmm! of Jus1ice .ar.J Publi<: Safety 

ZIW 

s 447,588 
16 Ql!B 

s 493,686 

2l1ll 
$ n.6'Jf1 
____i~.ll 

$ 5~ 92 1 

2Dll 

S 2,687,89: 
7,452,'MK 

___J_Q<J_,2lll 

S 10,449 11511 

l0.1l 

$ 166,741 
69,101 

860,610 
41.S4l 

--1!.'.Jl).Q 

s lJS',294 

l0.11 

Ii 321,432 
!15 ]112 

' 366 741 

ml 
s 69 101 

s ~~ I~ 

teed saunders I ~countants do-Jte a. ~•Mso" 
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NOTES 1'0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEmS 

DECEl\-IBER JI, 2022 

8. DHERR£D REVENUE 

,. 

10. 

Ciovernmeur cra.nsftrs • G~s Ta< 
Deferred revenue Quisp.,msi, 
Deferr«t revenue• K-Park tevy {:-Jotc l4) 

,\CCOUN1'S PA,. ABLE AND A<:CRllt:D UARU.rru:s 

J\cc,,u111s vay.ilJlt • 1,-.ide 
B1d doposils 
Accnxd intcresr 
Accrued hsbihhc! 
Accounts payable - ulhcr 

INVESTMENTS 

2.0ll 
s J,580,543 

121m 

$ 3,592,5~~ 

1llll 

s 1,%2,917 
129.050 
17.332 

72],471 

.$ 2,a32,1zo 

1!ll.1 

s 3,890,604 
78,686 
11 .. Hfi 

S..J..2§2,636 

l.llll 

$ t.303,439 
161 .260 
\ 8.322 

'l79,i41 
1.12'1 

.s 1,&62.§§!: 

The i11vesuncn1s represent the Town's prupor1icr.a1e sluu.: of the w·11:stmcnts uf the KJUDPC. The 
1nves1n1frlls cons•st of short ,~m notes, can11dia11 equirie9 and fo.e,p, .equrlu:s 1111d are rt.:onfod 11l 
fa!! m31'kct v:lluc The unrc•lm:d gain (loss) on lh.: in\-C~lmel11!J al [1,lcember 31, 2oi2 w:is 

($41, J6t,]; (202 1 - $16,224). f'hc 1nvcs1111ent\ arc rc,,;mctcd for NIUl'C (ll\ymc11t of retcrcment 
lxe11d'ib. 

teed saunders I ·· ·· _ .. rf-.&.. accountants 
...,,.,.,. • advlsoo 
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ROl'HESAY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FlSAJliCIA(. STATF.MEms 

Oli:Cl'.l\UJJ>!R JI, 2021 

LONG 'fl:RM 01!:B'l' 

[a} Ciencml C!l!ilAI Furuj 

Jl•l11n« lm,ed RedctmN BlllllllCC 
J11a111u-y l, lluriat Juriue Dete1111J,r 31. 

lQll )'.W' Y.Ur lO:U 
New Hnin1wick Mun.cip~I Financ ,ng C<1q1<1t-.i100 

DebentuNs 

ll(j l ll 1.6Wi • J.ROo/o, 
duc2{127, O!C 4! I0-12, 
l l -11. 99-T1 s 149,000 s s 134,000 $ 15,000 

Dl26 1.2% • 3.7%, 
due 20J4, OIC ti 03-88, 
ll-71, 11,08 2,\9l,00-0 l96.000 I (iQ8 ,000 

8Nl7 1.05'¼-J .IS¾, 
d1.1c2025,0ICI/ l0-11, 1l-il8 7117,000 1119,000 5911,000 

0019 l.4.S½-3.SOYo, 
due 2031, OIC # I 3-08 1,301,000 196,000 1, l 11,0!ltl 

BXl8 090% · 2.9S'h, 
due 2040, <.llC II l!I 0020 96$,0t;Q 35,000 930.()(;t(l 

HY23 0.50% • l .110%, 
due 2030, OIC # 19-0020 316.0(}tJ ~ --li,Q!).Q 25:lJ!OO 

s l,71§,~~ s s 254,'l~!l s ·1.2~~,211:12 

l02J $667,000; 2024 • $682,000; 2025 $637,000: 2026 S440,000. 2027. $293,000 

I 1 
teed saunders I .. clciiiiwiis 

doyfe " iclviJOf1 
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N01'ES 'l'O CONSOLll>ATED FINANCIAL ~,ATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2021 
l 1, LONG TERM DEBT (cont'd I 

llu Wa1~r ;111<.ISeY!H CaRJtalJ'11..11!1 

Dalaac:e 
Ja.auary I, 

lID 

New Brunswick Mumc:ip.it t'1nanc1ng C0'1K)rll{1,1n 

Debcnrures· 
C A20 0 85So/, 2 J 78%, 

due 2031, O!C II 00-0018 S 956,000 S 
BGl91.65 • 3 80o/"' 

d11c 2027, O!C II 11-004'> 393,000 
RH23 I .)S • 3.80%, 

due 2032, OICli 00.00 !8 •1-13,000 
IU.27 1.2,_. •• J.7¾, 

due 2034, OIC II 11 ,0~5 836,000 
BSl8 I.OW,· 3. ISo/u, 

d,1c 2025, OICN 15.}8 150,000 
BP21 1.20o/o 3 80%. 

d,,c 20J(,, ()IC/I IK-0020 '!52,000 
BIU2 l.liSYo • 3.30o/o, 

due 20l 7, OJC # I 5--0069 1.179,000 
Dt:2 l 2.SS'Yo 3.'lo/t, 

Jue 2038, OIC ii !S.0069, 
96,006, 96·0072 I, I SJ,00() 

BYi-1 0.50% 2.60% 
due 20'10, OIC ii 111-0020 ---110.000 

6J91..00t.> 

Cam1da Morlgzigo and Hou;ing (!arporallon 

CM Hf' \ i (W., due i!Ol fl 
OIC # 0'1·11~, O'J, IJ'>, I 0-01:l 1.909,191 

S §,S0l,191 s 

bsued 
duri11g 

)DJ: 

- one• 
s 

Redeemed 
daring 
~ 

Balance 
Ucc~mbuJl, 

lO.ll 

89,000 S 867,000 

14,000 :179,000 

J,1,000 409,000 

l6,0UO 810,000 

36.000 J 14.000 

21,0()0 Hl,000 

)2,000 1,147,000 

KJ,000 1,070,nOO 

20 QPQ Wl,UOO 

m.ooo 

m.m. 
HJ,827. 

6,237.000 

I, 7 J.ll.J.62 

S 7,967.369 

Approvnl llfr~.c Mutucipal Caplt.'11 B'lfn.iy,ing Board has been obtained for the long term <kbt 

Tile Water nnd Sewer Capito.I hnd contains long term dclitof $410,926 (2021 • S411S,212) 1$sued to 
fund loc;il imi•t'OWmtnr pillJ.:.'U The dubl "'ill be repaid over II p~riod of time througt, the 
-collcc11on of local improvement levies. 

Principal paym.cnts required during Ille n.:xl five y.:aJS for lhc Wut~, &11J Stwer Capih1l Fund aro 11s 
follows 

2013- SS48,498, 2024 - S565,43S; 202j • S5/9,til9, l0l6, S:SCi0,090, .20J.7 • S31/,3lei 

l11 :;'!027 Jcbcnlun: DC I? "ill mature with a fmal amount due of S'JOl,000, however 1t 1s Cl!peclcd 
1ha1 SJOJ,000 <if thii paymclll will~ n:fiMn~<ld during lhal y~.1r for an additional ten ycan. 

tfH!d 1i,1Und@~ I ""«>unt~n,,. 
doyle .. advna,, 
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ROTHlf,SAY 

NOTES TO CONSOI.IDA n:o FINANCIAL STATF.MF.NTS 

I l. LOi-.G l'ERM DEBl' (cont'd) 

~llnintly Controlled lintity • KRJ~~ 

&lane~ lnut'tl R«il'rm~ 
J1uii.ary l . darh,g d11rll11 

20U year y1:ar 

New 8runswlc:► M1Lnic1p;1l Firwinc:ing CorporJliOD 

Ol!bcDtllt~S: 

BIAS l 2•11 - 3.J '-'. 
Ju.: 2024, CIC /102~6,0J-53 s 64,123 s Ii 20,869 

B!ll)S I om · 3.15''-', 
,tue 202'\, OJCij OJ•SJ 1~1211!1 36 560 

s 2161027 s $ P,4i2 
l'nnc1plll paymenu rc:quiral du11n~ the next live year~ arc ,u follow1, 

1021 - s-;s,41.1; :m24 - :itio ;I 7fr 2cm . $1'1.<>4'> 

LO!l!~!W.t~ 

G~11e1.1l Car1t;1I Fu11d 
W:itcr ond Scwtr C:pi<al fynd 
Join1ly Controlled P.1111ty - KRIPC 

12. LAND FOR PUBLIC Pl:RPOSES 

21W 

$ 4,934,000 
7,967,'369 

_j~ • .19.8 

spm:i.:w 

Balance 
December .H, 

2022 

$ 4),l'-1 

IIS 1~ 

s 158,598 

llli 

S 5,718,000 
8,501,191 

2)6027 

$11,13:5 21§ 

In 11.:c:otdQllce with lhe Comm1111i1y P!Gnlling AeL 1he Town bas lhe authority to set iuidt up 10 IOo/., 
of o,.11y IMd 111lidivid~d. or "P to f% -01' tht? 1none1,u y vah,c of ~uch l~uJ, 11s A 11:~rve A., wel , any 
pmceeds nn the s~le nf pu\llk lands mu:;1 hi? reserved These nmds Clln nnly he 11setl (or the, 
purcha!IO or dcvcto,1mcot of puhl,c lftn<is ~ntl ar,;:, mcludr:d m the l(cs,,rvc ~und~ (Note 2\) 

13. SEWER OtITFALL RESERVE. 

In occordance with 11n agreement with du: Munic1palit;v uf Quispamsis, Rothcsa.y and lhc 
Municiplllity of Qmspumsis ue required 10 l,111<1 011 au annual bt11>i~, An ,unounl lu <:ovc:r the 
oµeroting llld rnAilllcnauce ,.,sts ns!~•ci:ate<I with lho ,hared S~\\-er effluent line and outfall pipe Tl\el 
con1tlh111inn~ aie rnatle Qn ii r,cr m111 ha,i.;, with Rothc~"Y cnntrthuling $ l flt'' 11111( ~11,t Ille 
Munic.ipahty nf Quispamsis con11ibu1ing S2 per unit. Any a(Cumulatcd amounts a.re rmufcrrcd I() 
IJ-,c: W11tc:r and Sew.,, Capital Rie5<er.t: f-uml fur futun, capital expcndi1un,i. Al Dec,ember ) I, 2.022, 
lhe l:alanee in this reserve was S-319,717 (20:!l $296,690). 

teed saunders 1 •,coui111n1S 
doyle .. ,MMlO,i 
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RO"tfl£SAV 

NOTF.~ TO C'ONSOI.JDA TF.O FJN ANCIAI, ST A TF.MF.NTS 

Of,Ct:MRt;R 31, 2022 

14. DEFERRED REVENUE 

In 2002, lhc T O~11 issued a special wananl of assess111ei1t to the ,esideuts or Ke11t1el>ec:uis P&rlt for 
local Improvements made ro the orea Tite ■!ISCfflllent w1 II be iJtvo,ced a11nually ovet a period (lfJQ 
ye.ir., A number of retcdcms paid rile entire )evy amount in lhe first yea,, and n.~ a res11J1, thf 
prcpll)~ncnt NI!. been recorded a., deferred revenue lo be amm1,1.cd o•cr 21) year~ 

· 1S. ACCRUEDSICKU:AVE 

Rothe"'y pruv1dcii non-unionrud employees sick leave that accumul~ al II rate of 18 hllurs per 
monih and o1 tote of I .S d3)$ per munlh o r service foi unioni:i:ecl emplo~e,. Non-union e:rnplo)ftts 
con 111cc1»n11,lare 10 a ntaxim 1n1 o f2,400 hours and can lake l\'ave with pay for a11 :1111our1t of tim .. 
eq11al to the a,;c11n111!atcd s ick leave Unio11<1..ed employees can a~cum11lal111 up to 150 da~s of ,ick 
le.ave 

KVFD provid~ stck lc.i•c that a.cxun1ul~!es at II n\U• or 18 hours per mon1b while Ch<= employee., 
sk k b;,ink 1$ t>etow 1.000 hours, ~nd at I) 5 ho11u per month while 1hc si.:k bauk is above 1,000 
h0t1r:., All employees can o.:.:11111ul11lc tQ ;t maK1m11m I){ 2, l l!,t ,ick leave hout~ and Ciln 1.11<c lcav1.: 
with pa.y for an amount of time equal to the acc:umulatrd sick leave. 

An acrunual valWlhon 1n accord11ncc w,rh !'SA 12~~. w~s pcrtormcd for coch 1>la11, rhc 4) .:mpl<,ycc 
plan for Rothelwly 1111d the ~ 7 cmplO)'c:c: plan for I< Vfl) The aclWlrial me1hod uS<:d was tnc 
ProJ~tcd Unit C1ed1I pro-rat«t on scrvrc;t to expected usage. The valuation wa., basc:d on a number 
nf :1!i:~1)1nrtCit)t\~ 11hnur fi1r,,re ev~11r~. <.u~h .;,i.; int~r rnt,s, wn.e,P. 11n,f !!t:1lnry inc:sp.;i~_-,;;; ANI em11ln_yH 

ru,11O\·er and rfllcemen! Tht ;"s11mptions used rdlc.:t lhe Town', 11nd KVFD's b.:st rst i111a1e1 

l ho: followins s111nn1lltlzcs the major 11ssump1ions 1J1 the v.tluation 

- annual "'1lnry mcrcase rs J¾ for Rolhi:-.ay Md 2.25% for KVFD, 
the discount rate u:1td to detennine the accrued benefit obligations is 2 . .54% for RotbeSll)I and 

t 99% fOf KVFD~ 
• retirement osc Is 65 fur Rotheslly and 60 for K Vf D. nnd 
• csttmatcd net e~cc~~ 111illu1ion of rate of sick leave varies w11h age 

Toe sick lenve is an nnfnnded benefit and os such. th~rc nrc no nprl,cable 11s.sc1s. fknefits are !'(\id 
out of general revenue as rhey c:ome dll!!I. 

TI1e co111olii!ate,J on(llnded IIRllllrty CO0SCSI ot 

Rothcsay 
KRJBPC 
KVFO 

lfi 

Eulm11.tcd 
211:ll 

?,928 
)H,446 

s 142,374 

$ 

lllll 

6,IJl 
198 158 

$ 204,2§9 
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ROTHESA\' 

!liOTl!S TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATF.1\-U:NTS 

DECl:MBER 31, 202.2 

lti. POSl' [Ml'LOYr.U:N'l' BE.Nt:nrs l'A'VAHU; 

Rcurcment Allowance Pmenm 

Rc11hcsays n;tiring emplo}'cc~ are entitled to four wi:ct-s' rciula.r sala,y for eYery five ye.m or 
employment lo a m11ximum of 26 -..·eek.~. I he employee mtJ.g be 5~ )''CAI':'! of age to n:,cc1ve 1hc 
b4lllefit. 

fhc accrued liability is ba.~cd on 11n 11ctm1n~I val11st1011 ,u ar ll=mbcr J l, ]lll9, ,...h,ch 11s«1 ft 

discounl nlc of S ?So/. and an annual sala.-y increase rate of j% l 'hc l1eh1ht)' was dc~muncd usiog 
lhc projcclcJ unit credit method pro.rated on 5Cl'\'ICC to the date the ma,umum hcncfit i~ earned 

K VPD's n:tirins cmplo)""'S arc, cnwlcd to four wceb' ,cgul~r sahuy for every five ye,,1; of 
empluymcnl to a maximum nf 2(, weeks haS4:d nn a minimum (lf ten year.. ~!'\lice l'ltc emp1oycc 
rnu~I be uf rcti<i'lnrot age of 5S 

The accrued liability is hosed on an actuaml valualtlln 11s 111 lkcemlxr ii , 2019, which 11.~d ,l 

disoourtl mt" uf 2 .69"/o aml w1 annual 5alary ,ri.:raisc r11tc of 2 S¾ 

KRJBPC's reciring crnploycc$ are entitled to accumulat~ the llJcatcr of 111\y percent of unused si ck 
!~ave er1:di1s ur one rnunJh', ~•~ndau.l wk,ry fur every fi~c ycen, or uny put then:uf. of service lo 11 

maximum of 6 months. 

TIie acc111ed liability b ba~cd OH ari actuarial ulualloo a> at July 3 I, 2019, which us.:d a J1s.:ounl 
me of2.69% 1111d an annu:,J salary increase mte of J~'o for four years a111.l l% thereallcr 

Tho con3olideled unfirnded ,iability con1ist of 

l.ill 

Ru thcoa)' 5 444,581 
KVFD 268,748 
KJUBPC '~!i LS~ 

Bula11c.: nt end of ytar s l,0S9,S2Q 

KVFD and KRJDl'C have in1em11lly r~nc1ed fund~ for their liahilille$, 

rcnsi911_tllli91ti9!! 

1011 
$ 446,306 

233,552 
11J Q.S~ 

s l,Olj,l!OJ 

Employccs of Rochc$ay, KVl'D ~n.t KRJBPC µ.,..nIc1pl\1c iu the New Bru11,111ick Municipa 
EJnpll)y.:cs Pension Plan (NB MEPP). lbe NB l\.1£PP is :\ mul11pli;-cmp!oycr defined benefit 
pension plan admm1stcred by a board clcctrd hy rhc member~ under the pmvL~ions of the 
Municip<llilic;; A.cl or New Brunswick The NB MF.PP provides pensions ba.~cd on lcnRth of ,crvicc 
11ml b(~C OV<'~ c~n1inxs. 

A~tuarial valuations for fu11ding purpo$CS PJC pcrfunm:i.l either annW1lly or triennially ticpcndin11 cm 
the: lin:mcial posicicn of tit~ l\ll MEPP (cum:nlly ,mnunlly) 111 lum. the ~cluarial val!l41ions fOJ' 
accounting pu,poses are based on these figures (widr adjusimems) Th11 most recem 11cruarilll 
valuation was prepared a5. al I >cccmhcr ) I, 2020 and re1uhcJ in an overall NH Mr.Pl' aci:.rnc:~ 
benefit ohhg:ilion o($1 JS, 126, I 00 based on the accounling basis. 

17 
teed saunders j 1<couniants 
~ l,,1dY1SOts. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDA no nNAl1iCIAI. STA'Tf.MF.NTS 

DECl!MBtR 31, 202? 

16. POST EMPLOYMENT Df.NEJ.'ITS PA\' AIJl,t {cont'd) 

The actuarial wluauon for accounting purpo,t::! was based on II number of ~ss11mprion, about future 
ev,mts, wd, us mf14tiun l'llle!I, inlcr""t T11les, wage aod salary incrca.sei .111d cmployc~ turnover and 
ntl)rtllily. The assumptions used n:flcct management's ~est c,1im111es. The follow mg 11Ummnm.c, 
the m:,jo, anumptious in che valuation ~sat Dtcembc:r JI, 2021: 

. the expected inflation mte is 2.10-/4 (prior 2. IO~{,); 
, the d,sco11111 u.re usi:d to dtltnnine tbe JN;..,"fu.:J benefit oblii;aliun i~ 5.1% (prwr 5.S 5%); 

the c;11pc;ctcd rite of return 011 asut! is S.7% (prior S.55½), 
• retm:mcnt age varies by age and cmplo~mcnt calegof); l!lld 
• e:ommatcd nvc:ra~ rcm.,ining s,,rvic:c lifu (EAR.SL} is 14.0 ye.its (prior 13.0 )'eMS). 

I he acnm,al valuation prcpucd as 11t l)cc,m1ber 31, 20'20 irtJi~h~ll that tho! prciltl\l valuc uf the 
&l."<:umulatcd plan bcncfiu cKcccdcd the mMkct 'v-alue of the nl'.C 8!,St!tS IIVl\ilable for these ~nefit:.. 
The pension plan hiss be:n granted a ,nl-ency dcticienc}' exemption by the PIO\'ince of New 
Brunswick. On Q ~oing concern valunuon ba.~i~ the actuMial vahi•tinn indicated a plftn deficit of 
S33J,500, a ~ha.nl!,e of 5191,700 fror11 the December 31, 2019 ddicit of $641,800. Based on the 
usumptions ~s at Decc111ber l I, 2020, the ilCtu.lry upectcil the lc\·cl of employer and cmplo)'cc 
C<lfltnbu1ion, I•> be $ufficicnr 10 fnnd the dt:ficil in h:ss lha.r1 fiftceu )"ars, as alluwtd by tile Pen~iuiu 
Benefit~ Act 

A~ a1 r>cccmhcr :11, 202U, tl',c NH MEl'I' fttnvides bcnefos fo1 :!94 reciree&. Tot,11 beuelit$ puymcnts 
lo retirees and terminating cmployccs during 2022 ore tstim~tcd fO be ;pproxmmely $4,9S7,200 
(actual 202 1, $6,360,JOO} in totality for the NB MEl'P 

Emplo)ees m.akc cuntribu110ns using rate,. lhat \':If)' by cami<Jr,, l~cl and cmploymenl cntegoiy, 
with au u~crall average: c<.>nlribu1J011 r.ate of appro:unutely 8.00%. Esch. mun1c:1pahty contnhulc,,; an 
amount that equals their ,imployees c1>ntributioll$ arnl)UlllS. Pension fWld assets on: invested In shon 
term securities, h<mds, Can~dian equit~s and foreig11 tiquilie.1. Cl>tllbinw cmploycn anJ 
munic1p.1lmc:s conmbutions for 2.022. ftre esomuted to be 11pprox1mn1ely $7,421.400 (acrual .Wll. 
S /,lJS,1001111 torahty for the NR !\olEPI'. 

The fotlowins ~mmari1.es the NB MEPP dalA ns ,t re fat.is to Rothe say: 

• lh~ average age of the 44 active ~mployee~ covered by th~ ND MEPP is 47 6 (~s llt Dec J l, 
2020): 
• bc.ncfit pa)'mcnh were $261,900 rn '2021 and were C\tin1atcd 10 be S2 I 1,20fl iu 2('22. ft11t.l 
• wmb111cd contributions were $4'211,S00 in 2021 and =I'<! estimated to be $,14 l,4Q0 in 20:r.l. 

I he fQllowmg summarin:~ the NB Mi:;l'P data u It rcla:es to ~ VFD: 

• I he RYctaf.e age of lhc 43 -,.:ch•c employees .:ovc,.:d b~· the NB MEPP I$ 41 3 (2021- 42 7); 
- benefit pAymcnu wcro $~27,M0 in 202 l an.d were mimatcd to bo 552.7,600 i11 2022. nnd 
• eombin~ contribu11on.l w,:rc $S"i9,400 in 2021 and were C$hmatcrl to be- $57'1/,00 in 2022 

Th~ fotJuwinl( sumrnaril.C.'i the NU MF.Pf' d.ala a,i n rr:lat~ to K.RJBPC: 

• The average age nf the 4~ acth·c cmplnycc,-cavcrcrl h)· the '-II:\ MEPP ts •I~ 5 (2021 44 ). 
- b,nclil piymenl~ we11:S797,300 in 202111nd wen: cscimHkd to be SS\3,700 in '.!OU, and 

coo,bmcd contr1butioo~ were $793,800 in 2021 and w.:R! estim..tcd la he S81 'l,600 m :W22 
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R01'HESAY 

NOn:s ·w CO~SOLHlATF.D FINANC'IAI ST ATEMF.NTS 

OOCF.MlU, K 31, 2021 

16, POST l!.M1'1.OYMF.N'I' er-:NIU'TI'S PAVABLE(conl'd) 

In add111011 tn dctcnn1ning the J""l'tion of the !':B MEPP 11s 11 n:latcs lo RolhcSc\y end the other 
~nntrullcd entities as at Di:.:embcr 3 l , 2020 and December 31, 202 t, NB MJ:.P!"s 11ctuacy pcrfonned 
an cxuapulGllon of lhll Dc-ccmbcr l I , 1021 accountmg \'aluat,on lo delcnnmc: the estimated pM11,on 
as at December 31. 2022 T~ e11.trapolG1ion assumes as,ump110ns wed a~ Bl Ucccmbcr 31, 20:1.2 
10:main unclu1ngcd r,0111 O1<ceml-.:r ) I, 202 l 11,o: clllnpolalion al$() .i:i.s1t1ne~ .iud!l rclum S.io/o, net 
of all fee, Mil npenses. If experience is different than assurned, amounts will be adjusted to teflecl 
achu1! experience. k~ults ni the ci11rapol,1t,on ~•c as follows 

Accrued lk11efll lJal)tllty 
Ac~rucd benefit li.afiihry at bcg1Mine. of period 
Change in owm:nh,p pcrccntagi: 
AdJUStmcnl IC aclulll 
Pcnsu.m cxp(nsi: for the yi:w­
Empluyer ~o~tribuliuns 

An:rucd bc:ucfit liability al end of penud 

Estimated 
Jan 1,2022 to 
~Jt,2021 

S 71,893 
llO 

JS,809 
404,360 

! $02 2?(,i) 

$ J0.IS2 

J11a ,. 2021 ,., 
Dec 31. 2021 

5 156,767 
(43,5{17) 

7,'ltl6 
]52,'113 

_lli)lJllii) 

S 7!.893 
In ~ummuy, the cnn.1ohda1cd accrued bc~cfil habil,ty {~Mal) ,s i:.,t,m.ated In he SI 0, l 51 a.i 31 
C,cccm!K, 3 I, 20 22. The I>,;~<;ml:-" JI, 20;: I liabll,tr WIU ... , .. natcd in the. pno, ytar. ·u .. bc:tu.>I 
liability was ~lcul11tw lu bo: .$101,804 The d1ffc:r.:nt , uf .$29,911 bu been r«.unled m the current 
yc:i, Th is amount is mcluded m the pos1 employme111 benelir1 payable on the consolidaled 
lf~tcmcnt llf fiM11c1al Jt0si11on 

£.,tim:attd 
Jan l, 20?l 10 Joo I, 2021 tu 
.QesJl, 2V}2 DecJl,~!!11 

~othe!i~) .. (26,700) $ (b,700) 
KVFO i2,9l7 65,150 
KRJOPC' '360&~) -Zi:.4~l 

s Jg.J~i $ lU.23 
The fuuwcfal position as ii n:lales 10 the 11.cuued benefit liability is sh~ as follows a.ml 1!1u.s1r111ca 
lhE u11a,no11iud amounti b,,i,111, ~ogni«d in .,ension e .. 11~11sc: o,er ti one:· 

Reconclliarinn of l;unded Stalut .at F.nd nf Pulod 
Accrued bcr,clit oblii:ation 
Plon a,ids 

Adjustmenl tn actual 
Unamorlitetl c:.,pc:1icncc: fossts 

Ac,crued IM:nefil li11bilily al end of p,,nod 

l'J. 

E.sCillllltcd 
J»D 1, 2022 to Jan 1, 1021 tu 
Dull, 102~ Dtc l!, 2011 

S 22,22'1,f,K'i i 20,8 f0,J6.l 
.(2.l.716.6)1) (2ll.t66 • .m) 

So8,052 643,780 

(5, 'JOO) 
--B91..200) ___(Jl6.0.16) 

IO.JS2 S 1111.KO-I 

teed saunders I ,,;07.,,i:nt, 
ct,,,,yte & ~ors 
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ROTHESA\' 

NOTi:S TO CO:"ISOLIDATED FIN"ANCIAL STATKMJ,;NTS 

DECE.MDt:R JI, 2622 

16. POST E~LO\' Mt:N'J Ofo:Nt'.l•TI'S PA YARU: (cont'd} 

1111: following 1llustratc~ the: rtennc1li11tinn of R«.nicd ~ncfit obhga1100 ttom the bcgin111n1 ,1f 
period lo the rnd of pcnod: 

R«ooriliatio11 or Attrucd B .. a~r., ObliK•liun 
Accrued benefit obhg,irion at 1Jegi11ning ot"i:1:riod 
Change in owncr$hip 
Current St:IVICC t-O!it 
Bcnc:fits payments 
Interest for period 
l:.xJll'rienc;e loss Jurin~ periL'<l 

Accrued benefit obhgatinn al end of pcm>d 

F.stimated 
Jan I, 2022 to 
l>«.H, 2022 

S 20.810 J6) 
11.899 

836.'2?2 
(6l2.81M) 

1,1?'1,illl 

j~ 224 61U 

Jan 1, 1021 to 
Drc:U,lOll 

S 19,99S.S20 
(6,954) 

80S,636 
(796,536) 

1,1U1},65R 
-!Wi.~61) 

rhe following illu_~tr1110:s che r~onciliation nf pl:m a~.,eti f1<1m dte beginni!lg ofperi<)lf ro the end of 
pcricd: 

R~oncili.atloo of rl■n A,:iees 
PL111 1mcu at t-egi11m11s of period 
<.:h,mgc in ownc•shiJI 
Employer contributions 
Employee contribution, 
Benefit paymeub 
Retum on pLln •~eb' during ~nL'Cl 

Plan assets a\ ,mi.I of petiu<l 

[$tlruattd 
,Jaa I, 1112:Z to 
Dec 311 2022 

S 20,166,583 
17.•1Sl 

502,221 
502,221 

(632,884) 
l 161 039 

$21.716,631 

Jan I, 202110 
Declt. 2021 

S 19,398,804 
(6,701) 

•117,2.77 
4'>1,41J'I 

(796,Sl6) 
59l 24Q 

S 20,166 ~ll'J 

J otal cxpcn.sc related t/1 pcn\1~n~ inclmlc the lnll,,wmg compnnonts: 

Pcmioo Elipemc 
Employu ~urre111 54!r~·ice con 
l111eres1 on 11ccruo:d benelit ol.Jhg;1Hon 
Expected return on o~ts 
A1ttnrti1~t111n nfun~gn11-"d l>.alancc.\ 

hi,ericn~c luss 

Pension expense 

The fl'lll-":on expen:;e ~ included m the st:i.tement of opem,ons. 

t'.•tinuued 
.Ian I, lU22 to 
Dtt 31, 2022 

s 334,0SI 
1.(93,033 

(l,161.039} 

J8.Jl~ 

$ 404 ]t,11 

Actual 
.laa I , 2021 ,o 
Ded11 20ll 

$ 313,138 
t.!09,658 

(l.0111.J:!SI 

2¢.363 

$ l67,l!l4 

teed saunders I accountants 
doyf e , acMsol'$ 
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ROTO:tSA\I 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED fo°INA NCIAI. ~TA TF.MF.KTS 

D~CEMDER 31, 2012 

17. CONTING[N'f llABILITV 

In th;: nonnal .:our:se of opcll!t1<1ns. rill,: f'nwn become, m~oh ed in ~ar,ous cla,n,~ and legal 
1irocccdlng,. \Vhilc 1lse final outoon:o, wi1h ruspeel 10 ola1m1 and legal proc4:ed1ngs pending 111 
lJeccmt:,cr 31, 2022 c1111not bo prcdMed with cer1ointy, it L~ the 0111nio11 of ITlllnAgcmcnt 11nd C:00110.:il 
that resolution ofth~ mRttC!$ y,iJI not t,avc a material 11dversc effect. 

111. COMMTIMENT 

The 'fown h.u a three ~'C:3r conrra.:t for solid w.,ste ~et\11ces The cuntract cxpm:s on Dc<:cmbcr 31, 
2023. The minimum 1111nual commitml'm f01' the ""•t ~c.ir ii .$54~ ,039. 

Snow CJcaon,• <;01111;1~ 

In 2021, tile Town entered i1110 11. «intrne1 for !no'ff ctcnnng !>l:r.·1cc~ from NovcmbCf 20'21 to Apnl, 
2023. Tnc n\;nimum anuu~I commilm<en! for rJ.., "'"" ye.ar i, SJOS,98'1. 

l9. SllORTTl:RM BORROWING 

Oriero1ioo Droowi 11g 

Ai pre:Kribcd in the Local Go\lCfllanc:c Ac1, bonowina lo litwtco! Genen1l ~ratin~ runJ 
op~ra1io11s is limited to 4% ot the Munmpaltty'• b.i.dgc, B01H1wi11g 1,, lirnmt't: Uhlity Punt! 
<>paration, Is lintir~,I !o 50% of the, opcratinR budge! fo, the ycnr In 2022, the Town hQS i:omphcd 
witl, these rcst11ctions. 

J\I Decemb~r J 1. io12, th1m: wen: no short-term funds {W:? I SS00,000) borrow«! from other 
fund~ 1111d 11,;, sh<11Her11, rumls (207.I - nil) b<>mJw,:,J rrum a finandal h1smution tn prcvMc 11111;ri111 
funding fof ~p1t11I projects in the General Capital Fund 

Al IJcccmbct }I , ion, there was $1 ~.OOQ short•lt'nn fonds ( l>l I - ml) borrowed from other furds 
and M shon renn f\inds (202i •llil> borrow~d from M financial iu!ailution to prov1dc ir.tcrim fun,h1g 
for capital pro_1cct~ in the U1iht), ( '8p11~J f und 

lmrrim Rom1win , CApital F1111~ 

l'lle Town has rorn,,ining uul~tlllldmg au1horit)' for short.tcnn borrowmp,H~ folll'w~ 

Ocns?r~I C~p11al F1111rJ, OIC /l !2-il018 

Utihty C3piral FumJ, OIC II 21-0061 

$ ,.2~0.000 

$.JQ'.'iO OOO 

teed saunders I ~;ta-.,t$ 
doyle & ,tdvlsMs 
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ROTHl<:SAY 

NO'fES TO CONSOLll>A TEO FINANCIAL ST ATF.MF.NTS 

DEC£M.B£R 31, 2012 

19. SHORT ·1 F.KM tiOKHOWL'iG (cont'd) 

lncer-fund Hom,winp, 

Tho Local Govemonce Act requires !hat sholl temt inter-fund bom)11,,ings be repaid m the next year 
unlcs; the honowins i., for I capital rroJ«t The am<111nts p:1pl,lc: between ~unds 111c m oontplian.:e 
with the mivircmenl$. 

Amnll~U nul~tllnding ~t year end arc inier fund 1egular p~yablcs or 111 some ca~cs, a ;hor• 1cnn Jc,an 
may cxisl &om the l'CS4!!'\l<I •ccount. Where a loan is in place, interest is paid to chc reserve 11ccount 
di a rah: thal equalcs what lhc accOtJnl would have c:amcd had ii hccn in the bank. Thc!ie l,'lftn 
amounts ilJ'C paid off w1thm the following year ar,d Council i$ g1vcn a 1ummary a1 }Car end 10 he 
folly iuforinw oftl1csc: !ransactiuns. 

241. I ' TIJ.ITV fUNU SURJ'l.llS 

TI,~ L»<;;il Gu~·~rttanec: A~I rt:\\ui1cs Ulility FunJ surplus amuunl.S to be absorbcil into unc ..,, more of 
four Opcralmg Budgets <:cmmencin~ with tll~ second nc-llt ensuing year; lhe baLmG~ of the surphu 
a1 1he end of the year c.:.;,n~ist~ o(: 

lD2l 

20.22 :Surplus 1 33,993 
,l 02t Surplus 4l,7$7 
2010 Surplus 

s 75 ·,so 

WJ 

.$ 
•I l,757 
18220 

$ 89 977 

teed saunders I ~~.;~~ 
doyfe l.~on 
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ROTHESAY 

NOT.ES TO CONSOLIDATED FIN A.'IICIAL Sf ATE.MENTS 

n. SCffll)\JL£0fTA!'ICl81.P'. C4rl'r,u ..... c;.~r.rs 

Bllildi>,pH~ 
1.-•• IA•atllcld 

i..cd lm111J12•a•n~Jmuamrnrn1• ~ 
COST 
~ cq,o.,,.ng 

a(- s ~.mms S.•l?,!!19 S 12,791,.!IB S 6,Jl,J19 1 

CJ\at,t-"' 6wtlttl!11) 101 l9 •.•61 ~.◄(1 

A~,1 -.e, add,1irm 
dunngth::,,,• 0 ,100 &~i.))J 111,,141 .~ ; ,lJJ 

m:c:KMHl:R JI, 2Dl? 

"1•d1f110) 
aDd hadsud S.01'111 

~ f<ltat, 51.!ttl .... ,,, 

~.391.7-11 1 44,:ti9.2!tl S 21.022.~69 S ~~.1,3,7IJ 

~, 
'\'/4,~.t ~~t1:>6l !.~J I ,~,;:;s 

.Uk!> 
(Jnd tt 

h!m!ll cnwn,uo, 

::H-ll.199 S IH.10, ~U S .,~ .r.o s II uauu i I ~UlHSl 

I L("I 1.0:1 ,,,11 

S l•.,~~ > -,a.c '? 9n _r:1 a,oe9;t9 S.lll.1'1 

1.<n· Oi!;'OUI durl~ 
ttu:~a:r ____ ___ ~ > ~ I ---llUCl' -1!.Ult ~ ' __ (21!.66!) (l"llOSDi 

01fJMCC•Pt'l4D!"~ ~ ......i..l6l.11 ~ _LI,,!,Uli ~ _JilfJ.111 ...l.Llll.2ll ~ -li..Ul.ilJ. ~ ~ ltef'tl,271 J,l'il!J.,~4 

A.CCL '11.11,.IITF.D A.WORTl7.i\ T!ON 
B.11,nu ""¢name 

or)c., 

0-.... ........ ,,, .. .iu? 

'ldd..........,..._ 
'•llht<llo)'CU 

l-~ A~ctuc.11111~ 
a,flJ(l':J.1UDf'I 

.... ,_1111 

◄.m.lU },274.9!11 3.4F.19~ ,.a~•.uo :.l~e.l ) ) •.~(\.15• l.167.41t 9,,t ... ~, , ..C•H.21' ~•14.22" o0,"4:UU 

d9 n n :.~~· •!4 !-111,. s;r p1t, 

◄72.JH •CS.!74 l i;~ea '"·* l,4J,,l,W J 'C.no -!a: 111.tl ' .. ~.;). 11111 .. ,,.,.u 

--· - ---- ---- ""')~) N~.;15, ____ ~>~l---- ~ ) ~) 

~ __.l.ill.ffi --1.iZ!.lUJI ~ ~ ~ ___.UALUl -"1.LIJl:1 ...6.1.JiUU - - ---~ JtUli.2li 

lllr:T BOOK \'ALLE Of 
TAl<CIBU: C~PllAL 
.~s'&TS s~ S.....!.WJS s~ s~ 3~ i~ J~ s 1•0~!':',!1 s i• "' 'fl s~ s~ s~ s 'i-1.~,t .. r;s 

Ccnsirtso{ 
Gmc~fund 

Ai'«I 
'Jalit)· fund 

Au .. 
c.:.,,,trolled 

Et'l1.1:1a --·--

23. 

! l,5t'l.191 S 

twdsaundlrs 1----........ Kt0Untllll1S 
....,,, ... •advlsan 
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ROTHF,SAV 

NOTES TO C0!liS0LIDA TED JlNASOAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3l, 2022 

n . SCHEDt/U OP' TANCIBU. CAl>ITAI 4SSt'TS J'OR SOl!\,1LY CONTROLLED ENTlTU:.S 

~od Mlc:lllany lad AJJr!JL114rr 
ldod lnlll:Cllll!!lU!S ~ Yt!!kJg Emdlm!lll Cil!WtlmJD 

COST 
&I-. • t,c«lar.il\l •>f •ear s 150,247 s llD,OS9 s ◄,11b,!96 i J,746.,~. $ 8ll.S42 $ 

6111nge In D'"DttSl!r~ 108 II-) H6, 5,•;· 946 

Add: J,oc, ld~iti~N ,wring tnc >= 44,16~ 116.14? ! 12,111 95. '07 

I.Mf" O1q,o,:al;d,nng die year --·- --- --- ---0...llS) __,__ 

Sal1= • enil of,..., l5o.JS.5 ---™--~ -1M1.i!!I ~..lll! ~ 

ACCIJMUI.ATl!.DAIIIORTIZATIO~ 
Oalanoc • b<~ilill iD! of !'CM 74.054 .. 701,9l6 371,49) ~H.1'17 

C~ongc :r oW1JCflflip 119 2,22.: 2,551 ,!.t 

Md: An,c,rtizatioo dun"$ U>e yc31 !.671 118,02() 113,667 61,865 

l.,:n: Accuu,ul8le:l ainorou.rio~ M C:i1p,.,.ol, --- --- --- ,n7n 
BaJa,ioe • ..,4 of>..., --- ----8.2..ru ....LW.ill ~51.7ll ~4.141 

lli'ET BOOK VAL\JE OF TANGIBLE 
C\PrT Al. /\SSl!l'S $ .~2.J~< Jc Kj 619 s 110.ss,201 s E'6•1~' S_j~7~72 s_ 

Z02Z ZOll 
lJlll Tu11I 

s ~ IOC,UY s ,b,'!16(]l) • ' 

: I.G21 (Cm 

96&.94, 21~.,u 

--U.J.11' l!SB91U 

...A!l.!liU' -2.lJlUll 

3,2J:S.S?8 l,'18.si, 

S,l P /)~. 

Jl2.l26 J 17 7!C 

.. 51"S) ~. 
1.S.,JJ.!O. ....u.u.m 

$..3.ll.!.m s u6!11~1 

teed--= I::=., 
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u. SCIIEDU L£ 01' S!G,..n.'T Dl'SCLOSllJU 

§mm! 

Rl:\'J'.NUT. 
Propcr:y iu wr.rrllll s 1,9D.90S 
S•lcef.....,,<>o r c2,&; 6 
Ser, occ• provrd,:d t:> ad,e, 

gDYffllfflell1S 

Other o""' !.oun:e ~il,i◄J 

l.~ce.ndl\lOaal {t!UII W ,990 
Cnnol<ilona1 to'IOMlml 

UIJI!~ 2,001 ,911 
W:.!er :int K'Wtt UY-f ft:d 
Su•dry and ;i.,c,.~ 21'12n 

6.1.'il.lll 

£."1'E.''DJTUR It 
s.Jme,; ar.d bt:'lctla ~4.41:'9 
Good, and ,.,..k .. I l l'l,jJ6 

"''=-' 1.29-' 
Ot1'a" H,JD-' 
AmJ,rtu:ali011 ~959 

.J.3.29~2 

SU11'lm l«fi•iO for llio l'l"lf s 1 '6 U!al 

ROTHESAY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINA.'\'CIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 3l, l022 

bviro:,fflfflfat lnvironanitttUl Rec"all•• W■tera-nd 

~ bo,eorbstan lialll1 l)eyc!oarnm, and Culture ~ 

s 6,61'1Qll i ◄,21!6 296 t 916,710 s 7~l.·17D s ~96,('4& t .. ~ m.m 

II ! 06 
l ~! ,'31 

,,.667 JC! ! 77 1,101 ,.6'29 l a.70! 

n•.WJ 
].16],126 

ZSst6l6 --- -- --- ----1..lli ____ill.ill 

..A.ill.lllb ;i~J1l f1.~ -!!2l..llll _w.m --2..fil..ll!! ~ 

~.61~,6 9 1,0O,Hl 2~4.26, 44U06 5J5.3'2 
1~J')8 US8,906 962.m :m.e•~ l,IS4.)0.1 1,H0.15'l 

l , 'i&, 65, 77i 11!.m 2M.~9l 
136, • 11 

-22.S.9.il ..l..liU!IO --- --- ----121.li:: -l.lli.W 

..J...12.Ull ...!l.22U1!I ~ --lW.ll J.ill,li! .....tifil.lli 

s 1,110,&'8 I ,~1J~ "'iZ> s~ $ ~,~.m s m~.m> S--in.Ul 

?0ll 2021 
~nl CansnliclJStd 

s 1a.1a:,510 S 1:,C0?,?;9 
475.1!0 46J,7J: 

1:.106 &0,110 
967.~81 lO&.~l 
IJ0.972 tll.liJ 

2.3".' ,!}It :.:&6.llJ 
J, l6J.?l6 3,077,,il 

~.ill _.lli.lli 

.l6.!1UJ!J .lUil.ill. 

uw.,,. 1,.311 1"1.1 
i ,n:'.OJ2 1 .697.66~ 

•J l~7◄1 •6U6l 
IU.022 ~l,.04! 

.....wuu .J.MU!1 

lUl2.ll!l ~ 

s~ s s·Q•u2~ 

teed saunderS 1-­doyle • • dllllon 
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ROTHESAY 

N01.ES TO CONSOLIDATED IilNANCIAL !:11ATEM£NTS 

Dl!.CtMHl-:RJl,211'..2 

24. R.!C0NOLIA TI0N 01' A 'IINUAL SUR.PLUS 

Ullliry 
CtMr■I Ce"e·at lltiliry t,.'lility G,o,ral ~erst Opcut1111 

Up..-..rioe Caphal O11trart11i c .. ,;,,r Operali11c C.•pil>I Ae.,e:n-r 
&nd [llll4 &M Emisl Roen,fun,tfl.a~ £Av!! 

::022 a.on.Ill! JU<1>lvs tdeficit> $....J.W.2!1 s. (-t.lltMD) S...l,l!:U~ L.i.CUlOJ S_.ll.SJB $-l1UJ1 S-l..l.&A 

/tJ!JUSCUW5 IO Ulftll&I ~lllS 
Surp\ .. (deficit) ror f.,.d,ns ""!"""menlS 

Sc,:otld pl'CYIOD: )'WS ,Mfl~ !i:.6?4 49_l10 
•=lf:r, t,a_, fbe:ls 

r .....tc, elunlo1tion \17~.(lOD} 1•1,0,,0 
Tnsnd'ercrttl\;T',■tion 300.000 
Trll!St'cr d!J!lle11:i>n {S7,5~0! 
TrMtfcr clhnicll!ion m\000 :?J0,000 (1,110,00~) 
Tf111'$(tf tll:nin•IJCNI il39,94B 8J9,9◄ 1 
Tr&llSft:t di:nit;uion (5,6H6l 
Tra.ruCcr c1i;nirwim1 O !,:l:!61 
't,tiu(cr c1Jm,n.at4 • ,) ,516,621)) , •. 5~462!1 {ii 9,Sl'J T.19,53~ 

l.onc !<fflo deb! pmic.,.t 
rep& YfflC'II r11,.003, 7~-4.000 <BU2Jl m.,2J 

Pr,,vt1'(1~ ror mittmalt 
alla\Qncc 

Pttm;io11 for po111i•~ liallility 111,0.."<I) 
l'Jo•UUID fer side k■•'C atorual 
Act~-n!ll;led IIIM"ii:o,i,,r. 

oo dup..sal crc11p,w W<:U (809,363) (5,~01} 
De(m-ed (j,s tax re_,,c tilll,059) 
Uo.seol~ g&,a i,,i ,n,cst!ne11u 
Amoc':17.11i-,n CXfl""•• --·- ...l.lWil ~ ---
Total odju$:awm'ls to 2022 onao.,J 

-,,tus { c!.efi"t} ~6·, -1JW!ll --iffl.W} _l.J6U]1 --·- .....:.W.:.S2) ---
ZOU"""""' r.r,,lus (dcficll} C:,; 

tlltlt!log rt(l"JIIC1ftffl!S s 1iw1 $~ s ll Q2~ l~ s l~U s_ JPJ~ii s , l!W 

16. 

lhiU,y 
Capital Jainlly 
R ... ,... Coatrollfd 
fl!!!!! ~ Im! 

S---2.UJ.A .S--2ll.ll.l S....2.1W!.1 

IJ],1211 U4.0ll 

(100,()IJ(IJ 
57.:!S0 

>.6!6 
ll l~6 

(5,740) {s.1,01 
(,0,9811 161.~11~1 
\M1 l~} (64,l6l) 

(5,715) (U~.,94~) 
(ll~.0'9) 

•1,7~6 41,?66 

--- __J2U16 _.uu_:w 

-illl.ill} ~ ~ 

' n222~> $ I 05] 11! $~ 

ceectsaunders ,-­dO'jle :==:--
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ROTHESAY 

l"iOTES TO CONSOUDATF.D FJNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

D£CEMBERjt, 2022 

STATEMENT OF RES£1tVF.S 

General General 1JfUity Utility Land for 
Operadog Capital Openuing Capit:tl Pllblic 2022 !Oll 
Hmm ~ Reun·e Reserve l:.!.!!R.w To1■I Total 

ASSETS 
Cash Md shoit te.rm in~estmeni.,; $ 9J7,t'37 s S,680,O28 s s 1,1s:,sn s s 7.750.182 1 7.452.748 
Arcm1nrs 1cu1vAble fr"m .,,her funds (152,8!1) 1O11,48S {108,'4!15) :s2,s11 
Due frnm (to) other funds _,!i00,000 

s 9 '. 7,§P $ ~ '•1 jl7 S...Jw_a~ s l~,QJ; s 152,l!l I .s 7,7~~.I 112 $ 7,'IS~,l4§ 

ACCUMl.J'LATEDSURPLUS s ll!HF s ~.s2z.:il'Z $ 121,'1~~ s l,!l.:l-1 g1, s mm s n~g I~, i_7,9S2 748 

REVE~UE 
Other government lnunfc:rs s .$ 1139,941 $ s $ s 839,9.;t s l ,654,J60 
T11111sfers frum Operating funds 17S.OOO iJ,492 249,4'>2 1,037,536 
lnteresl J2 588 Jl ~ 157 , JRO "'5 ~111 2 560 _usm JQ ~,. 

P,<&l! i 13!! 112l! ~'.lKO IOO!l!l8 2,560 I Z:11 :1H , 7 ~1 22:1 
tXPE.NDm.'RES 

Transftr to veneral Capital Fund 900.000 900,000 650,000 
Transfers 10 Water and Sewer 

C"1'11al Fand 2<0000 JOO ooo •;50,Q-OO --li'.1.000 

I ISO ll!lll J!:!!10110 ...l.:U0.00() l !2:1.!I !21l0 

ANNtJAI. SURPLUS (DEl-'ICIT) $ l2JH s m.'~11.il> s ,.112 j; U22,22~> s ~60 s !62"~~2) $ 11701t&74 

Included 1.11 the General Ca()ital Rc:scl'\·i: Fund is $4, I0~,161 of gas tax fi.mds !:I be used for capillll proJects that meet the crittria of the Agreement on the Gas 
Tax Fuud wirh l..o<:al Go,·unmcn1s. 

teed saunden ' a:muntllntsa doaJle · •idvlSCM'S 
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ROTRESA'V 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAi. STA TRMF.1'1S 

DEC.£MJ1£R 31, Z02l 

15. STATEMENT OF RESF.RVF.S (cont'd) 

Co11acil lusolotioas regarding tnufen< to :and frnm nxrvo: 

Odo Enacted December 1,, 2022 

MO\'lill by l>cputy Msyor Alcxaodct and ~onded by Counc. Boyle d!M the Gas Tax f 11oding in 
the amount of $839,941.00 for the )'tar 2022, be transfcned to tbc Ococr2l C&pital Reserve Fund 
(Gas To.,c)_ 

L'AkJU£0. 

MOV£D by De(luty Maym Alcundcf l'lod scccncle.1 by Counc Boyle th.,t the snm of sm .ooo 00 
be lsansferr\Od from the General Capital Rc;;crvc Fund (Gu Tax) to the General Operating Fund 1(1 

cover the costs of Capiti!I proJecl• 
CARRD:O. 

MOVED by Deputy Ma.yor Alt;ocand« m1d sc.:ondcd h)' t.ounc lk>ylc that the ,um of$l"15,0UO.OO 
be llauslerred Crom lhc General O,-crd!ing Funll to the G11ncr.il Capital Reserve lu coYcr lhc ~u~ts of 
tu;urc Capital prnjecu 

CARRIEl). 

MOVEn by [)cputy l\.byor Al~xnndt-, llf}(! 3tCOoded by Counc McGlllr~ tlial S5i,5~0.00 be 
transferred frofl\ the I hibry Operating Fund 1-, the I h ility ('apital Reserve Fund for wliter tllld 

M:wcr connechQ1' fee, 
CARRll-:0. 

MOVED by Deputy Mayor A[cxandu and scrondcd by Counc Boyle that the sum of$'250,000.00 
be ll311$fetnd from the G~11~al C;;pita1 Reserve FuuJ (Gas Tu) to tln, U1ili1y Op,m,tiug Fund 10 
cover tile C-OSt! or I.J1p1te.1 proJecu 

C'ARRJED. 

MOVt:n by Deputy M:,yor A!exnnder and soc,ooded by Counc. Boyle tliat tho sum of $300,000.00 
be transferred from thie tlt1hl)- Capiul k.e,ervc f1ind to tho \lti1ityOpe1ating Fund tn cover 1tte .:.:ist, 
or C Bp1tal proJccl..' 

C:ARRU:1>. 

MOVED b) Deputy MdyM Alexander and secr.ndcd by Crnmc. Hoyle t.liat $:S,(1116 Oil be tran~fcr=I 
fto111 lhe Utility Oper.Jling Fund ta the Utilil) Sc:w~c Outfall Reserve fund for koth=y·s 
c,:,ntribution lo the Sew.1ge Outfall ResvrVe. 

CARRIED. 

MOVED by Doput) Ma)'or Alcxnndt:r and sc.:onded by Cuunc. Doyle lhat S 11,256.00 JCCCivcd 
no01 Quisr-msis far Sewage Outf~ll l:c 1racs!ened liu1u the Utilil}' Oµt.r.sling FwKI to ll1e Utility 
Sewage ( hltfall l{c.,;crvc l-unll 

teed saunders I · · ......... .. 
doyle 

accountants 
t. • !MsOfS 
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KOTHESAY 

NOTES TO CONSOUDATF;D lilNANClAL STATF.MF.~'TS 

Df.Cf:MBEM JI, 2022 

STAT£MEN'l' Of' JOL'li1'L\' <.:O!\TROLLED F.i''TITIF.S OFF.RATIONS 

2021 20:H 
KVFjn: foji~r !.!!?Im 'fgtal Total 

ASSETS s 2,nvJ~ s. 1,w.2,37p s l1"~~1Jl2 $ ~,~l~,!Ul $ •1,21ijl ~7 

I.IARll,ITlli.C.- s !,171!.~21 s 74~,272 $ l'J2~ $ l.~41.174 $ 1.318,6.J 

ACCUMULATED 
SURPL\:S s 2.050,663 s 877.099 s 1,449.08, $ 4.376.849 $ 3.§•P,?ll 

REVENUE s J,Ul6.3-12 $ .l,JHi,601 $ ll'./ 758 s 6,422,701 l 5,433,335 

EXl'ENDlTURES --1.ill.'Zll!I -3.1)2.Ul) 11!1.U4Ci ~.:ZJ.:IBD l.2ll.ill. 

56;!,6)) 223,176 (91 .;188) 694,7].l 2l!i.0l4 

C:H A. ~(if. I~ 
OWNERSIIIP 5808 l~rn ~A.27 J.&1 

"-'~UAL SUKPLUS 
(DEFICIT) s 568!SQI s 21119H S ('J!.lllHlS 700 14H S_J.Ja.32,~ 

!'he .:.hQ,e noted en1i11cs :m: included in 1he co,uolidatcd financial s1atemt11ts. The abovi: figwe~ do 
nol indudc lhc cl,minating ad_ju~tmcnr,; a.nd 1eprc.sel'II Rothcs.ay's prop,1111011.ile .,h,m, 

teed saunders j ·· '" •·· ~ 
doyle ~=~ts 
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ROTHESA\' 

"'lOTF-'i TO CONSOI.IDATF.D FINANCIAL STATlf,MF.NTS 

DF:CF.MBF:R 3 I, ?OU 

?" ortRA11NG 8VDC£TTO l'SA Bl'DCET 

Operwtla1 Oper1ti•1 
B■d~t B~d;t1 Am•rtlar111t Co111roJINI 

!iinmJ W•!!!: !!If M!!tt E;A £!!l!ig 
IU.-VEl','UE 

l'mputy lllll ...,,....Ill ~ ,. ,~ ..... , s 
UIIQOndmotUJ 1ra11ste<, from oth"" f.l''""'m..,., 110.~l 
Cor11h110iw :nr.srm from fcdcrllJ c,, l'~vlntlll go,cmmcr.15 .&O,C,00 
So,,, ,er. •:kt '°v<fll,ne,,n ~.000 
Otller own wur-..e 82,'~l} 
$,lie of 1Cn'1CU 419,'IIIO 

Otllcrll'G.l1s!en I OS0,000 
y,~ and...,..,..~....- r.... l,5 ' ! l81J 
S~cllry U!OODll: 1:.000 SC>.C<lu ,~2 0'}9 

Su:t,l\lf ((elial) 11( ,n-.,n<I ;,rn-1= year ll-6~4 __,tUll) 

~C illC'! [!!JtJ iti:iC!C!!O ~ P2tii 

r.XPt:l'fDtrl/lttS 
G<:nmil .,,,...,,.,.,n1 ...,,.,,c., l .54t4JT m.ooo 
Pmta:li~~,xi. S,76S.i50 ll!.946 J 1.6!!1 
T""11~tlon s,nrect ,.7~9.15: !.4)(1,000 
£n•iron.-.tr.1al he•l!!I !lt.f\'lQC.I 86~.C<JQ 
£1mrot1r:1c~l31 6e•et~"lldl ,en~ ~SZ.700 
~~ .. ,, a.,d wl!OJQf ,.,..:ccs l,261,H? fl00,000 ,,<il 
~r..::sl!Cl"li<CS 

lone ,.,... deb1 npaym<nl! '~•.C()(I ~29,SI 0 
leltl'CSt 137.~$1) 293.190 
f :-.,,sfe, [JW'rl G<:ner.il Open,in,e !'uad Ill 

Oa11:r11, ~&i•ng !«sor,- F'"'1,! f"IS.tOO 
Tn,;,f,r bn!:\ (la,er,ol 0)'1«r.u,S f'uai Ill 

Omcul Capital Fua,i J.003.aOI) 
lrr,sfu frnm Watt:r ..,,i Sewer Oi,c:rtt,r"-' Flllld ID Watt, 

11>C Sewer c,pi11 ~= Fimd ,a;i.~oo 
W,cet ~d Sewer .l.al.1.0QD __ LJ.lJWO.ll 

iool~ aa~ l &~a Q!l!l ,m~6 l~,~l 

Su1J>l1<I (de:i:i!J s s s l tJ3~1~2) I 132,au 

Irumn Tt~! 

\ s ll,T,jlO 
~o.Qn 

U~O,OtO ; ,, 90,l)IXJ 
60,,)00 
12,943 

41q,900 

11.c~r.o.0~01 
{W,,c>::O) l .m,710 

1~4,0;9 
,_,ill)tU)t) 

!HQ&~tl -23.+11.W 

(319.HO) 2.lSl,057 
mUJl)l S.f.86.68~ 
1663, HlfJ) ~ ~46.4~1 

862,000 
6!2.700 

8' 800 2.963.304 

(1.) 1,1,8!0) 
(410,640) 

(1 7S 000) 

u.000.0001 

(1&0,!IOO) 
l!/3 120 H6l!l2Q 

---&69il..UO) ll •~~ i:F 

61ll9 91'° s I <n§ 19~ 

teed saunders , ~ 
do:,te allMlon 
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RO'tH£SAY 

NOTES 1'0 COI\SOLIDATF.Jl FlNANf'IAl, SlA l'EMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

2.8, REVUiUE AND EXl'F'.Nl>l"I l,ll{FS SUl'l'ORT 

lm llUl illl 
Budgl'I Aclu:d Adu:al 

Rfo:Vl-::'IIIIJ. 
Sale (If services 

Community C:cnlfc s 20,000- $ :n,?.-10 t 26,6l5 
Rental rc,•cnur lll6,0Qo, 96,'41 •1 94,696 
Rci:n:atioruil programs 2'!J,11()(), :127,246 1 ;?,713 
HIVE prvgrams 2&810 

$ 4 12,222 s 475.710 $ 459,02-1 

Other OY>TI source 
Permit; end lines s 5j,000, s 175.838 s 94.132 
Contnbutions by dcvclopcu M5,0◊ll 

Ixvclopers conll'ibution, • I.PP 4,560 
J.l)c~I 1mp1Qver11cu1 levy 4,708 '1,708 4,708 
Mis-::1:llancou, :iJ.:m 142 062 !1..lJJJ 

s ~7,Y·P s 'JG7,68i $ __ , 112,770 
Condi11onal government 1ra11sfc1s 

Government of Canada s 38,500 $ n,72H $: 6J,77J 
Pruvinc:~ of New Dnmsw1ck 1,188,S80 I, 19J,; 54 
G:is Tax re~enue I.I 50,000 1,150,000 1,024,ClOO 
Cao11tla llay grant, 1,500 1,680 l ,M){l 
Other go\'cmmcnt grants J .500 

s 1111111,oao ~m~•W.2§~ .~ 2J86,228 
EXl'l'.:IWII UIU: 

Gt:ncrul J!OVcrnmcnt scn,tc~ 
Lesislatil/C 

Mllycr $ 47,00IJ ' 41,411 5 J6,986 
Councilo,s 1 H,100 1 J0.6J9 i26,140 
fundy Reg1011al Sc:~iee Commis~ion 6,0011 S,219 5,n6 
Other ____llA91j 6,768 3J9] 

2!l!l ~22 ll!H!i7 lZI 742 
l\dlllifll$lmlivc 

Administr1111on 8J7,000 813,911 698,436 
Office hu11ding ISL,250 183,120 176,730 
Solicitor 50,000 19,030 211,SM 
Supplic:• J0.000 2&,801 !O,<J'l] 
Other :.t.'l.!.Y..t)' jl'I l!!~ ~~ 

l,MZ 176 I J67 ~:Z/l ....1.l~ 
Fioam;iul mun.igc:mc:nl 

l'rofes5ional fees - 15,000 JJ.m "6 SlQ 

JI. 
teed saunders I accountants 

d(ll'J'e &r •dvlsffl 
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ROTHESAY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAi, ST ATEMF.NTS 

m :n;r.tBF.R JJ, 2022 

28. REVf',"Ut~ /\ND EXPtNDITURE StJrPORT (~oul'J) 

01:ncral govcmmcnr services (cont'd} 
Othc:r 

Civic rcl11tions 
Covid-19 
Conmnmity rumrnunica!lons 
lnsuran~e 
Property U1J1 • land for pub Uc µurposes 
U1 ~n1s 10 orgc11iza11011i 
f' o;,. Fann Road rental expenses 
Cost of a~tC!>.~mem 
lnlcrcst 
Amortillltion 

Proteclivc !<CrVicc5 
fom, 

Adm1m~hon 
f irdight1ng forte 
Telecommunications 
lmurance 
Prevention and tr11imni; 
Factlitie~ 
Fltet 
O~r.ition~ 
Water cost, 
Retircmcm alkw,an,c 
01hcr 
(Gain) on disposal of tangible capital 3~sc,t:s 

Amortization 

Police 
Crime Conlin 
Vehicle 1-lc<:t 
Property 
Adminis11ation 
Re1i1eme111 ollowauce 
Communi:ations 
llnrcah1.ed lo~s (gam) nn invl:lirmcnt~ 
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible cal'lL!ll l!.SJ!ct, 
Amvrtii~tiun 

$ 

$ 

32. 

lOU 
Budget 

1,000 
25,000 
10,000 

256,184 
17,622 
16,~()l) 
,t,000 

293,93-1 
3,450 

mooo 
m.220 

21~1 IJ(,7 

328,074 
l,688,SJ2 

87,144 
22,1 13 
23.944 
77,207 
42,178 
27,423 
13,692 
2.1,683 

1,128 

m.m 
2.•164,39(1 

1.100 

2,252,44'6 
i9,•199 
98,690 

4'71.006 
'.33,984 

I 10,425 
41.766 

98J7~ 

3122,1$2 

$ 

.$ 

ZOll 
Actual 

(,O 

6,697 
6,393 

'254,475 
17.824 
78.6?8 
l0,'1-16 

293,93~ 
2,294 

12~ QS2 

1~1i:m1 

2,129.~02 

3<12,7S2 
I /09,809 

86,895 
23.626 
21,74(, 
75,242 
4S,916 
29,476 
13,692 
21 ,683 

1,1103 

lJO.i'H 

2,502,•I 13 

2.80:Q 

2,074,445 
79,2:! l 

106,782 
509.613 
34,779 

109.942 
•ll ,7M, 

211,313 

1.llll 
Acta:al 

},1) 

2'1.033 
2 /JK 

141,058 
16,782 
n,147 
5,713 

266,0()4 
2,lill2 

--121Jl6l 

-111.5.6] 

s 

$ 

2.osLo,11 

266,992 
l.~19,•HB 

1,600 
.2 1J48 
13,3n 
71,623 
U,090 

10~,1)8:Z 
13,243 
25,??2 
7,396 

(6,990) 
l:U.OlJ 

2.:u~ 
2Bll!l 

2,030,6)0 
72.0~9 
11s.n2 

4:ZX,MO 
34,803 

1 ll,254 
('-(i,224) 

l,959 
--H.65.9 

~.!Ul -2.UIJ.2U 

tee(I saunders t 1e,·.;.0,.·~ 1 
do)tlle I & atMSOB 
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28. 

ROTIU:::SA\' 

~Ol'ES l'O CONSOLIDATl!:D FINANCIAL ST.-\ TF.MF.NTS 

Dl!CE.\1DF.R .H, 20!2 

REVENUE A.\°D l:XJ'El'l>lTURI: !-lt:l'rORl' (cont'd) 

2.0.U 
ffudgtt 

l'rotc:ctivc service$ {con1'd) 
Other 

E'mcrgency m<'a$Ules 
Animal cnntml 5,0UO 
lnhm:~1 1.)00 
Other 2Q(,00 

_ .21,JOO 

s '(~4 (,l('> 

TrBn.spom11iot1 service, 
Common 

Wage$ a.nd benefit, .s 1,134,000 
Worksbup, yard wul cquipmcnl maintcmmu: 6i9,11J 
Engi~crmg 5 000 

-Ult:m 

Roads lllld SltetlS 
Ro;1dway su,fac"~ 55,000 
De.signaled highw:iy surf.:u:iog 
Stonn \\'atcr and traftk ~r.,.Jie-o 
Cro.~swalks and .idcwalk.~ 70,WO 
Culverts and drain3/!C ditches 25,000 
S lonn scWt.rs '.lS,000 
Street cleaning 45,000 
Snow and ic~ removal 667,000 
Street lighting l4S,0OO 
Street ~ign~ 17,500 
Tr.1ffic l3J\C man<1ng •10,000 
Traffic si!!J1als and sign~ ~u.noo 
Rmilwuy c1~ini signals 25,000 
ruhlic tra11si1 . Comex. &rvici: 77,438 
Flood costs 15,000 
Interest 75,900 
I .Ms on rl1s~I ofumg,blc: carttal ~nets 
Amortization i. ... 1~~.wlll 

J.m.o3s. 
s l.~~.4~1 

2.11.U lOll 
Act11al Act1111I 

11() 975 
;i.?70 \ ,41~ 
1,, 62 1,995 
2 Z~b ---10m 

14,J94 21,1.tib 

s ~ "'i,4 ~2K S,...1JJ!,7,§Q7 

s 1,0411,7}3 :i: <176,786 
670,1111 599,2)1 

____jj).fil -----1.ll.260 

l.1,0,S.ll l...H!6.ll2 

99,98, 99,160 
,,24J,6S7 

IJ0,885 157,260 
17.820 16,:D4 
16,612 36,477 
IJ'),741) 3•1,249 
50,996 40,506 

684,756 520,677 
148,728 161.646 
12.823 9,886 
33,279 25.677 
9,679 ~i.191 

19,,H n.ns 
78,088 Rl,110 

616 
6S,777 n,,n 

136,718 283,208 
_lJ~.lQ.Q ...l.J.l.2..lli 

...i2llifil J9H1.:l!l 

$ ~,'l2g,4~4 s ~,220009 

teec1 s.aunders I actountilnu, 
doyte &•dVl•on 
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ROfflESAY 

NOTES 'fO CO:"-ISOLIDATtD FINANCIAL S'J'A'I EMl!NTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1012 

28. R•'Vl!Nt:'t ANl.l l!.XPl':NDITURE SUPPORT (cont'd) 

2D.ll 20:2.Z 10.11 
Pudeet i\cnial Acrual 

En~•ironmental health services 
Solid wa~rc di~po~I $ 2111,000 $ 21l,619 s 202,:~47 
Sc:>litl wn~lc compost 1(,,000 31,<16') 4K,741 
SoliJ waste tolle1:lion Sil,000 6S2,6St 570,984 
CwbsiJe n:cycling 3,09] 
Clean up c1111rpa,w1 45000 ll 42.'l l2 249 

f 86;;l_OOfl 
s __ 

2~2,281 $ 854.a!_ 

Eovir,>nmenial devclopmc1u service& 
hnvi ronment;,I pl.inning and ronms i 4R7,500 $ 376,112 s JS'l,044 
l-nv15w,n SJ !92,ll00 1')2,001l 148,0fltr 
l'ouriJm .2<lll 

s 6K2 70ll .$ 5611 l 12 s s,n 044 

Rt,re3tion 311d c1,lrut.1! servkts 
Aclminislratton s 167,02~ $ 183,924 $ J26,956 
Hc11chc$ ~ l,llfltl 48,766 45,W5 
Roth~say Arena 38J,OOO ~06,862 349,094 
Mtmonal Centrc '2,988 48,856 69,.159 
Summer p,o~ams 61.800 65,551 62,780 
Rmhesay Ct'11unon ~-1,800 40,034 M,171 
Parks and &amens 638,500 624,734 629,917 
Rc:g1t1nal faclfitic~ C'ommis~ion 3S6,10:.! 430,117 t.10,IOJ 
Kcnncbccasts Pubhc l.ibrary Inc 90,189 92, 198 IS,611 
Spcdal ,:venli 40,000 28,492 t 4,744 
I !IVE prognms 9,794 
Playgrounds and fiel<ls 134.000 116,58) 1}6.176 
Li"ing muse11111 71 
PRO Kids 7,500 7,SOO 
lntcJC«t 105,l!OO ?2,121 1ll0,%8 
Amnriii:atfon _JjQO.QQQ -191..W -1:10..4.12 

$ 2
1
961 .. lM $ l UIS R'i•I $ :l,ll,(dS7 

Water llllt! s,:w,:r scl'Vu:.cs 
Wnt;:r System 

i\dmi11ist111tio11 $ 454,000 s 470,644 .'S 480,900 
Pur1tic:atinn maint<:flancc and trcstmcnt 487,..SOO 518,785 408,751 
Sourtt of supply -pun:hasc ofwat11r 1,000 1,605 1,181 
Transmis..\1on and distribution 120,000 86,464 74,667 
Power 1111I pumping 44.000 49,779 39,654 
Billi11g and collec11ng _!J!OO J.81.5 .-2.!10 

I 111500 IUl,152 100756' 

)~. 
teed saunders I i2~irt'.nts 

doyte • •~ 
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RO'rRESAV 

NOTES TO <.:ONSOLIUA'l'ED t'INA:-l<..lAL S'l'ATEME'.'ITS 

D[CEMDl!R 31, 1022 

l!l, REVENUE AND EXPENDITURF. Sl,l'l'ORT (cont'd) 

Sc\\cr Sy:.tcm 
Administrnlion 
Sewer colleclion ~)·stem 
Scwei lift ~tatioos 
·1 rc11tmcnf anti di~J)"5al 
1.os5 on d1~posal nftang1blo capit.,I 3.'15\?I 

!ntcrc,1 
f\mvru,111 i,,n 

617,000 
99,000 
56,0-00 
93,500 

193,190 
I IJQ Q•W 

202.2 
Actual 

661 ,)3) 
'>8,420 
47,593 

14'1,611 

2021 
Actual 

648,900 
X3.()47 

43,SSI 
13-0,494 
8769l 

2-H 'IS? --221.bl!J 

261J,9'H 
I 212 68~ 

21M,44ll 
_J,.llU1:1 

1...i2lJ.2il -1.il!LJilll ....l..lll ,322 

teed sal.lf'ld4ws. I . .. .. ... --
d~.IIA accountants 
.,, . .., & 11M,an 



2023May8OpenSessionFINAL_255

F. EXCERPT - REGULATION 2018 - 54 

Acts and Regulations 

Enabling Act: Local Governance 

NEW BRUNSWICK 

RECiULATION 2018-54 under the 

Local Governance Act 

(O.C. 2018-189} 

Filed June 25, 2018 

Under subsect,lon 191(1) ofth e Loco/ Governance Act, the Lieutenant-Governor in Council makes the following 
Aegulation: 

Citation 

1 This Regulation may be cited as the Annual Report Regulation - Local Governance Act . 

DEFINITIONS 

2 The following definitions apply in this Regulat on. 

"Act· means the Loco/ Governonce Act.(Lo1) 

·corporation" means a corporation referred to in i;ubsect lon 8(1) of the Act or a corporation continued under the 
Act.(personne morale) 

TIME TO PREPARE ANNUAL REPORT 

J(l) On or before June 30 in each year, a local government shall prepare an annual report referred to in subsection 
lOS(l) of the Act for the preceding f l seal year. 

3(21 On or before June 30 m each year, a corporation shall prepare an annual report referred to in subsect ion 105(2) of 
the Act for the preceding f iscal year. 

INFOAMATION INCLUDED IN AN ANNUAL AEPOAT UNDEA SUBSECTION 105(1) OF THE ACT 

4 (l) An annual report under subsection 105(1) of the Act prepared by a local government shall contain: 

(a) the audited financial statements of the local government; 

(a.l) the following information with respect to grants totaling $500 or m ~ re that are made under section 101.3 of 
the Act by a local government: 

(i) the recipient of the grant. (i ) the type o f the 

grant, 
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(iii) the amount of the grant, 

(iv) the terms and conditions Imposed on the grant, and 

(v) the purpose of the grant and the benefit to the local government In making the grant; 

(b) the following information with respect to grants totaling $500 or more made by the local government for social 

or environmental purposes: 

{i) the recipient of the grant. 

{ii) the type o f grant, 

(iii) the amount of the grant and whether it is a grant of money o r an in-kind grant, 

(iv) the terms and conditions imposed on the grant; and 

(v) the purpose of the grant and the benefit to the local government m making the grant; 

(c) the following information with respect t o economic development assistance or grants totalling $500 or more 

made by the local government. 

U) the rec1p1ent o f the eccmom1c development assistance or grant, 

(Ii) the amount of economic development assistance or grant and whether 1t ts a grant or assistance of money 

or in-kind, 

(iii> the terms and conditions imposed on the economic development assistance or grant, and 

(M the purpose of the economic development assistance or grant and the benefit to the local government in 

providing the assistance or making the grant; 

(d) the following information with respect to activit es and programs relating to economic development· 

(i) the types of act1vit1es and programs, and 

(ii) the purpose of the activities or programs and the benefit to the local government 1n providing the activities 

and programs; 

(e) the following information with respect to a corporation established by the local government: 

(i) the name of the corporation, 

(ii) the purpose of the corporation, 

(iii) the manner of consolidating the corporation within the financial statements of the local government, and 
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(iv) how to access the f inancial statements and annual reports of the corporation; (f) the 

Information with respect to the council: 

(i) the members of council and their committee and other responsibi!jtiei, 

(if) the number of regular meetings held by the council and the names of the members of council iri 

attendance at the meetings, 

(iii) the number of special meetings held by the council, the types of matters d iscussed and the names of the 

members of council in attendance at the meetings, 

(111) the date of the council meetings or committee of council meetings closed to t he p ubtic and the types of 

matters discussed at t he meeti11gs, 

M if electronic means of communication is used at a meetmg of council, the names o f the members of counc il 

participat,ng by electronic means, 

(Vi) the salary range and other remuneration or benefits of members of council, and 

(Vll) the amounts paid as allowances t o the members of council for expenses resulting from the discharge or 

their duties; and 

(g) information w ith respect to the provision of services by or through the local government, including the n .1t Ufll ol 
the service prov tded and the cost of the services and related infrastructure, under the following headings: 

(1) genera1 government services, 

(11} protective services, 

(ui} transportation services, 

(1v) env.ronmental health services - general fund, 

(v) environmental health services - utility fund, 

(vi) environmental development services, 

{vii) r~creat lon and cultural serv1ces, 

(vi:i} fiscal services, 

{ix) public health services, and (x) other services. 

4(2) An annual report under subsection 105(1) of the Act prepared by a local government may include the following 
information; 
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(a) general information regarding the local government, including the population, tax rates, tax base and user 

charges; 

(1)) information on capital projects undertaken within the year and information on multiyear capital planning : 

(C} performance measures establiihed by the local government and the progress made wth respect to those 

measures, and 

(d) information respecting employee classification, salary ranges, benefits and travel expenses. 

2019, c.S, s.4 

INFORMATION INCLUDED IN AN ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SUBSECTION 105(2) OF THE ACT 

S(l)An annual report under subsect·on 105(2) of the Act prepared by a corporation shall contain : 

(a) the audited financial statement of the corporation; 

(b) the following information with rei pect t o grants totaling $500 or more for social or environmental purposes 

made by the corporation: 

(i} the rec1p1ent of the grant, 

(ii) the type of grant, 

(iii) the amount of the grant and whether it is a grant of money or an In-kind grant, 

(iv) the terms and conditions imposed on the grant, and 

(v) the purpose of the grant and the benefit to the local government in making the grant; 

(c) the following information with respect to economic development assistance or grants totaling $500 or more 

provided by the corporation: 

~I) the rec1p1ent of the economic development assistance or grant, 

(1i) the amount of the economic development assistance or grant and whether it is a grant or assistance of 

money or in-kind, 

(!iij the terms and conditions imposed on any economic development assistance or grant prov ded, and 

~Iv} the purpose of the economic assistance or g rant and the benefit to the local government in making the 

grant or p roviding the benefit; 

(<I) the following information with respect to activities and p rograms of the corporation relating to economic 

development 

(I) the types of activities and programs, and 
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M the purposes of the activitie s and programs or the benefit to the local government in p roviding the 

activit ies and programs; 

(e) t he forto~ng information respecting the board of directors of the corporat ion: 

(i) the names of the memb~rs of the board of directors and their responsib1lit;es, 

(ii) the number of meetings held by the board of directors and the names of the members of the board in 

attendal"ICe at the m eetings, and 

(Ui) if e:ectronic means of communication is used at a meetrng, the names of the members of t he board of the 

co1poratron part1capatrng by electronic means; and 

(i) mformat,on w ith respect to the provision of services provided by or through the corporation, including the 

nature of the services and the cost of the serv,ces and related infrastructure. 

!';(21 An annual report under subse<;tion 105(2) o f the Act prepared by a corporation may include the following 
1nformation: 

(a) in forma1ion on capital pro;ects undertaken Within the year and on multiyear capital planning; and 

(b) performance measures estabhshed by the corporation and the progress made with respect to those measures. 

l OCAL GOVERNMENTS AND CORPORATIONS SHALL COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENTS UNDER SUBSECTION 105(3) OF 

THE ACT 

6 Local governments and corporations shal l comply w ith the posting requirements of an annual 

report and make the annual report avallable for examination 1n accordance with subsection 105(3) of 

the Act. 

Commenc:.ment 

7 This Regulation comes Into fotcfl on 3anuary 1, 2019, N.B. This Regutation is consolidated to 

June 14, 2019. 
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ffl, 
70 Hampton Road 
Rothesay, NB 
E2E 5L5 Canada 

TO: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Mayor Grant and Members of Rothesay Council 

May I, 2023 

Contract T-2023-00 I 
Asphalt Resurfacing 

RECOMMENDATION 

Rothesay Council 
May 8,2023 

Jt is recommended that Rothesay Mayor and Council cancel Contract T-2023-001: Asphalt Resurfacing. 

ORIGIN 

The 2023 General Fund Capital Budget includes funding for the resurfacing of asphalt streets and the 
construction of concrete curb and sidewalk in Rothesay as follows: 

Asphalt: 

• Bel Air A venue 
• Biscayne Court 
• Capri A venue 
• Charles Crescent - including sidewalk construction 
• Femwood Lane 
• McGuire Road 
• McMackin Lane 
• Phoenix Court 
• Aries Court 
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BACKGROUND 

• 2 - May 1, 2023 

The 2023 General Fund Capital budget included funding for asphalt resurfacing and concrete curb & 
sidewalk placement on the streets listed above. 

TENDER RESULTS 

The tender closed on April 30, 2023 and three (3) bids were submitted. All three (3) submitted bids were 
deemed compliant by the Tender Opening Committee. The results (includfog HST) were as follows: 

l . Debly Enterprises Ltd., Saint John, NB 
2. Galbraith Construction Ltd., Saint John, NB 
3. NRB Construction Company, Saint John, NB 

The engineer's estimate was $1,733,662.73including HST 

$2,128,926.00 
$ 2,235,352.52 
$ 2,345,482.50 

The tenders were reviewed by staff and all tenders were found to be fonnal in al I respects. Staff is of the 
opinion that the low tenderer has the necessary resources and expertise to perfonn the work. 

The bids received were all greater than the budget to complete the project as-tendered. Staff reviewed 
various options to reduce the scope of the project to meet the budget, however it was detennined that the 
individual unit prices in the tender were just too high. The result of the bid review was a recommendation 
to cancel this project, revisit the scope and re-tender a new project at some point in the future. The streets 
included in this tender are considered a priority for rehabilitation, however deferral of the work will not 
significantly compromise their use and enjoyment by the motorists and pedestrians. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The combined 2023 General and Utility Fund Capital Budgets included a total amount of $1 ,325,000 to 
complete this project. The funding was allocated as follows: 

General Fund street resurfacing $1.100,000 
General Fund curb, sidewalk $ 125,000 
Utility Fund pipework associated with paving $ 100,000 

Total $1,325,000 

The anticipated completion cost of the tendered project is as follows: 

Total incl. HST rebate Subtotal Diff from $1,325,000 
HST Budget 

Consulting Fees 122,836.56 11 441.96 111,394.60 
Contract Cost 2, 128,926.00 198,304.83 1,930,621 .17 

Subtotal 2,25 1,762.56 209,746.79 2,042,015.77 717,015.77 
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The 2023 Budget for asphalt resurfacing was developed by using pricing from the 2022 asphalt resurfacing 
tender plus a factor of 35% to account for current economic conditions. Asphalt prices had not changed 
significantly over the past 5 years; however, the current market has produced considerably higher prices 
for many of the items included in this tender. Staff have corn pared the prices in the current tender to similar 
prices for tendered projects in Saint John, Quispamsis and Grand Bay-Westfield and the numbers are higher, 
therefore Staff recommend cancelling this project. 

Report Prepared by: Brett McLean, Director of Operations 

Report Reviewed by: 

A copy of this report can be obtained by contacting the Rothesay Town Clerk, 70 Hampton Road, Rothe say, 
NB E2E 5L5 (506-848-6664). 
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70 Hampton Road 
Rothesay, NB 
E2E 5L5 Canada 

TO: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

RECOMMENDATION 

Mayor Grant and Members of Rothesay Council 

Rothesay Pickleball Courts Plexi Pave Surface 

Rothesay Council 
May 8, 2023 

It is recommended that Mayor and Council approve Rothesay pickleball courts plexi pave. surface in the 
amount of $22 695.55 plus HST, to Playteck Inc and further that the Director of Recreation be authorized 
to issue a purchase order in that regard. 

BACKGROUND 

The Plexi Pave surface is a high-performance acrylic coating system that is specifically designed for 
tennis, basketball, and pickleball courts. Some of the benefits include. 

• Durability: The Plexi Pave surface is highly durable and can withstand the wear and tear of heavy 
usage. It is resistant to fading, and peeling, and can last for several years. 

• Safety: The Plexi Pave surf ace has a cushioned texture that provides excellent traction and 
reduces the risk of injury. It also has a non-slip surface that ensures players can maintain their 
footing during games. 

• low maintenance: The Plexi Pave surface requires minimal maintenance, which means less time 
and money spent on upkeep. It can be easily cleaned with a power washer or a simple broom, 
and any repairs can be made quickly and easily. 

• Cost-effective: While the initial cost of installing a Plexi Pave surface may be slightly higher than 
other surfaces, it offers long-term cost savings due to its durability and low maintenance 
requirements. 
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Council Report 

Bid Results 

-2-

Two companies were contacted to submit bids. The results were as follows: 

Playteck Inc- $22 695.55 + HST 
FCS Flooring & Concrete Solutions- $38 900.00 + HST 

May 8, 2023 

The submissions were reviewed by staff and were found to be formal in all respects. Staff is of the opinion 
that the low bidder has the necessary resources and expertise to perform the work. 

Financial Implications 

The 2023 General Capital Budget included an amount of $150 000 for installation of two pickleball 
courts(phase2). Council awarded the phase 2 contract at the March council meeting. 

The cost of the plexi pave surfacing will be$ $23,668.75 after the HST rebate. 

2023 Capital Budget (PB Phase 2) $150 000 
Phase 2(awarded at March Council mta) $77 000 
Plexi Pave Surfacing $23 668.75 

Report Prepare 

A copy of this report can be obtained by contacting the Rothe say Town Clerk, 70 Hampton Road, Rothesay, NB E2E 
5L5 (506-848-6664). 
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70 Hampton Road 
Rothesay, NB 
E2E 5L5 Canada 

TO: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

RECOMMENDATION 

May 8, 2023 

Recreation Master Plan 

Rothesay Council 
May 8, 2023 

It is recommended that Mayor and Council approve contract #R-2023-002: Rothesay Recreation Master 
Plan, in the amount of $59 892.00 inclusive of HST, to Trace Planning and Design and further that Mayor 
and Town Clerk be authorized to execute the necessary contract documents. 

ORIGIN 

The 2023 General Fund Capital Budget included an amount of $60 000 to complete a Recreation Master 
Plan. 

BACKGROUND 

A request for proposals was placed on the New Brunswick Opportunities Network (NBON) soliciting 
submissions from companies interested in completing a recreation master plan for Rothesay with a closing 
date of April 20, 2023. 

Tender Results 

Three proposals for the preparation of the recreation master plan were received and have been reviewed. 
The responding groups were as follows: 

• Glenn Group (Fredericton) 
• Trace Planning and Design (Moncton) 
• Dillon Consulting (Saint John) 
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Staff has evaluated the proposals against the six criteria included in the RFP including technical expertise, 
work plan, schedule, relevant experience of the project firm and team, local knowledge and experience and 
cost. 

Although all three proponents have offered approaches which would result in an acceptable master plan 
staff felt that the submission by Trace Planning and Design seems to be the best fit for Rothesay needs as 
we understand them. Trace has extensive experience in recreation master plans and have recently 
completed a plan for the town of Quispamsis so they are familiar with the area and have already consulted 
with a number of user groups that share facilities. 

Cost Comparison: 

Trace Planning and Design► $ 59 892.00 
Dillon Consulting-$59 991 .71 
Glenn Group- $59 995.50 

Financial Implications 

The 2023 General Capital Budget included an amount of $60 000 to complete a recreation master plan. 

The cost of the project will be approximately$ 54,300.00 after the HST rebate. 

------.. -Report Prepared by: _______ ____________ _ 

Charles sen, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Report Reviewed by: .....!:=!;;~~ ~.....::::::::.~~=~------
Dou 

A copy of this report can be obtained by contacting the Rothe say Town Clerk, 70 Hampton Road, Rothesay, NB E2E 
5L5 (506-848-6664). 
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